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Biographical Details of Directors

E%ﬂﬁk%lﬁ

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu”’)
Aged 55

Mr. Wu is the chairman, executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also currently a director of Orange Sky Entertainment
Group (International) Holding Company Limited (“OSEG") and its
subsidiaries. OSEG, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and being a substantial shareholder of the Company,
was founded by Mr. Wu in 2004 and is principally engaged in music and
musical production, artist management and advertising business in the
People's Republic of China (the "PRC"). With regard to film, Mr. Wu
acted respectively as executive producer of the two Chinese films Red
Cliff and The Warlords, as well as producer of other Chinese titles
including Call for Love, | am Liu Yuejin and Dangerous Games. In addition,
Mr. Wu has been involved in high technology and telecommunications
businesses since the 1990s. Mr. Wu graduated with a bachelor's degree
in business administration from the SOKA University Japan in 1992, Mr.
WAu joined the Company in October 2007 and is the brother of Ms.
Wu Keyan, an executive director of the Company.

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Mao Yimin (“Mr. Mao”’)
Aged 41

Mr. Mao is an executive director and has been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company ("CEQ”) since | August 201 1. Mr.
Mao held the office of the chief financial officer of the Company
(“CFQO") during the period from 6 May 201 | to | January 2012 and the
period from 17 June 2013 to 7 November 2016. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Before joining the Company, Mr.
Mao was a senior manager at KPMG Advisory (China) Limited
("KPMG") who specialised in transaction services and risk management.
Mr. Mao has extensive investment advisory and industry-related
experience, particularly in manufacturing, retail, media and real estate.
Prior to joining KPMG, Mr. Mao served for large Australian Securities
Exchange listed companies, where he had built up strong statutory
reporting, financial analysis, and risk control and merger and acquisition
experience. Mr. Mao graduated from the University of New South
Wales in Australia with a master’s degree in commerce in 2003 and he
is also a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pei Sen (“Mr. Li”)
Aged 71

Mr. Li joined the Company as a non-executive director in March 2009
and was re-designated as an executive director of the Company in April
2010. He is also the associate chairman of OSEG. Mr. Li was an
associate director of China TV Production Centre in 1994 and the
general manager of China Central Television in 1996, In 1997, Mr. Li
joined China International Television Corporation (“TVC") as president
and was involved in its corporate structuring. During his presidency at
TVC, Mr. Li was also in charge of television production, as well as the
domestic and global licensing business of Chinese television
programmes. Prior to joining OSEG as the associate chairman, Mr. Li
served as the director of China TV Production Centre in 2000. Mr. Li
has over |5 years of working experience in film and television series
production and acted as the producer of more than a thousand
episodes of television series, including a number of popular and high
audience rating titles such as All men are brothers: blood of the leopard,
Taiping Heavenly Kingdom, Vernacular stories from the end of Western
Zhou Dynasty to the Qin Dynasty and The story of Hongkong and cartoon
series Journey to the West. In addition, Mr. Li is also a committee
member of the China Federation of Literary and Art Circles, a council
member of China TV Workers' Association, the vice-president of China
TV, Film Productions Committee, a member of the censorship expert
committee of State Administration of Radio, Film and Television, and a
consultant to TVC.,

Ms. Wu Keyan (‘‘Ms. Wu”)
Aged 48

Ms. Wu is an executive director of the Company. She was re-designated
as an executive director on 9 September 2010 and prior to that, she
had been an alternate director to Mr. Wu since January 2008. She is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wu has been
a senior manager of the Administration and Human Resources
Department of the Group since | January 2008. She has been re-
designated as Assistant to Chairman with effect from 7 September 2009
and is responsible for the administrative management of the Company’s
head office in Hong Kong and the PRC. Ms. Wu has also served in
various corporations in Japan and Hong Kong. Ms. Wu graduated with a
bachelor's degree in business management from the Faculty of
Commerce at Takushyoku University in Japan in 1996. Ms. Wu is the
sister of Mr. Wu.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona (‘“Ms. Chow”’)
Aged 46

Ms. Chow is an executive director and has been appointed as chief
operating officer (“COQ") of the Group since 24 April 2015 and is
responsible for managing the exhibition businesses of the Group in all
territories. She has also been assigned as the special assistant to
Chairman of the Company since | October 2010 and appointed as
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Formerly, Ms. Chow
was appointed as Executive Director when she first joined the Group
on 30 October 2007. She had also held the position of chief financial
officer of the Company between | January 2008 and 3| December
2008. On 22 September 2009, Ms. Chow had been appointed as COO
of the Company and she resigned thereafter as Executive Director and
COO of the Company with effect from 23 August 2010 for personal
reasons. On the same day, she was re-designated as the managing
director of the China operation of the Company, which has focused on
the development of theatrical exhibition business in China and
subsequently she resigned from the position with effect from 30
September 2010.

Ms. Chow holds an M.B.A in Finance and Entrepreneurial Management
from the Wharton Business School at the University of Pennsylvania,
and a B.A. (Honors) in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong.

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Leung Man Kit Michael (“Mr. Leung”)
Aged 65

Mr. Leung has been an independent non-executive director, and the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company since February 2008 and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company since 26 March 2012. Mr.
Leung obtained a bachelor’s degree in social science from the University
of Hong Kong in 1977 and has over 30 years of experience in project
finance and corporate finance. He has held senior positions with
Peregrine Capital (China) Limited, SG Securities (HK) Limited
(previously known as Crosby Securities (Hong Kong) Limited), Swiss
Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch. Mr. Leung was also a director of
Emerging Markets Partnership (Hong Kong) Limited which was the
principal adviser to the AIG Infrastructure Fund L.P.
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Biographical Details of Directors

E%ﬂﬁk%ﬁ

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Leung holds or held RAFHEH  REFBREECINBE=ZFBEST

directorships in the following listed companies in the past three years: T 5 ETRA R E ERS

Name of the listed company Term Position

EH AT ERE 55 B

Netease.com Inc,, a company listed on NASDAQ July 2002 to present Independent non-executive
(stock code: NTES)* —EE-FLAES director

W NITER EHZA BIUFRITES

(Bt RS © NTES) *

China Ting Group Holdings Limited, November 2005 to present Independent non-executive
a company listed on the Main Board of —ETRFT—HES director
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3398) B IEMITES

ZELEFEIERARAT - REERATEIR
EWZ AR (BHBAIR : 3398)

Unitas Holdings Limited, a company October 201 | to November 2018  Executive director
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of —E——F+AE WITES
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8020) —E-N\F+—H

AR EBAR AR - BT GEM
EmzRE (BMmHASE : 8020)

China Huiyuan Juice Group Limited, June 2012 to January 2019 Independent non-executive
a company listed on the Main Board of . 5 *_ﬁ/\ﬂ ED director
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1886) —ET-NF—H BYIEMITES

FRERRTEEAR AR REERFTER
EmzRa (B ARSE : 1886)

China Electronics Optics Valley Union March 2014 to present Independent non-executive
Holding Company Limited, a company —E-NE=AZFS director
listed on the Main Board of BN ITES

the Stock Exchange (stock code: 798)*
RERABEERBER AR RBER IR
Emz AR (BRDRSE - 798)*

Luye Pharma Group Ltd,, June 2014 to present Independent non-executive
a company listed on the Main Board of —E-NERAES director
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2186)* BUIERITES

GRERBEERAR AR REFTER
EmZREN(FRMDARSR : 2186) *

* Mr. Leung is or was also the chairman of the audit committee of these ~ * REENRIGRZSARAZEREEGESR -
companies.
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Biographical Details of Directors

E%ﬂﬁk%ﬁ

Ms. Wong Sze Wing (“Ms. Wong”’)
Aged 40

Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee of the
Company with effect from 26 April 2010. She has been appointed as the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member
of the nomination committee since 26 March 2012. Ms. Wong has over ten
years of accounting experience in the profession. She has been the chief
financial officer since July 2010 and was joint company secretary between
February 2009 and March 2017 of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited
which was previously listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and a constituent stock of Hang Seng Composite Index.
Ms. Wong was previously employed as the group chief financial officer of
OSEG. She was also previously employed as the financial controller of Avex
China Company Limited, a PRC joint venture company established by
OSEG and Avex Group Holdings Inc., which is listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange. Ms. Wong ceased to be the group chief financial officer of OSEG
and financial controller of Avex China Company Limited in January 2008.
She was also previously employed as a manager at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Wong obtained a bachelor's degree in
business administration from the University of Hong Kong in 2001. She also
obtained an EMBA from the China Europe Intemational Business School in
2012. Ms. Wong became a chartered member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in 2003.

As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Wong holds or held
directorships in the following listed companies in the past three years:

Term

gE

Name of the listed company

LR RTERE

Rici Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1526)* -z
InABERBIERBER AR - RBRMER T2 AR
(A HREE - 1526) *

Wangsu Science & Technology Co.Ltd., a company listed
on the ChiNext Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300017)*

BENMEBRODBERDR  RRIIE
2 A (BB A%+ 300017)%

R PRIZEIR EH

ZHEJIANG DAHUA TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. , a company
listed on the SME Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002236)

HIRERMRMDBR AT - WRINEHZ B
FNEER EHZ AT (Hﬂ REE : 002236)

GANFENG LITHIUM CO,, LTD., a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1772),
and the SME Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 002460)

T EERRMDERAR - REXXAER LT ZAA]
(BOREE < 1772) » RRRYIEZR SN EER
iz AR (A 5% = 002460)

* Ms. Wong is also the chairlady of the audit committee of the company.
# Ms. Wong is also the chairlady of the remuneration and evaluation
committee of the company.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr. Fung Chi Man Henry (‘“Mr. Fung”)
Aged 50

Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive director and the
member of the audit committee of the Company since 3 June 2016. Mr.
Fung has over twenty years of experience in the legal profession. He is a
partner of Holman Fenwick Willan (“"HFW") since 1999 and the chief
representative of the Shanghai Office of Holman Fenwick Willan LLP.
Mr. Fung obtained a degree of Bachelor of Laws and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong. He also has a
PRC law degree from the China University of Political Science and Law.
Mr. Fung is currently a practicing solicitor of the High Courts of Hong
Kong and England & Wales. Mr. Fung is also a notary public and a China-
appointed attesting officer in Hong Kong. Besides, Mr. Fung is also a civil
celebrant of marriages, an HKIAC arbitrator, a member of the Solicitors
Disciplinary Tribunal, HKICPA Disciplinary Panel, CAAO Disciplinary
Panel and a chairman of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings) in Hong
Kong.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am delighted to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 3| December 2018.

Subsequent to the disposal of the Mainland China exhibition business and the acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest in
our Singapore business in 2017, the overall performance of the Group remained steady. Despite the sluggish Hong Kong market
environment due to the high rental and staff costs, our box offices topped the market share in the Singapore and the Taiwan
regions, with 47% and 38% respectively.

BRR

FABRKBEREARE (KB BRAR(ARR D EEAMBAR (A [FAEEDEF(EENe(EFSDMAR HT2
BWAKEHRE_Z-\F+_A=1+—BLFEZFR-

R-ZB—tFHETERBZREGLBE IR EB 2B T 0% RER  AEEERBRAAFTIR - BESSHEHERETK
FRLEBTSRFRE  AEBEFDIGENINERAEERATISNE - DBIR47% R 38% °
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRBESE

During 2018, the Group recorded revenues of HK$1,051.0 million,
which represented a year-on-year increase of 4.4%. Profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company was HK$52.5 million as compared with
HK$2,242.1 million in last year, despite the net one-off gains of
HK$2,747.8 million recorded in 2017. The improvement of the result of
recurring income businesses has demonstrated an impressive
performance of our operation teams in enhancing the efficiency of our
cinemas and implementing effective cost control measures.

The Group continued to maintain its leading position in Singapore and
Taiwan with steady growth for the year under review. With the 4 newly
opened cinemas of 32 screens, the total number of operating cinemas
of the Group reached 34 cinemas with 276 screens as at 31 December
2018. We have accumulated years of extensive experience and in-depth
knowledge of film exhibition and distribution in different regions.
Moreover, we are dedicated to introduce a variety of services such as
additional food and beverage offerings, more alternative contents, to
enrich our customer experience. It is this hard-earned expertise and
dedication for valued services that sets us apart from the competition
and allows us to deliver quality services at highly competitive prices to
achieve steady growth by riding on the strength of diversified geographic
coverage.

RZZE—\F - REBESHSWR 1051 BB EHF
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Chairman’s Statement

FRBES

At the same time, in order to broaden our business segments, the
Group has continued seeking investment opportunities in the regional
media, entertainment and technology sectors that are related to the
Group's existing business that shall add value to our shareholders.
Likewise, the Group has a plan to expand into the entertainment centre
business and has invested in the live show performance to capitalized
our goodwill and branding, to further utilize the resources, creativity and
management expertise in the entertainment industry, so as to
commodify our intelligent property rights.

For corporate social responsibility, the Group is committed to striking a
balance between profit-making and sustainable growth. We firmly
believe that a sound business environment, society and corporate
governance are essential to the success of our business. We encourage
our staff to engage in community services and social enterprises so as to
promote the harmony in the communities where the Group operates
its businesses.

Prospects

[t is expected that the macro-economic environment for the film
exhibition and distribution sector will remain challenging in the coming
years and the momentum of integration within the industry would
continue for a period of time. The Group will pay close attention to the
local and regional factors and adjust our strategies and deploy its
resources accordingly.

The Board remains positive towards the prospects of the exhibition
business in Singapore and Taiwan. The Group has continued to
strengthen its expertise to bolster its market position and focus on
developing a balanced cinema portfolio. We do believe that, with our
long experience in the business and our in-depth understanding of the
needs and wishes of customers, we have generated the forward
momentum we need to face the future with confidence.

In addition, the Group is adhering to prudent financial management
practices through carefully controlling its leverage level while maintaining
diverse financial resources.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to take active steps to
strengthen our cinema portfolio as core income stream business. To
further utilise and leverage on the resources and operating strengths,
the Group will continue to maintain our prudent yet progressive
approach to identifying different ways to further diversify our businesses
as well as high return projects, such as to further expand into the
lifestyle and entertainment business. We are confident that the Group
will continue to deliver long-term value to the shareholders.
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Orange Sky Golden Harvest's

Cmema Portfollo
BXEXTKES

(as of 31 December 2018 &#Z—_ZE—\F+_A=+—H)

Net average

Admissions ticket price

Number of Number of (million) (HK$)

cinemas screens AZER FHREE

FHEE REHE (BBAR) (&)

Hong Kong &% 7 24 2 84
Singapore EoimIIE: 13 105 8.8 62
Taiwan =) 14 147 15.8 62
Total FoE 34 276 26.6 63
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Business Review

After almost half a century of operation and development, the Group
has become a world's premier Chinese language film entertainment
company primarily engaging in film exhibition, Film and TV Programme
production and distribution business. Since its inception, the Group has
produced and financed over 600 movies, plays an important role in
distribution of Chinese language movies. To date, we own a movie
library with more than 140 films for distribution.

In addition, the Group has recently expanded into the live show
performance and has a plan to expand into the entertainment centre
business, to capitalise our branding and goodwill and further utilise the
resources, creativity and management expertise in the entertainment
industry, so as to commodity our intelligent property rights.

Film Exhibition

The Group completed the acquisition of the remaining 50% interest in
our Singapore business and the disposal of the Mainland China
Exhibition business in 2017.

In 2018, we opened a cinema with 6 screens in Singapore, opened a
cinema with 20 screens in Taiwan, opened 2 cinemas with 6 screens in
Hong Kong and closed a cinema with 5 screens in Hong Kong. At 31
December 2018, we operated 34 cinemas with 276 screens in total
across Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan. Our cinemas served over 26
million guests as compared to nearly 40 million guests in last year since
we disposed of all cinemas in the Mainland China in July 2017. The
major Hollywood blockbusters released in this period were Ant-Man
and the Wasp (152 : E48 203 &), Black Panther (%), Incredibles
2 (BBARILE2), A\/engers Infinity War (B & B3 - R 2 ),
Deadpool 2 (3E1F2), Jurassic World: Fallen Kingdom (ERZEAD R « KK
E/Z), Mission: Impossible — Fallout (B35 LB : #Ri¥.25#) and
Aquaman (7K771%). The major Korea language blockbusters were Along
With the Gods: The Two \/\/ords (£27%#[A]77) and Along With The Gods:
The Last 49 Days (B2##[A]7T © 4215 & #). The major Chinese language
blockbusters were Agent Mr. Chan (1% #¥T) and Project Gutenberg (#E
#) in Hong Kong; Wonderfull Liang Xi Mei (AE15#8 2R 44%) in
Singapore; and GATAO 2 — The New Leader Rising (8282 = F & AiE)
and More Than Blue (b 7515 2515 8940 5F) in Taiwan.
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Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas
(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

Hong Kong Singapore

Number of cinemas* 7
Number of screens* 24
Adnissions (million) 2
Net average ticket price (HK$) 84

* at 31 December 2018

Hong Kong
Number of cinemas™* 6
Number of screens™* 23
Admissions (million) 23
Net average ticket price (HKS) 84

ok at 31 December 2017

The Group is dedicated to the provision of a diversified video and audio
experience for its audiences. All screens of the Group have been
established with advanced digital equipment. There were 7 IMAX®
screens in total for the Group in Taiwan as at 31 December 2018. The
Group has also been enhancing the experience for our audiences by
equipping 3D system, 4DX™ D-Box Motion Chairs, Advanced
Panorama Dolby Atoms and DTSX sound systems in our cinemas in

different regions.

31 December 2018

Taiwan

13 14

105 147
8.8 15.8
62 62

31 December 2017

Singapore Taiwan
12 13
99 127
9.0 158
60 6l

Total

34
276
26.6
63

Total

31
249
27.1

62

FREFMEHZEENE
(BZ=—F—-NFF+=-F=+—HIFE)
—E-\E+t=-A=1-H
BE Fmg  AE &
2t N 1 13 14 34
HEHE 24 105 147 276
AGER (BEAK) 2 88 158 266
TH2ZEE (Bn) 84 62 62 63
* RZZE—-N\FE+=ZA=+—H
“E—+F+-A=1+-H
5 g AE &
FIEE 6 12 13 3
REHE 3 99 7 249
ANGER (BEAR) 23 90 158 271
TH3ZE (Bn) 84 60 6l 62
#  R-E—+E+-A=+—8
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Hong Kong
Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas in Hong Kong
(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

2018 2017
Number of cinemas* 7 6
Number of screens* 24 23
Admissions (million) 2.0 2.3
Net average ticket price (HK$) 84 84
Gross box office receipts (HK$ million) 167 195

* at 31 December 2018

During the year under review, the Hong Kong market as a whole
recorded box office receipts of HK$1,966.9 million, an increase of 5.5%
from HK$1,864.1 million last year. The Group’s cinemas in Hong Kong
recorded box office receipts of HK$166.9 million in this period (2017:
HK$194.6 million), representing a decrease of 14.2%. The decrease was
primarily attributable to the net effect of the closure of GH Tsing Yi
cinema with 5 screens in January 2018 (GH Tsing Yi cinema 2017 box
officer HK$34.4 million); and the 2 new cinemas opened during mid of
the year and end of the year. Net average ticket price of the Group
remain stable at HK$84.3 during the year in Hong Kong.

To enable our cinemas becoming entertainment hubs of greater scope,
we showed |18 alternative contents in 2018. It was encouraging that
we developed a competent team in organizing the alternative contents
and a strong base of alternative content fans. It was proven by our
successful alternative content shows such as the Live Broadcast
“LOVELIVE! SUNSHINE!" and the Live Broadcast “iDOLM@STER", which,
respectively, reached a remarkable 75.6% and 73.0% fill rates and the
two broadcasts recorded an average ticket price of HK$330.0.

Screen advertising was also a new profit driver to our Hong Kong region
as we have already contracted with 22 cinemas as at 3|1 December
2018, we expected steady growth in revenue and profit in coming
years.
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Singapore

Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas in Singapore
(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

2018 2017
Number of cinemas* 13 12
Number of screens* 105 99
Admissions (million) 8.8 9.0
Net average ticket price (S$) 10.6 10.6
Box office receipts (S$ million) 94 95

* at 31 December 2018

During the year, the Singapore market box office receipts dropped by
3.3% to S$199.4 million (2017: S$206.1 million) due to lack of record
blockbusters. Golden Village cinemas reported box office receipts of
$$93.8 million (2017: S$95.4 million), representing a slight decrease in
box office receipts of 1.6% compared to last year. Nevertheless, the
Group's results outperformed the overall Singapore market and we
continued to be the market leader with a market share of 47.1% (46.3%
in 2017). Golden Village cinemas’ Gold Class provides customers a
prestige theatrical experience which their automated ticketing machines
and auto-gates give patrons an easy, fast and efficient cinematic
experience like none of the others.

Hollywood blockbusters are always popular in Singapore and bring a
stable profit contribution to the Group. Hollywood blockbusters
released during the year included Ant-Man and the Wasp (41542 : &
12203 &), Black Panther (F£ ), Incredibles 2 (A #F L% 2), Avengers:
Infinity War (1B11 & EE B3 - #IR.Z &), Deadpool 2 (3E1F2), Jurassic
World: Fallen Kingdom (ERZEADTH SR : 2K K BUJZ), Mission: Impossible —
Fallout (2R L - #R#.2 #) and Aquaman (ZK7T1%). Apart from
the Hollywood blockbusters, Korea language blockbusters: Along With
the Gods: The Two Worlds (£27%/a]77) and Along With The Gods: The Last
49 Days (B2f8[E]7T : #4H & H]) were also welcomed by Singapore
market. The major Chinese language blockbuster in Singapore was
Wonderfull Liang Xi Mei (A 1548 22 4H1%).

Since the completion of acquiring the remaining 50% equity interest of
Dartina Development Limited (the “Acquisition”) in October 2017, we
changed the accounting of its results from equity accounting to full
consolidation. For details of the Acquisition, please refer to the circular
dated 19 December 2017 of the Company published on the website of
The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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Taiwan

Operating Statistics of the Group’s Cinemas in Taiwan

(For the year ended 31 December 2018)

2018 2017
Number of cinemas* 14 I3
Number of screens* 147 127
Admissions (million) 15.8 15.8
Net average ticket price (NTD) 236 234
Box office receipts (NTD billion) 3.7 37

* at 31 December 2018

During the period, Taiwan's market box office receipts amounted to
NTD 0.8 billion, representing an increase of 2.1% from NTD [0.6 billion
in last year. The Group’s 35.71% owned Vie Show cinema circuit (“Vie
Show”) recorded total box office receipts of NTD3,732.3 million (2017:
NTD3,685.7 million), representing an increase of 1.3% from last year
and the share of reportable segment profit from Vie Show increased
from HK$30.9 million to HK$36.5 million compared to last year,
representing a 18.0% increment. Vie Show continued to be the largest
film exhibitor in Taiwan. Adhering to the Group's comprehensive
entertainment hub strategy, Vie Show continues its operation in the
popular “UNICORN" handmade popcorn counter in all its 14 cinemas.
Vie Show also opened a Japanese Premium French Toast restaurant in
Taichung Mitsui Outlet mall in December 2018, first store outside Japan
which close to 10,000 customers have been served in its first month of
operation.

Film & TV Programme Distribution and Production

On an aggregated basis the Group’s film distribution and production
business recorded revenue of HK$53.6 million (2017: HK$47.6 million),
representing an increase of 12.6% compared to last year. The
distribution revenue was mainly generated by distributing some famous
releases such as Operation Red Sea (AL77))), Men On The Dragon (%
JEA), Big Brother (KAL) and Tracey (224%) in Hong Kong. Hindi
Medium (ZEF4R), an Indian Hindi-language comedy-drama film, was
also distributed in Hong Kong and welcomed by the market. The Group
also participated in the advertising activities of Project Gutenberg (##££)
in Hong Kong. The famous releases outside Hong Kong were Back to
the Good Times (f/EFF AN B2 FE#) and The Devil Fish (A FTRALZK/)
20#Z5M%) in Taiwan and Along With the Gods: The Two Worlds (£ 78 [a]
77), Along With The Gods: The Last 49 Days (EIf#[A7T : #4RZFH))
and Wonderfull Liang Xi Mei (AT 13 #5 22 404F) in Singapore. For the
production sector, the Group will continue to invest independently and
cooperatively with local and overseas studios to produce movies and
TV programmes of high quality and carry out intellectual property
redevelopment in the foreseeable future. The Group's film library with
perpetual distribution rights kept on bringing steady licensing income to
the Group.
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Financial Review
Profit and loss

In 2018, the Group’s revenue increased by 4.4% to HK$1,051.0 million,
mainly reflecting the acquisition of the remaining 50% interest in our
Singapore business which changed the accounting of its results from
equity accounting to full consolidation upon the completion on 25
October 2017 and the disposal of the China Exhibition business in
2017. Significant revenue was derived from the China Exhibition
business in 2017 which was not repeated in 2018 after the disposal,
however, the Singapore business filled up the gap. The Group'’s gross
profit increased by 8.5% to HK$653.4 million and gross profit margin
improved slightly by 2.4 percentage points to 62.2%.

Share of profits of joint ventures in 2018 amounted to HK$35.8 million,
a decrease of 51.6%. The decrease was mainly reflecting the change of
our accounting of the Singapore business which contributed HK$43.8
million in 2017, results of the Taiwan business alone was HK$30.2
million in 2017, an increase of 18.6% in 2018.

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company amounted to
HK$52.5 million as compared to HK$2,242.1 million in last year. This
was mainly due to several one-off items with net gains of HK$2,747.8
million recorded in 2017 including gains on disposals, fair value change
of derivative financial instruments, loss on re-measurement of liability
component of convertible bonds, etc. No such one-off gains happened
in2018.

Statement of financial position

Our financial position remained healthy. The Group's net assets
decreased by HK$661.6 million, from HK$2,842.7 million as at 31
December 2017 to HK$2,181.1 million as at 31 December 2018. Total
assets decreased by HK$650.6 million to HK$4,026.2 million. These
were mainly due to the payment of a special dividend of HK$708.3
million in January 2018. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group was
HK$1,290.1 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,961.1 million). Non-
current pledged bank balances were kept at HK$137.0 million, at the
same level as last year. Outstanding borrowings amounted to
HK$1,299.3 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,234.9 million), which
comprised mainly interest-bearing bank loans. The interest-bearing bank
loans were secured by pledged cash, corporate guarantees, equity
shares and properties. The Group's gearing ratio (measured as total
borrowings to total assets) was maintained at 32.3% (31 December
2017: 26.4%) and the Group was in a net cash position (measured as
cash and bank deposits less total borrowings) of HK$127.7 million (31
December 2017: HK$910.6 million).
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Outlook

While concerns over rising US interest rates and the full impact of the
trade war between the world's two largest economic powers has yet to
be felt, it has nonetheless started to affect market sentiment and
consumer spending. The overall operating environment will become
increasingly challenging. We are making preparations in advance to
tackle the possible adversity. We will continue to strengthen our core
competencies, while at the same time focus on reviewing our upcoming
cinema expansion strategy as well as seek out further opportunities to
new investment projects, especially in the entertainment and lifestyle
industries.

In Taiwan, Vie Show will consistently stick with the cinema network
expansion strategy. Plenty of potential sites and more cinemas are
expected to be opened in the coming few years.

In Hong Kong, the Group will further invest into the film exhibition
business by opening one new cinema in the 2019. Riding on the success
of alternative contents in previous years, the Group will cooperate with
different business partners to offer a variety of events including live
broadcasting of Japanese and Korean mini-concerts and fans meeting in
the cinemas. It is expected that the growth of demand for alternative
shows will continue to bring considerable profit to the Group. At the
same time, the Group will keep selectively invest in film and video
production and distribution business as well as any high return projects.

In Singapore, the Group will continue to grow by actively pursuing
suitable cinema sites that bring us additional steadily cash flow. It is
expected a cinema in Funan with 7 screens will be launched in 2019.
Adopting the strategy to diversify the earning stream to achieve
sustainable growth, advanced settings such as 4DX™ motion seat hall
and Gemini couple seat to offer an extraordinary movie experience as
well as conventional halls to cater to the mass market will be provided
in some of our new sites.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to actively seek investment
opportunities in the regional media, entertainment, technology and
lifestyle sectors that are related to the Group's existing business, and at
the same time be prepared to seek other new businesses that shall add
value to our Shareholders. The directors are confident that the Group
will be able to achieve sustainable growth and deliver long term value to
the shareholders, and at the same time keep diversifying the business as
well.
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Financial Resources and Liquidity

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$1,290.1 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,961.1
million). The Group's total outstanding borrowings amounted to
HK$1,299.3 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,234.9 million), which
comprised mainly bank borrowings. The Group'’s gearing ratio, calculated
on the basis of total borrowings over total assets stood at a healthy
level of 32.3% (31 December 2017: 26.4%) and our cash to debt ratio
at 109.8% (31 December 2017: 173.7%). As of 31 December 2018, the
Group had HK$137.0 million pledged cash balances to secure its
banking facilities. In order to minimise potential risks for the Group’s
development and economic status, the management will keep
monitoring gearing and will make relative adjustments if necessary. The
Group at this moment has reasonable financial leverage. Meanwhile, the
Group takes advantage of equity financing together with available bank
loan facilities to fund the cinema projects, potential acquisitions of
profitable business opportunities so as to implement its expansion plan.
The Group believes that its current cash holding and available financial
facilities will provide sufficient resources for its working capital
requirements.

The Group's assets and liabilities are principally denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars, except for certain assets
and liabilities associated with the investments in Taiwan. The overseas
joint venture of the Group is operating in its local currencies and is
subject to minimal exchange risk. The directors will continue to assess
the exchange risk exposure, and will consider possible hedging measures
in order to minimize the risk at reasonable cost. The Group did not
have any significant contingent liabilities or off-balance sheet obligations
as of 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: Nil).
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 367 (2017: 394) permanent
employees. The Group remunerates its employees mainly by reference
to industry practice. The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and as at 31 December 2018, there were no
forfeited contributions arising from employees leaving the retirement
benefit scheme.

Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: Nil).
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Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance to
maintain the Group's competitiveness and lead to its healthy growth.
The Company has taken steps not only to comply with code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) under
Appendix 4 to the Listing Rules but also to aim at enhancing corporate
governance practices of the Group as whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of CG Code, with the exception of code
provisions A4.1 and E.I.2.

Pursuant to code provision A4.l of the CG Code, non-executive
directors of a listed issuer should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. All non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to the requirement of retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose
as being appointed for a specific term. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company's
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those in the
code provisions of the CG Code.

According to code provision E.|.2, Mr. Wu Kebo, the Chairman of the
Board, should have attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 12 June 2018. However, Mr. Wu Kebo was unable to
attend the abovementioned annual general meeting due to another
business commitment. Mr. Li Pei Sen, who took the chair of the said
annual general meeting, together with other members of the Board
who attended the annual general meeting were of sufficient caliber and
knowledge for answering questions at the annual general meeting.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"). The Company has made specific enquiries with all the
Directors and all of them have confirmed that they had complied with
the requirements set out in the Model Code and the Company's Code
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

TEERAERTE

ERERAARTLEE REMIAEEE ?7]&%
BRESRZE2E - ARABREUEHE - AE
iﬁd‘%ﬁﬂ']%fﬁ’d’@ﬁ%%ﬁé?ﬂ'](HE%E/D?B'JJ)
FRECTRIGS R TRAASRE 2 EBOEER
R

HE-_Z—N\FE+_A=+—HLEFE ARQRA—
BETREESRTAZTARHET  EA4I &
E. 12 65T R STER SN o

BEREEEATAEALIETFRNE - EWEITA
ZIHEMTESERETTPREZE  WARTER
BE - 2RIFPTESTEIEEEH  HEARALR

BIARMBZBERE &I ¢EAZS 1P
ﬁﬂﬁﬁAfﬁaﬁE R WEBREE HBAN
BEZEEHAR - Bt - KARAR/EERE

a’]?a EHRA DR EEE AT R TREEE R
AT TR & =i -

RBEFEI2GFRGY  EFSFERMARKEER
HEARRNR-ZE-N\FRA+T - ARTZRRA
FRE - A - AR REEREMAK T ARELE
ERRRAFRE - BELARRBFAGIEZ
FERELE ERHERRBFAGZHMESS
BB BB R8N R MBI R BF NS R E R o

ERETRSRS

AR RIS SR R B RN 8 AT L B
FARRECEAZAORETH (TN
B8 ARAERNZREFELAREN &
oo i e SO
EEATIRETRRARATAIREAE -

BREARRE (KE)BRAF

F3{2018

25



26

Corporate Governance Report

¥”“ ]E

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors (including the Chairman of the Board) and three independent
non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report.

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of
the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
throughout the year to discuss the overall strategies as well as operation
and financial performances of the Group. Matters relating to (i) the
formulation of the Group's overall strategy and directions; (i) any
material conflict of interest of substantial shareholders of the Company
or Directors; (iii) approval of the Group’s annual results, annual budgets,
interim results and other significant operational and financial transactions;
(iv) changes to the Company’s capital structure; and (v) major
appointments to the Board are reserved for decisions by the Board. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Group and implementation and execution of Board
policies and strategies to the executive Directors and management of
the Company.

All Directors have given sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the
Group and they have full and timely access to all relevant information
regarding the Group's affairs and have unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary. The Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.

Appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage has been effected by the
Company in respect of Directors’ liabilities arising from any legal action
that may be taken against the Directors in relation to corporate
activities.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, Board meetings and general
meetings of the Company were held and the composition of the Board
and the attendance of the Directors at these meetings are as follows:

Members

53-]

Executive Directors HITEF

Wu Kebo (Chairman) Hr R (&)
Wu Keyan (Note 1) hr i (fa 1)
Mao Yimin EER

Li Pei Sen 2R

Chow Sau Fong, Fiona BHEH
Independent non-executive Directors BUHBITESE
Leung Man Kit RRLE

Wong Sze Wing =HA

Fung Chi Man, Henry /EX

Note:

[ Ms. Wu Keyan is the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo.

At least |4 days' prior notice to the date of regular Board meetings was
given to all Directors and an agenda together with Board papers and
materials were sent to all Directors no less than three days before the
date of the Board meeting. All Directors were given opportunity to
include in the agenda any other matters that they would like to discuss
in the meeting. The Board committee also adopted and followed the
foregoing procedures for the Board committee meetings. All Directors
and Board committee members were urged to attend the Board
meeting and the Board committee meeting in person. If any Director or
Board committee member was unable to attend any such meeting in
person, participation through electronic means had been arranged and
made available to such Director and Board committee member.

If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being
considered in the Board meeting, the Director having such potential
interest in the matter shall abstain from voting. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest were present at such
meeting to deal with such conflict of interest issues.

The company secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and Board committee meeting and, within a
reasonable time after each meeting, the draft minutes were circulated
to all Directors for comment and the final and approved version of the
minutes was sent to all Directors for their records. The Board
committee had also adopted and followed the same practices and
procedures as used in the Board meetings.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive Director
a written confirmation of his/her independence and the Board considers
all of them to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The appointment of independent non-executive Directors adheres to
the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
7 June 2016, Mr. Fung Chi Man, Henry (“Mr. Fung”) is a partner of
Holman Fenwick Willan (“HFW"), which is currently providing services
to the Company and one of its subsidiaries relating to a debt collection
case, the Company is satisfied that the appointment of Mr. Fung as an
independent non-executive Director is justified due to the following
reasons:

@

®)

(©

(d)

©

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Mr. Fung has not had and does not have any executive or
management role or functions in the Company and its
subsidiaries, nor has he been involved in the Company's day-
today management and operations or employed by any member
of the Group;

Mr. Fung does not have any familial or contractual relationships
with any directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, nor does he hold any other position with
the Company or its connected persons, or any of their respective
holding company or subsidiaries;

Mr. Fung has over 20 years of experience and knowledge of the
legal industry. The Company believes that Mr. Fung is able to
exercise his professional judgment and draw upon his extensive
legal knowledge for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole, in particular, the independent
shareholders;

Mr. Fung is able to confirm his independence to the Exchange in
respect of each of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules other than Rule 3.13(3) which considers whether an
individual is independent if he is a director, partner or principal of
a professional adviser which currently provides services to a listed
issuer, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
or core connected persons; and

HFW is currently providing services to the Company and one of
its subsidiaries in relation to one particular debt collection case.
The case is being handled by other solicitors of HFW, and Mr.
Fung personally has not been directly or indirectly involved in
handling such particular case or otherwise in the provision of any
legal advice or services to the Company and any of its subsidiaries.
Therefore, the Company considers that this should not affect Mr.
Fung's independence. Further, whilst Mr. Fung remains a director
of the Company, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
intends to engage HFW for any services after the appointment of
Mr. Fung, except for the ongoing debt collection case. Mr. Fung
will also excuse himself from any discussion of the Board involving
HFW as legal adviser for a particular matter, handling dispute
between HFW and the Company (if any) or reviewing the
performance of HFW.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

STEBUIFRTETERB/ EMARE 33K ﬁﬁi&%ﬁ

BRT B 285 o
FRACAZAMMAHE - 5;

c MIARFHY R -F
%Yf‘ﬁi(ﬁ%f‘ﬁiﬁ

RERRMIT(TEEX D ZAa8A MERXHE
E—REBEBREHAADR RIE L — R

BRBRMIRT - ARE
FMTEEARDEAXIS

@

(®)

©

©)

(©

ERBELEEEZERBY
BRAERMT -

Z%f‘iiikvﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁé\ﬂi@ﬂ&ﬁiﬂﬂ% AfE
EEFATHREERRE B  TE2ER
AEIIE %%ﬁ&%@ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁilﬁﬂﬁk

SUNCIN

HAELERARBEMNESE SREBAER
TERREERRAWES B 2 EABEAL
EEAREHANOBEE  TERARARHE

Fﬁ@)\i‘ﬁzﬁi”XEZEﬁi NI
A AR T B A AL

ISR R RER B0FE5 NS E MM -
ARRBEE HELS f?ﬁ%%#ll " I

HEEZ@MBRARE MERR (CERE
SIRARER) BB R A

S RE B 22 Pt BT AR BIZE 33 R PTER
BHERAERREB I - HFE3130)I1K(EH
%WMIEJ}\iﬁIEEmLm%ﬁ)\ - EE
NEIRBEER B ZERME R A% 0
ﬁAihf,\HE%kz;Ef%EEFEIZi% CABA
REBA ZBALREEE L) BRIN: &

BRXBAL - FRERBEREFRAR
BIRET AR — B AR RERY - %5
HHmERX z HMmEmEIE - BFEEHE
AT EERREERSEEEZ TR HM
ARAREEMANBARRHREIMERER
FRG o Bt - RARRB R LB RL A
BRBEEZBIIME WH BBEEDAR
NEEFHM  BREEBBREMSI K
AAREEFAMBRRAEENEZEBLER
ZEERURHEMMRE B ELTE#E
FREBI S EFREDEREAR B2
BERNEARNR A (G ) B EL X
ZERHAZEMEEGT W °



Corporate Governance Report

¥"“ ]E

To the best knowledge of the Company, except for (i) Ms. Wu who is
the sister of Mr. Wu; (i) Mr. Li who is the associate chairman of Orange
Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company Limited (a
company which is owned as to 80% by Mr. Wu) and the interests as set
out in the paragraphs headed "“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” in the “Report of the
Directors” in this annual report, there is no other financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among members of the
Board.

In case there is any newly appointed Director, he/she will be provided
with necessary induction and information to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other relevant
legal and regulatory requirements.

All the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. All the Directors, namely Mr. Wu, Mr. Mao, Mr. Li, Ms. Wu, Ms.
Chow, Mr. Leung, Ms. Wong and Mr. Fung, were provided with reading
materials on updates about taxation, duties of directors and role and
function of board committees and corporate governance. All Directors
have provided the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out
in Appendix |4 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
controls and risk management systems of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wu, is responsible for providing
leadership of the Board and ensuring all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at the Board meeting. In addition, he is charged with
the duty to ensure that the Directors receive in a timely manner
adequate, complete and reliable information in relation to the Group’s
affairs. The Chairman also encourages the Directors to actively
participate in and to make a full contribution to the Board so that the
Board functions effectively and acts in the best interest of the Company.

The CEO, Mr. Mao, has been focusing on strategic planning and
assessing merger and acquisition opportunities for the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship between the Chairman and the CEO of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws,
accomplishing the same purpose as being appointed for a specific term.
At the Board meetings and Board committee meetings where
constructive views and comments of the non-executive Directors are
given, the non-executive Directors provide independent judgement on
the issues relating to the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Hei Ming has been appointed as the company secretary
(“Company Secretary”) of the Company with effect from 15 August
2017. The Company Secretary needs to support the Board by ensuring
a good information flow within the Board and that Board's policy and
procedures are followed. The Company Secretary should report to the
Chairman of Board or the CEO on all related matters. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Company Secretary confirmed that she
had taken no less than |15 hours of relevant professional training.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) on 9 October 1998 and formulated its written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules,
which have been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee’s
members comprised three independent non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Leung (who also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Fung and Ms. Wong.
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During the year ended 3| December 2018, two Audit Committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of the members of
the Audit Committee is set out as follows:

Members

K&

Leung Man Kit (Chairman) RRE(EE)
Wong Sze Wing =HTRE

Fung Chi Man, Henry BEX

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s financial control, risk management and
internal control systems (including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget)
and risk management as delegated by the Board, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and engagement of
the external auditors for audit and non-audit services. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge
its duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group
and discussed and reviewed financial reporting matters including the
interim and audited financial statements. In addition, the Audit
Committee also reviewed the engagement of the external auditors and
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's interal control and
risk management systems and made recommendations to the Board.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment or resignation of the external
auditors.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising non-
executive directors only, and at least one of them is an independent
non-executive Director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. Our Directors confirm that we had complied with
such requirements during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee™) on 8 October 2004 and has formulated
its written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code, which
have been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, being Mr. Wu, and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Leung and Ms. Wong (who also acts as the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee). The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure
for the remuneration packages of all the Directors and senior
management of the Company according to its terms of reference,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for the loss or termination of their
office or appointment. The remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company is determined by reference to factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and senior management, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance
based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is required to consult the Chairman of
the Board regarding the remuneration of the executive Directors, and
members of the Remuneration Committee have access to professional
advice on remuneration of executive Directors, if considered necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2018 to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee also reviewed and approved the terms
of service contracts of the executive Directors. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2018
and the attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee
to the meetings of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Members

K&

Wong Sze Wing (Chairman) =R (E/E)
Wu Kebo P

Leung Man Kit RREE
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Pursuant to the CG Code provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management of the Group (which include the
executive Directors only) by band for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
FriMEE CGex)

< 1,000,000
1,000,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-10,000,000
> 10,000,001

Details of emoluments of each Director are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements on pages 103 to 104 of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 26 March 2012 and has formulated its
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG code, which have
been uploaded on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Nomination Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, being Mr. Wu (who also acts as the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee) and two independent non-executive
Directors, being Ms. Wong and Mr. Leung. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying individuals qualified to become
Board members, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection, appointment or re-appointment of individuals
nominated for directorships, in particular the Chairman of the Board
and the chief executive. The Nomination Committee, in making such
selection and recommendation, will take into account factors such as
professional qualifications, experience, academic background, etc.

The members of the Nomination Committee have access to
independent professional advice on the nomination of executive
Directors, if considered necessary.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy™)
on 28 August 2013 to enhance the quality of its performance. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
diversity at the Board level for and on behalf of the Board in term of
(including but not limited to) gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and such other qualities as
may be considered important by the Nomination Committee from time
to time. In identifying suitable candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination Committee considers candidates on merit against
objective criteria and also the benefits of diversity on the Board. In
reviewing the Board composition, the Committee considers the benefits
of all aspects of diversity including, but not limited to, those described
above, in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of skills,
experience and diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will
review the Board Diversity Policy in a timely manner to ensure that the
Board Diversity Policy is effective.
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As at the date of this report, it is noted that 3 out of 8 Directors,
representing approximately 38%, are female. The Directors’ ages are
widely spread between 40 and 71. Regarding the educational and
professional background, the Board members have accounting, finance,
telecommunication and general business knowledge. It is therefore
believed that the Board has achieved diversity in terms of gender, age,
educational and professional background.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy™)
which sets out the selection criteria and nomination procedures to
identify, select and recommend candidates for Directors.

Selection Criteria

When evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships, the
members of the Nomination Committee or the Board shall consider
the following criteria:

(@)  Character and integrity;

(b)  Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company's business and
corporate strategies;

() The Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on
the Board;

(d)  Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

(e) In case of independent non-executive Directors, whether the
candidates would be considered independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules;

(f)  In case of re-election, the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the Director to be reelected and the level of
participation and performance on the Board and the other criteria
set out in this section; and

(g)  Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company's business.
These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive

and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to
nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination Procedures

@

®)

©

©)

©

®

(8

(h)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board identifies potential
candidates including but not limited to internal promotion, re-
designation, referral by other member of the management and
external recruitment agencies and/or advisors. The Nomination
Committee then develops a short list of candidates and agrees on
proposed candidate(s);

Proposed candidate(s) will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, biographical details, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director. The Nomination
Committee may request candidates to provide additional
information and documents, if considered necessary;

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal
on appointment of new director and the personal information (or
relevant details) of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate such
candidate(s) based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate(s) is qualified for directorship;

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as
a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee shall evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship;

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable);

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a
meeting of the Nomination Committee. For filling a casual
vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for re-election or election at a
general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations or recommendations for the Board's consideration
and the Board shall make recommendations to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election or election of Director(s) at
the general meeting;

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election or re-election at a general
meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will
set out the names, brief biographies (including qualifications and
relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration and
any other information, as required pursuant to the applicable
laws, rules and regulations including the Listing Rules, of the
proposed candidates; and

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to
its recommendation of candidates to stand for election or re-
election at any general meeting.
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Monitor and Review

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and report to the Board when necessary. Also, the
Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and
will discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2018 to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; to consider and recommend to the Board the re-election of the
Directors; and to review the annual confirmation of independence
submitted by the independent non-executive Directors.

Members

KE

Wu Kebo (Chairman) hek (F/F)
Leung Man Kit 2R

Wong Sze Wing E

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the fees paid/payable to the
Group's auditors, Messrs. KPMG, are set out as follows:

Services Rendered
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Fee Paid/Payable

Friz RS 2t ENER

HK$'000

T

Audit and audit-related services EZ N EBAZIE AR 2276

Non-audit services IEEZ RS 1,077
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL HUMBRRZEE

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the financial
statements for each financial year with support from the finance
department of the Company and to ensure that the relevant accounting
policies are observed and the accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants are complied with in the
preparation of such financial statements and to report the financial
affairs of the Company in a true and fair manner.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements of the Group is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 68 to 72 of this
annual report.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concem.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems with the aim at
(i) safeguarding the Group's assets against unauthorised use or
disposition; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records; and (iii) ensuring
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The risk
management and internal control systems of the Group comprises a
well-established organisation structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. Such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate,
the risk associated in failing to achieve certain business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group established an internal audit department at the end of the
year 2012 to assess its risk management and internal control systems,
formulate an impartial opinion on the systems, and report its findings to
the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Board and the senior
management concerned on a regular basis as well as following up on all
reports to ensure that all issues have been satisfactorily resolved.

Review of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions of different systems.
The Group's risk management procedures include the following
elements:

. Identify significant risks in the Group's operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group's business;

. Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

. Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, confirmed that they had
conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 3| December
2018, where some findings have been identified and reported to the
Board. The Board considers the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group effective and adequate throughout the year.

Regarding the disclosure of inside information, the Board had
implemented procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information so that potential inside information
can be promptly identified and escalated up for deciding whether an
announcement should be made in order to ensure compliance with the
continuous obligations under the Listing Rules and the statutory
obligation to disclose information under the SFO.

No material internal control deficiency that may affect the shareholders
of the Company has come to the attention of the Audit Committee or
the Board. The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
complied with code provisions under C.2 on risk management and
internal control as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company can deposit a written request (stating the objects of the
meeting and signed by the shareholders concerned) to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) for the transaction of any
business specified in the written request at the principal place of
business of the Company for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the request (after being verified to be valid)
proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholders concerned, or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may by themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
the deposit of the request.

Shareholders, representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders as at
the date of deposit of the requisition, can by written requisition request
the Company to (a) give to the shareholders of the Company notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
removed at the next annual general meeting of the Company; and (b)
circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matters referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at any general meeting. If the requisition
requires a notice of a resolution, it must be deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company not less than 6 weeks before the
date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other requisition,
the written requisition must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company not less than | week before the date of the
general meeting.

If a shareholder of the Company, who is duly qualified to attend and
vote at the general meetings of the Company, intends to propose a
person other than a Director for election as a Director at any general
meeting, the shareholder concermed shall lodge with the principal place
of business of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary
(i) a written notice of his/her intention to propose that person for
election as a Director at the general meeting; and (i) a notice in writing
by that person of his/her willingness to be elected together with the
necessary information within the period commencing no earlier than
seven days after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the Company's
website.
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The shareholders of the Company should send their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

The shareholders of the Company may send their other enquiries to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary or Company's
Corporate Communication Department at the principal place of
business of the Company situated at 24/F, Capital Centre, 151
Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or via email address:
in@goldenharvest.com.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant
information to the shareholders of the Company in a timely manner.
The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between shareholders of the Company and the
Directors. The Directors and the external auditor will attend the annual
general meetings. The Directors will answer questions raised by the
shareholders on the performance of the Group.

Review of the general meeting proceedings is carried out by the Board
from time to time so as to ensure that the Company has followed the
best corporate governance practices. Notice of the general meeting
together with the circular setting out details of each of the proposed
resolutions (including procedures for demanding a poll where required
under the CG Code), voting procedures and other relevant information
are delivered to all the shareholders of the Company with sufficient
notice as required under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of the
Company before the date appointed for the general meeting. At the
commencement of the general meeting, procedures for demanding
(where required) and conducting a poll are explained by the chairman
of the meeting to the shareholders of the Company and the votes cast
are properly counted and recorded by the scrutineer appointed by the
Company. Poll results of the general meeting are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the day of the
general meeting.

The Company's website (http://www.osgh.com.hk) also contains an
“Investor Relations” section which enables the Company's shareholders to
have timely access to the Company’s press release, financial reports,
announcements and circulars.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there has been no change
in the Company's memorandum of association and the Bye-laws. The
Company's memorandum of association and the Bye-laws are available on
the Company's website (http://www.osgh.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

We recognise that shareholders, customers and other important
stakeholders expect us to conduct business in a manner that positively
contributes to society and the environment. Since 2012, the Group has
reported annually on its environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
policies, practices and performance.

This report is prepared in accordance with the provisions of the latest
ESG Reporting Guide issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
("HKEX"™), with reference to the Global Reporting Initiative (“GRI"). It
provides an overview of the Group's actions and achievements for the
period covering | January 2018 to 31 December 2018, and includes
information from previous years for comparison, where relevant.

This year, we have extended the scope of this report so that it covers
both our Hong Kong and Singapore operations. The report does not
cover our cinema business in Taiwan, where we operate through joint
ventures in which we only have a minority stake.

Unless otherwise specified, the environmental data disclosed for Hong
Kong covers 7 multiplex cinemas (including 2 newly opened cinemas
during the reporting period and excluding GH Tsing Yi Cinema which
closed in the year), our corporate office, a staff apartment, a warehouse
and Jod de Rolls café. The data for Singapore covers |3 multiplex
cinemas (including | newly opened cinema during the reporting period)
and our corporate office.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT REVIEW AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

We regularly review stakeholder feedback to understand what matters
most to individuals and organisations that could influence our business
success. Our key stakeholders include customers, employees, investors,
suppliers and business partners, the community and regulators.

Since 2016, the Group has engaged an independent consultant to
review stakeholder feedback collected or received via various channels,
including customer feedback via email and social media platforms, media
coverage, employee surveys, and internal control reports during the
reporting period.

Based on the analysis of the stakeholder feedback, we have identified
the following ten material Aspects within the HKEX ESG Reporting
Guide that are disclosed in this report. These issues have been validated
by the Group's senior management.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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SUBJECT AREA CATEGORY ISSUE
TEHR <Pl 3
Environment [ Emissions
B5 BER)
2. Use of Resources
BIRERA
3. The Environment and Natural Resources
RERARAER
Social Employment and Labour Standards 4. Employment
e 1R K 55 TR =
5. Health and Safety
RREETE
6. Development and Training
R RIE
Operating Practices 7. Supply Chain Management
ZEED HrEEER
8. Product Responsibility
EmEE
9. Anti-corruption
RES
Community 0. Community Investment
) HEREE
Note: Given our business nature and locations of operation, the risk of child labour — Bzt : ZEREPIH) ZE 1 E RASE A - BATHEF LR
and forced labour in our business is low, and therefore we do not consider BITREHS Ty EBRBIE - WAL TRR 4T
“Labour Practices” to be a material concern. The Group ensures compliance EH ) BEARE o I [BIERE TFAEE HTE 5 AT
with all relevant labour laws governing minimum working age in the markets BEHRERIETIEFR MRS TP - KEBRE
in which it operates. Forced labour is strictly prohibited. FEFERIST -

BAZANRE (KE) BR AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to minimising its impact on the environment,
and tracks key performance metrics to monitor waste generation,
carbon emissions, and consumption of energy and water. Using natural
resources responsibly is not only the right thing to do, it often results in
improved efficiency and cost savings, which have tangible business
benefits. Beyond complying with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group continually seeks to optimise its environmental performance
through facilities and process improvements, and by encouraging our
staff and customers to adopt environmentally-friendly behaviour.

Key Performance Metrics (Hong Kong)

Use of resources

BREM
Electricity consumption

Electricity intensity'
REZE
Water consumption

FEKE

Water consumption intensity”

FEKEE?

Emissions

2358

Carbon emissions®
e

Scope | — Direct?
gE —FB®
Scope 2 — Indirect®
#0E2 — H#E

Carbon emissions intensity (Scope | & 2)

A EE (BE | K2)

Other air emissions®

HithEER PR

NO,
REy
SO,
ety
PM emissions

RERL Y HE R

Waste
&Y

Used cooking oil recycled’

& o1 B R
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Unit
By

kKWh

TEE
KWh/m?
TRE,FIK
m3

AR
m3/m?

SR FTR

Unit
By

tonnes CO,e
AR ES
tonnes CO,e
NWE—E L IRE =
tonnes CO,e/m?
AE—E/IRES

LRSI R

Unit
B

litres

AF

RREM

REBERNREEHRBERNNTE  TEEHR
RBRGERR - NESREMES - WHBUARFERERK -
NEEFREFARAERTERERNSE L&
TBEABRME REERA  SREREBHR
i o BRESTHBDEDNERIN  AEE-ESKES
WERENIER  ARZEETMEPEERRRE

FEUMRRIRERR -

HEAXER(TR)

2018
—B-N\F

2,715,980
152
2,042
0.11

2018
—E-N\F

22
1,417

0.08

FHK

19,651
126

1,772
2018
—2-N\F

936

2017
—T—+F

2,929,181
183
10,905
0.68

2017
T4

26
Lell

0.10

21,700
140

1,952

2017
—T—+F

2,592
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PR IR (W in i)

Key Performance Metrics (Singapore)

Use of resources Unit 2018
BEREM By

Electricity consumption kWh 9,543,782
HEE F R B

Electricity intensity® KWh/m? 188
FEHE® TR Ik

Water consumption m? 38,259
FEKE 7K

Water consumption intensity? m3/m? 0.75
Rk MK TR

Emissions Unit 2018
23587 B

Carbon emissions

1537 37

Scope 2 — Indirect’ tonnes CO,e 4,001
#E2 — R AW —RLIREE

Carbon emissions intensity (Scope 2 only) tonnes CO,e/m? 0.08

AT (EREE2) N —EILIREE T IR

REREDRMACNEBOGH (BETRZH - 2
AMAE  —HEIES  —EEER—HMEE)

I Electricity intensity is the total electricity consumed in kilowatt-hours per [
unit of gross floor area (GFA) in square metres of our premises in Hong

Kong (including 7 cinemas, our corporate office, a staff apartment, a
warehouse and a café).

F¥okrEmE((EEEE]D AN TRREE

=

Water consumption intensity is the total volume of freshwater consumed 2 FRBENBEMZEMBERRBNLITRRKEE -
in cubic metres per unit of GFA.

Carbon emissions are generated by the use of electricity in all our 3 WM BEMAEBEEPFERENURBEE
operations and the use of fuel of our fleet which consists of three vehicles B (e =8 T = AR ) (EAEATEE - BFIPME%S
in Hong Kong, All our sites use centralized air conditioning. The Group PR AR R 228 o 7N S B 4 22 8 P (0 R e i Y
does not have data for, nor operational control over, the consumption REIGIE R EAE A SRR EE L - SRR E
and selection of refrigerants used in air conditioning, and therefore BT R R EAHEGER -

emissions from refrigerants are not included in the scope of this

calculation.

The calculation for vehicle emissions uses emission factors provided in 4 MEBRRBB M ARRR  HeREARE
HKEX's toolkit for ESG reporting. BT AEMIRHOFERRBTE

The calculation of scope 2 emissions uses emission factors found in the 5 HE2BMDBRBEARREHERFERBERE
2017 sustainability reports of our utility providers: CLP and Hong Kong R FARHRERRRERAEBERREEE -
Electric.

Other air emissions are generated from the combustion of fuel by our 6 H RSB T B B R P A

fleet.

The used cooking oil is generated by The Sky cinema and Joo de Rolls 7 BERIM T The Sky 2Bt 52 Jod de RollsHIBFEFTE 4 -
café. No other operations generate used cooking oil. R H At ST EE AL RE RO ©

Electricity intensity is the total electricity consumed in kilowatt-hours per 8 FEEE DRI IS (BIE BRI
unit of gross floor area (GFA) in square metres of our premises in RARPAE)BFHKEEME ([REME]) FR
Singapore (including |13 cinemas and our corporate office). WTRFEES -

Scope 2 emissions conversion factor for electricity kWh to CO,e taken 9 HELENHFHEREHEATRRERE — QbR

from the Source: Singapore Energy Statistics 2018, Energy Market
Authority; refer to “2017 Average Operating Margin” in Table 7.1
Electricity Grid Emission Factor and Upstream Fugitive Methane Emission
Factor (p.103).

EETRANTERIR « 201 8FF W EER LT -
REREMSEIER  20K7. ERHMEAE T8 ik
RFGHERE T (5 1038) /9 [2017 FF 5478

%] -

BAZANRE (KE) BR AT
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Promoting Energy Efficiency

The Group's most significant impact on the environment is through our
electricity consumption. We need electricity to power the lights, air
conditioning and projection equipment in our cinemas, as well as in the
daily operation of our corporate offices, warehouse and café.

Air conditioning is a major source of our electricity consumption. To
achieve the best viewing quality, our cinemas must maintain an optimal
indoor environment by controlling the temperature, humidity and air
quality. As far as possible, the Group seeks to improve the energy
efficiency of air conditioning units in our cinemas.

We preferentially select energy saving technologies, such as LED lights
and laser projectors used in our Singapore operations, and promote
behavioural changes in our employees by encouraging them to tumn off
non-essential lighting and other equipment when not in use.

Reducing Carbon and Other Air Emissions

Indirect greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, or Scope 2 emissions,
associated with our electricity consumption constitute the Group's main
source of carbon emissions. By reducing our electricity use, we can
significantly reduce our GHG emissions and contribute to mitigating
climate change.

In Hong Kong, the Group owns and operates a small vehicle fleet
comprising two private cars, which consume petrol, and one diesel
powered light goods vehicle. The combustion of fuel in these vehicle
engines also generates GHG emissions, known as Scope | or direct
emissions, as well as other air emissions such as nitrogen oxides (NO,),
sulphur oxides (SOy), and particulate matter (PM), which can contribute
to air pollution.

The Group is piloting innovative ways to electronically deliver movies,
which not only reduced carbon emissions from transportation and
product delivery, it can also reduce the need for physical storage space
and the associated electricity consumption.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Responsible Use of Resources

The Group is committed to using natural resources responsibly and
minimising waste. Other than electricity, other resources we use in
reasonably significant quantities include water, paper and plastic. We
promote reduction of waste at source, and recycling, to prevent
valuable resources from ending up in landfills (Hong Kong) or being
incinerated (Singapore). Over the last few years, we have implemented
the following initiatives across our Hong Kong and Singapore operations
to promote responsible use of resources:

Water:
. We encourage our employees and patrons to be environmentally

sensitive and use less water by posting reminders in toilets and
the office pantry

Paper:

. We promote two-sided printing in our two offices

. In Hong Kong, we launched an intranet system to digitalise
internal communications and facilitate a paperless workflow
system

. In Hong Kong, we utilise online platforms to promote new

movies instead of posting paper posters

. In Singapore, we encourage e-payments through our mobile
ticketing service

Plastics:

. We encouraged customers to either retumn the 3D glasses to us
after use or bring their own 3D glasses to the cinema

There is currently limited legislation in our operating locations
concerning the disposal of non-hazardous waste. Most of the waste
generated in our cinemas and offices is disposed of via centralised waste
collection channels managed by the mall or office building in which our
facilities are located, and therefore it is difficult to track the total quantity
of general waste generated by the Group. Another challenge is that
some of the waste collected at our cinemas may be brought in by our
customers or be packaged items, which means we do not have full
control over the amount of waste generated.

In Hong Kong, where we operate Jod de Rolls café and have some food
preparation at The Sky cinema, we engage a certified third-party to
collect and recycle our used cooking oil. The cooking oil collected is
used to produce biodiesel and biofuels, which can be used as a cleaner,
greener alternative to fossil fuels for transportation and in industry.
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The Hong Kong SAR Government plans to introduce a charge for
disposal of municipal solid waste as early as 2019. The proposed
charging models include charging by volume, by mandating the purchase
of designated garbage bags, or charging by weight. This new legislation
could translate into additional unforeseen costs from 2020, and it will be
important for the Group to find ways to monitor and manage the waste
generated by its operations. We continue to explore ways to increase
the recycling rate of disposables consumed during customers’ visits to
our cinemas. In 2017, we communicated with waste contractors of
different operations and cinemas to understand how general waste is
handled.

In future, we will also try to keep better track of our suppliers’
environmental performance and may consider incorporating
environmental performance related requirements in tenders and
contracts to promote sustainability in our value chain.

PEOPLE RESPONSIBILITY

Caring for Our People

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 367 full time employees. We
strive to treat our people with respect and ensure they feel valued.
Happy employees also mean a better experience for our customers.

To attract and retain talent in highly competitive markets, the Group
offers competitive remuneration and benefits including medical
insurance, contributions to retirement schemes, discounted movie
tickets, and discretionary bonuses based on performance reviews that
are periodically conducted with all staff.

We believe in providing equal opportunities and take a zero-tolerance
approach to discrimination and workplace harassment in any form.
Having employees from a diverse range of backgrounds, experience,
and perspectives gives us an advantage in understanding and meeting
the needs of our equally diverse customer base. Our policy is to
recognise and reward employees based on individual merit and
performance. We stringently comply with all applicable labour legislation
in our locations of operation.

Development and Training

We provide relevant training and development opportunities to ensure
our people are set up for success. All frontline staff receive
comprehensive inception training in the skills and knowledge they need
to do their jobs well. In-house and external training courses are also
provided to relevant staff to enhance their work-related skills and
knowledge.

The Group offers various options for education subsidies and
examination leave, to encourage our people to pursue lifelong leaming
and personal development.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

EEFRBNTEE T - NFsBEEEH T E
BEVNER - ZRNREEABRREBRHKE
BRHBERENRRAILBEEWRE « ZIEF LA
BREELRE T -ZFARNEINEINKA - W
BAREEVESHERNMEBEHEBRESFEDN
TE - BBEERRNARS T PBEEMERD
—RUERROEWEE - Rt F RAETR
BEMTIROBENREOEETER  THRREY
FEIETT 3 o

A BHAPMEROREBIEREEENRESA
X WA BEE BAETRIR A A A A B IR F 4R A
M ER - DMRERFIEBERA AL -

RIESE

MIERT

BE_Z-N\F+-A=1+—H KAEEEM367
ZEBES - KBNS EREHEFEET - #R
BIRIRER BITERMRTEREEFFEE
FERR -

REHFHRNTIERIIMBEAS - REEEH
AT ONHNEEN  BREERE RIS
R BRI URBRBEME 8 TEIETH
R W BB B BAMEAL -

BPRERHTFSERENEEN  BHEMERARE
BMTEGMBRERRERREE - BATEESR
KHREBHNEERBMEERRLNES TR
MFERTEREES - HAWEREREEANE
MAKRE - RGWEBHE T - HMIERIBETEED
BRI E RS EED -

R R

HFRFEEENEINERES  URERERMVE
TEUSAT) - 2R8R14RE TS 2ma) AR -
TR ST TYRPT R Y SRE M I8 © [ A R A
S TRHEANIRINPEIRIE - MIRHREETIE
BRARFAEM A -

FEBERMEEXESHERZARE  USBHET
BRRFEBMEAERE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BIE  -lERELSHRE

Health and Safety

The safety of our people and customers is a priority and we are guided
by our commitment, “Safety Comes First”. Frequent inspections ensure
that fire safety provisions at our cinemas are of the highest standard,
and our frontline staff are well informed of fire safety best practices
through regular training. Whilst the risk of serious workplace injury for
our industry is relatively low, we strive to maintain our goal of zero
accidents, and continue to monitor and improve our safety practices.
No major work-related injuries were reported in 2018.

At the corporate offices, we also actively promote occupational health
and safety guidelines to keep staff aware of possible risks. The Group
also provides free medical check-ups for some of our long-serving
employees.

Employee Well-being

The nature of the entertainment industry is about providing enjoyable
experiences. We believe it is important that we facilitate an enjoyable
working environment and promote work-life balance for our staff. The
Group organises regular recreational activities throughout the year to
encourage team bonding and boost morale.

OPERATING PRACTICES & PRODUCT
RESPONSIBILITY

Service Excellence

Our mission is to provide superior entertainment experiences that
excite and delight our customers. Whether it is the movies we produce
ourselves, or those we select to show in our cinemas, our customers
expect the best movies, viewed in the highest quality, with responsible
and diverse options to cater to different tastes. Our professional
sourcing team actively seeks different genres, from blockbusters to
cultural programmes, musicals and sporting events.

The Group continues to invest in new technologies such as
TechnoMotion Chairs, D-Box, Dolby and AURO sound systems,
BARCO Laser projectors and IMAX® screens to provide our audiences
with a world-class viewing experience.

As we serve food and beverages in our cinemas, we take precautions to
ensure food safety. In Hong Kong our relevant staff attend Hygiene
Supervisor Training Courses organized by Food and Environmental
Hygiene Department, and in Singapore, all staff are required by the
National Environment Agency to obtain a food hygiene certificate
before they can handle food.

The Group uses a “mystery shopper” programme to spot check the
quality of customer service delivered at our cinemas. Based on the
feedback, our operations team identifies employees with outstanding
performance, who are rewarded. They also work with employees who
may have underperformed to determine ways to improve. This helps to
boost our customer experience and encourages all our team members
to provide a distinguished cinematic experience.
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Protection of Data Privacy

We implement stringent data protection mechanisms to ensure the
personal information of our customers and members remains secure.
Staff responsible for handling private data follow clear guidelines and are
regularly reminded of personal data protection measures and
regulations. The Group also delivers regular workshops to brush up the
skills of customer facing staff.

To protect our audiences’ privacy when processing online payments for
movie tickets and via our online membership system, we have
implemented strict data protection mechanisms to secure the
confidentiality of our customers’ data.

Anti-Corruption

Integrity and accountability are the cornerstones of our business. We
are conscious of, and thus constantly monitor, risks to business ethics in
our operating environments by implementing a strong internal control
framework and policies. Our Audit Committee and senior management
also hold tight to the principle of zero-tolerance on corruption and
fraud. Their commitment is reflected in our policy on the subject, as
well as within many of our operational procedures.

In 2018, no incidents of corruption have been identified or reported.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to sharing the joy of movies with the
communities in which we operate. We partner with local charities to
offer free viewing events to underprivileged children, low income
families, and marginalised groups. In Hong Kong, the Group organised a
free movie screening event with for |10 beneficiaries and volunteers of
the Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children. The event
provided free popcom and drinks and included a game and prize giving
activity.

In Singapore, through our new GV Cares initiative, we partnered with
Andrew's Autism School, the Deaf and Hard of Hearing Federation
(Singapore), Children's Wishing Well and others to offer free screening
activities. We also accept applications from charities and other social
organisations to use big screens at selected cinemas for fundraising
screenings, free screenings for their beneficiaries, and educational
screenings for film students. We participate in job placement initiatives
by various government bodies to offer employment to underprivileged
communities.

Every December, our Singapore team runs a super draw campaign for
members of the GV Movie Club to accumulate transactions and win
free tickets. We give members the option to donate their tickets for
free film screenings to charitable organisations and in 2018, 543 tickets
were donated.

In the future, we will continue to work with different community
partners make contributions in our community programmes.
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Reference to HKEX ESG Guide

Subject areas & aspects

FRERKEE

A. Environmental

A. BiE

Al Emissions

Al BB

Disclosures

BREER

General disclosure information

—RBEEEH

KPI'Al.l The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BRERIEIR ALl IR K AR HE
MR -

KPI' Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total
and, where appropriate intensity
FASRBRUEIRAI2 BERBEHNER
(408 ) BE

KPI'Al.3 Total hazardous waste produced and,
where appropriate, intensity.
BREBIEIRAI3 ELEBEZFEEYE
BERIEH) ZE

KPI' Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced
and, where appropriate, intensity.
RREBIERAI4 FELEZER Y
ER(WER)ZE -

KPI' A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.
RASRIBETURIRALS il B (R Rk = A915
WERFTIFR -

KPI' Al1.6 Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

RASEAE BUIRIZ A6 Ml N =
FEEYRY T L~ IRE L 2B E R AT
EHR -

BXFREE  tEREABEESIRS

Contents reference/Description

RBE RS

Environmental Responsibility section
REEEEMH

Key Performance Metrics (Hong Kong);
Key Performance Metrics (Singapore)
RIS (BE)

RS AE RUE R IR

Not a material issue for the Group.

WHAREBENEAZE -

Data currently not available.

B A3 & Al S BUR ©

Reducing Carbon and Other Air Emissions

B DB IR L M R SR IR

Responsible Use of Resources

i
Em

NBBEEREERER

BREARRE (KE)BRAF
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Subject areas & aspects

FRERKER

A2 Use of Resources

A2 EREH

Disclosures

General disclosure information

—REEEH

KPI' A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and intensity
BREMIBREAL KHE 5B &
&R R REEREE o

KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and
intensity

BRBE VISR AL BFEKEREE -

KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

FABRIE IBIE A3 fi Ul BEIR (E A 3z it
SIRFTEHR -

KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
RABEAE BT A24 i 2 S BRGE PR 2K L
Al B (EM] [ AR I KMz a1
RT3 R

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

RSB RUEIR ALS R AT B2 /T
HIAEE (AW E) R (WEH) G4 EE
frfh 8 -
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Contents reference/Description

RBERS|

Environmental Responsibility section
RIREEEMH

Key Performance Metrics (Hong Kong);
Key Performance Metrics (Singapore)
RRERIER (BE)
BASR A8 AU AR G n3se)

Promoting Energy Efficiency

TR IR as

Water is not a material environmental impact
of the Group. There is no indication that
water efficiency is a concemn.
FKIFEARKRE 2 ERRBFE - TELE
BRETAKRETERT

Not a material issue for the Group, as we do
not manufacture or produce packaging
materials.

AREEWEELEREEBRME - Eilbf
FREENERFEE
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Subject areas & aspects

FRERKER

Disclosures

REEHR

A3 The Environment and General disclosure information

Natural Resources

A3 RERRAER

B. Social
B.#&

Bl Employment
Bl {EfR

B2 Health and Safety
B2 REHEZE

B3 Development and
Training

B3 2R R IE

B4 Labour standards
B4 % T %8|

—RBEEEN

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

FASAERIEIR A3l 5 R 58 B ¥R B
RARERNEAZERERNERER
A ER7TE) -

General disclosure information

—RIEEH

General disclosure information

—RHEE R
General disclosure information
—HREAN

General disclosure information

—RBEEEH

Contents reference/Description

RBERS|

Environmental Responsibility section
RREEEH

After reviewing our environmental
performance and stakeholder feedback, we
confirm that our business activities do not
have significant adverse impacts on the
environment. Our commitments and measures
to reducing our environmental footprint are
detailed in the Environmental Responsibility
section.

RBHRRE USSR AR EIL - RAIHE
REEEB I EEIRIFEREANTHF
£ o BILRADRIR R IR AGE KB TR
HEHNRREERE -

Caring for Our People
REETEE

Health and Safety
ERELELH

Development and Training
REETEE

Not a material issue for the Group.

WHAEEHNEKREE °

Explanations can be found in the
Stakeholder Engagement Review and
Materiality section
AIRERABRREHNNEABEEE TG
SHEMHEE

BAZANRE (KE) BR AT
F$72018
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Subject areas & aspects

FRERKER

Operating practices

EEEA

B5 Supply chain
management

BS AAESEE IS

B6 Product responsibility
B6 EmE(E

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 RES

Community

HE

B8 Community
investment

B8 #HEBiRE
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General disclosure information
—RIEEER

General disclosure information

—RRIFEER

General disclosure information

—REEEHR

General disclosure information

—REEEH

Contents reference/Description

RBERS|

Responsible Use of Resources
NBEEREEMBER

Service Excellence; Protection of Data Privacy

SR RERLRE

Anti-Corruption
RES[

Community Investment section
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the report of the Directors
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 3|
December 2018.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Company is an investment holding company which is a leading
integrated film entertainment company in the markets where the
principal activities of the Group consist of worldwide film and video
distribution, film exhibition and the provision of advertising and
consultancy services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore and film and
television programmes production in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages |4 to 24 of this
Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in the financial statements on pages 73 to |36.

On 4 January 2018, the Directors declared a special dividend of
HK$0.253 per share.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 3| December 2018.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 3| December 2018 are set out in note
| I to the financial statements.

Bank Loans

Particulars of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2018 are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the Company's share capital are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws or the company laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing
shareholders.
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Five-Year Summary Financial Information EEHEERREE
Year Year Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 3| December 3| December 31 December 31 December
+=A T=A T=A T=A T=A
Sr=FF =+—A =+—H =+—H =+—H
LEE HFE HFE HEE HFE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E —T—+tF ZE-RF “Z-1%F —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FBT FABT FET
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(BF%) (&%) (i &%) (&%) (&%)
Consolidated income statement REWEE
Revenue Iz 1,050,972 1,006,599 1291819 1277132 1,082,791
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHEATRF]/ (B518) 83,661 2,548,144 (68,153) (186,179) 23,128
Income tax (expense)/credit s (A% /B (31,371) (309,831) 2916 496 (9,467
Profit/(loss) for the year AERERT/(B8) 52,290 2238313 (65,237) (181218) 13,661
Attributable to: Dﬂ:)\iﬂgﬁ :
— Equity holders of the Company DNERESREA 52,529 2242136 (59,078) (180471) 12731
— Non-controlling interests — #T iR (239) (3823) (6,159) (747) 930
52,290 2238313 (65,237) (181,218) 13,661
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Five-Year Summary Financial Information

EFEMHREREE

As at 31 December

Wt+=A=+—-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2N\ Bt —F-R¥ —T-HF —F-NOF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET FET FET FAT
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(EEH) (1 &k) (#Fk) (1 &%) (15 &k)
Consolidated statement SEBBRRAER
of financial position
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MK 1,031,644 1,026,222 245,789 1519528 1528428
Interests in joint ventures NE B 7R 145,933 142937 201,122 263,290 243271
Interests in associates NI N T 7 R - - - |'1,269 12415
Available-for-sale investment AHHERE - - 6,048 6,372 -
Other receivables, deposits and Hin MR - ek
prepayments BNHIE 40,058 40,509 18,821 96,652 94928
Intangible assets BREE 523,079 525,625 82414 83014 83014
Goodwill S 656,609 658,001 57233 75,203 73,658
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE - - 6,160 44,001 31782
Non-current portion of pledged BEFBITERZ
bank deposits FERNHERED 137,000 137,000 20,000 33,570 21,880
Current assets TEEE 1,491,863 2,146,475 2518278 732,294 841,528
Total assets BEME 4,026,186 4,676,769 3,155,865 2,865,193 2,930904
Current liabilities MEAR 647,190 784,169 974,334 885,250 649,365
Non-current portion of bank loans BITER 2 BN ERF 1,024,498 875,140 188,300 336977 47399
Non-current portion of convertible — A[# &% 2 RN HEH S
bonds - - 174,067 - -
Non-current portion of BEMEEREY
obligations under finance lease FEENHIER - - 269 37332 16,183
Other financial liabilities Hismas - - 219,389 - -
Deferred tax liabilities EiEfiAaE 173,383 174778 9471 12,419 10,718
Total liabilities BERE 1,845,071 1,834,087 1,565,830 1271978 1,150,257
Net assets BEEE 2,181,115 2,842,682 1,590,035 1,593,215 1,780,647
Non-controlling interests B3 ugigs (545) (331) 58433 13,378 ['1447
BRERIRE (KE) BRAF]

FR2018
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year ended 3| December 2018 are set out in note
24 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 3| December 2018, the Company's reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie, representing retained profits,
amounted to HK$20,589,000 (2017: HK$731,707,000). In addition, the
Company's share premium account, contributed surplus and capital
redemption reserve in an aggregate amount of HK$1,059,279,000
(2017: HK$1,059,279,000), as at 31 December 2018, may be distributed
to the shareholders of the Company in certain circumstances prescribed
by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 3| December 2018 and up to the
date of this report were:

Chairman & Executive Director
Wu Kebo

Executive Directors

Li Pei Sen

Mao Yimin

Wu Keyan

Chow Sau Fong, Fiona

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Man Kit
Wong Sze Wing
Fung Chi Man, Henry

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each AGM one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years.

In accordance with clauses 87(1) and (2) of the Company's Bye-Laws,
Mr. Li Pei Sen, Ms. Chow Sau Fong, Fiona and Mr. Fung Chi Man, Henry
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and all of them,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
4 to 9 of this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has entered into a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year. The
Company has taken out and maintained appropriate and sufficient
insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors
and officers.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Listed Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed securities during the
year ended 3| December 2018. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has repurchase or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

0]

Interests in shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
share capital of the Company (the “Shares”),

underlying Shares and debentures of the

Company

Name of Director/

Chief Executive Number of
EZ /XETBAE Capacity Note Shares
2 LY it RG#E
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled corporations | 1,723,894,068 (L)
R REFEER
Beneficial owner / 271824429 (L)
EafBA
Li Pei Sen Beneficial owner 200,000 (L)
FHR EaBAA
Wu Keyan Beneficial owner 2,500,000 (L)
(ilZES ESfBEA
Leung Man Kit Beneficial owner 370,000 (L)
ARG BEaBAA
Wong Sze Wing Beneficial owner 170,000 (L)
BHE EafEBA
* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares

in issue (i.e. 2,799,669,050 Shares) as at 3| December 2018.
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* Approximate
percentage

of Shares and
underlying Shares
in the issued share

Total capital of the

number of Company

Number of Shares and R R AAE
underlying  underlying Shares ROREAT
Shares RH K ERTREH
HERHEE HERGEY  FAESOEIL
- 1,723,894,068 (L) 61.57%

- 271824429 () 971%

- 200,000 (L) 0.01%

- 2,500,000 (L) 0.09%

- 370,000 (L) 001%

- 170,000 (L) 001%

* ZEESHRER=F—NF+=A
=+ —HEFTIR 7482 (F12,799,669,050 f%
R17) MatE -
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Note:

I By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to be interested in a
total of 1,723,894,068 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares
were held by Skyera International Limited (a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Wu); (i) 408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway
Enterprises Limited (a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu); (iii)
129,666,667 Shares were held by Noble Biz International Limited
(a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu); (iv) 565,719,948 Shares
were held by Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International)
Holding Company Limited (a company which is 80% owned by
Mr. Wu); and (v) 180,000,000 Shares were held by Cyber
International Limited (a company owned by an associate of Mr.
Wu).

In addition, Mr. Wu was interested in 271,824,429 Shares as at 3|
December 2018 which were beneficially held by him in his own
name.

Abbreviation:
"L stands for long position

(ii) Interests in shares of associated corporations

Mr. Wu was also the beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of Golden Harvest Film Enterprises Inc.,, which beneficially
held |14 million non-voting deferred shares of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above and save for the disclosure referred to under
“Share Option Schemes” set out below and in note 24 to the financial
statements on pages 122 to |27 of this annual report, as at 3|
December 2018, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Details of retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in Note
2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares or
Debentures” above and “Share Option Schemes” below, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2018 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

Mt -

RIEEH LG R - AR RER S H
1723894068 & A& 17+ & R (i) 439,791 463 A& I& 17
f{h% &2 & BB 2 A FlSkera Intemational
Limited 35 5 + (i) 408715990 A% A& 19 1 h 55 4 &
B WG 2 77 F]Mainway Enterprises Limited 55 (i)
129666667 IR IR AR SE E 2 EHA 2 R A)
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Share Option Schemes

0)

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2009 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the 2009 Share Option Scheme for
the purpose of enabling the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or
provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of
the 2009 Share Option Scheme include the Directors and other
employees of the Group, consultants or advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, service providers, agents, customers and
business partners of the Group. The 2009 Share Option Scheme
became effective on || November 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of 10
years from that date.

Each grant of the share options to a connected person of the
Company, or any of their associates, must be approved by all of
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding the
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
option). In addition, any grant of the share options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates which would result
in the Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of the
offer and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any |2-month period up to and including the date of the
grant, shall be subject to approval of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting with voting to be taken by way of a
poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2009
Share Option Scheme shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for such period as determined by
the Board, which period shall not be more than 30 days from the
day of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$ | by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors, the expiry date of such
period not to exceed 10 years from the date of the offer. Save as
determined by the Directors and provided in the offer of the
grant of the relevant share option, there is no general
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised.

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares
on the exercise of a share option is determinable by the
Directors, provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant of the share
option; (i) the average closing price per Share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.
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The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if
any) must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the Shares in issue as
at || November 2009, being the date of adoption of the 2009
Share Option Scheme. This limit was last refreshed by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting of
the Company held on |5 May 2012 in accordance with the
provisions of the Listing Rules so that the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
268,120,424 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of passing the relevant resolution on |5 May 2012. In
addition, the maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any |2-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of such limit (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any |2-month period up to
and including the date of grant of such share option shall be
separately approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no share
option outstanding under the Scheme. No share option was
granted to or exercised by any Directors or chief executives of
the Company or employees of the Group or other participants
nor cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Share options granted or to be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at the shareholders’ meetings.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Except for the disclosure under the headings “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and save as detailed in note 8 to the financial
statements on pages 103 to 104 of this annual report, none of the
Directors had any material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party during or at the end of the year ended 31 December 2018.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors had an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the 2009 Share Option Scheme as disclosed in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group's purchases from
its largest supplier and its five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 19.67% and 61.58%, respectively, of the Group's total
purchases.

The Group's sales to its largest customer and its five largest customers
accounted for approximately 0.30% and |.27%, respectively, of the
Group's total sales during the same period.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the
shareholders of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in the Group's five largest customers and/or suppliers.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2018, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had the following interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity Note Shares
RRE,/ 28 &% it RO®E
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled / 1,723,894,068 (L)
hRE corporations

REEEER

Beneficial owner | 271,824,429 (L)

EalEBA

Skyera Intemational Limited Beneficial owner 2 439,791,463 (L)
("Skyera") BHBAA

Mainway Enterprises Limited Benef cial owner 3 408,715990 (L)
("Mainway") EEBAA

Noble Biz International Benefcia\ owner 4 129,666,667 (L)
Limited (“Noble Biz") ExEAA

Cyber International Limited Beneficial owner 5 180,000,000 (L)
(“Cyber") BEaEAA

Orange Sky Entertainment Beneficial owner 6 565,719948 (L)
Group (Interational) ERBEEA
Holding Company Limited
("OSEG")

BAREEE (BR) 2K
BRAR(EX])
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*Approximate
percentage of

Shares and

underlying Shares

in the issued

share capital of

Total number  the Company

of Shares and * {3 RAHER 3

Number of underlying Shares RARAFE BT
underlying Shares R 17 R AR R B TG
HRROHE R BOBEDL
- 1,723,894,068 (L) 61.57%

- 271,824429 (L) 9.71%

- 439,791,463 (L) [571%

- 408715990 (1) 14.60%

- 129,666,667 (1) 463%

- 180,000,000 (L) 6.43%

- 565,719948 (L) 2021%
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* These percentages are computed based on the total number of Shares in
issue (ie. 2,799,669,050 Shares) as at 31 December 2018.

Notes:

(1Y By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu was deemed to have interest in a total of
1,723,894,068 Shares, of which (i) 439,791,463 Shares were held by
Skyera; (i) 408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway; (iii) 129,666,667
Shares were held by Noble Biz; (iv) 565,719,948 Shares were held by
OSEG; and (v) 180,000,000 Shares were held by Cyber.

In addition, Mr. Wu was interested in 249,734,429 Shares as at 31
December 2018 which were beneficially held by him in his own name.

(2)  Skyera is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director of
Skyera.

(3)  Mainway is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu, who s also a director
of Mainway.

(4)  Noble Biz is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu who is also a director
of Noble Biz.

(5)  Cyberis a company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu.

(6) OSEG (a company 80% owned by Mr. Wu) was interested in
565,719,948 Shares. Mr. Wu is a director of OSEG and Mr. Li Pei Sen is
the associate Chairman of OSEG.

Abbreviation:
“L” stands for long position

Save as disclosed above, as at 3|1 December 2018, no other person had
an interest or a short position in Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Connected Transaction

On 29 August 2018, Jiangyin Orange Sky Golden Harvest Liuliu
Enterprise Management Co,, Ltd. (LERERER AN ATEBEAR
2 A]) (formerly known as Jiangyin Orange Sky Golden Harvest Liuliu
Property Co., Ltd (TBRHERBEARNSEEFGR QA (the
“Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the Jiangyin Orange Land Cinema Development Management Co., Ltd.
(It MAEEEBRAR]) (the “Seller’) entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which, the Seller conditionally agreed to sell, and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire the properties situated at
Wuxing South Road, Xiagang Street, Jiangyin, China and west to
Xiadong Road (FEIRMEATEREK™S - EREAAN) and
comprised of (i) the Complex with two buildings with 7 and || floors
respectively and the Underground Area with 2 floors for commercial,
hotel and cinema use with total gross floor area of approximately
93,137.68 square meters and (ii) the land use rights of land with total
site area of approximately 23,334 square meters (the “Target
Properties”) at a total consideration of RMB560 million. On the same
day, Mr. Wu as the guarantor entered into the guarantee (“Guarantee”)
to guarantee the due performance of the Seller of its obligations under
the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement.

* ZEASHETRER=ZF—NF+=ZA= + AB
BTTHR (7 4B 2 (B12,799,669.050 8Bk 17 ) 5+ &

et -

(h REFHFRBEKI AEERERERSH®
1,723,894,068 B% A% 1) + & P (i) 439,791,463 A& A% 1
Skyera3 A& ¢ (ii) 408,715,990 B B% {5 F Mainway £ A
(iii) 129,666,667 % F& 17 EANoble Bz#f A : (iv)
565,719,948 I A& 10 B 1 R FFH ¢ K (v) 180,000,000 A%
B& 5 F Cyber A ©

B RZT—NFF+_A=+—8  HEEETN
RNE L HEB S EA 249734429 BRI #E2S o

Q) SkyeraRfLE E 2 EHB 2 N A]  BINRSkyeraE F ©

(3) Mainway BREEREHEE 2R
EBEo

&)+ 1% IR/ Mainway

(4 Noble BzAREEZEHEAZA
BizEZE o

* 18 78 A Noble

(5)  Cyber RRMMELEMBEAHERZAF

(6) ﬁs‘ai%ﬁso%w&z&Eﬁﬁiﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%sma%sﬁﬁ
cAERBRES  MEBHRLEAAREXR
ﬁéﬁiﬁ o

HEmEEE) -
L] #E5FR

BEXEEEN RZE—)/\F+ZA=+—8"

BARRNBIMRIEZES KBS RO XV I E 336 16EF

EZ%E%%&% BEEEE A PR 1D S AR RE A%
NHREBE(IRERIORE ©

BEXS

RZZ-NFNAZ+IAR  IRERERSAE
EXEEBARRQR) (AMIBBRERANEEAR
AR ([ER] ARrEE2EMNBAR) BETRE
b REERARAR(EL DI EE (T
BREEHRZD Bt BAERGRABEHEMER
BIRERBEBUNPEITIETEBABRERRS -
ERBEAAZYE  BEOAMESNERTER
HENBFTEXNEAAE IR ARE - A

BAEmE - BERER  RELEEELS13768F
E%&@%ﬁ%@%ﬁB&%iﬁ%%immim
FAE(ENYED - B8R E R AR 560000000
JLeRA - {E%E(VEZ%W%}\)J_LW%(HJ‘*{%J)
REHZEETENIEESHEE NS TEHE
e

BREARRE (KE)BRAF

F3{2018

63



64

Report of the Directors
EEﬁiﬁ*i

As at the date of the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Seller
was owned as 75% by Orange Sky Land Holdings Company Limited &
KibIEIR AR A F] (“Orange Sky Land”) and 25% by 1t IS FT
HEEEBRAA (Beijing Orange Land Cinema Investment
Management Company Limited, “Beijing Orange Land"). Orange Sky
Land is indirect wholly-owned by Mr. Wu. Beijing Orange Land is
owned as to 80% by It RIEXRFZRIREEEBR A A (Beijing
Orange Sky Cinema Investment Management Company Limited, “‘Beijing
Orange Sky"), which was in turn owned as to 99% by Mr. Wu and 1%
by Ms. Wu. Mr. Wu was the Director and controlling Shareholder and
interested in an aggregate of approximately 70.50% of the equity
interests of the Company. Ms. Wu is the Director and the sister of Mr.
Wu. Accordingly, the Seller, being the associate of Mr. Wu is a
connected person of the Company and the Jiangyin Sale and Purchase
Agreement, the Guarantee and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are constitute connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Seller shall complete
the Primary Registration within 7 months of the date of the signing of
the Sale and Purchase Agreement (i.e. by 28 March 2019).

The Purchaser has been notified by the Seller that the Primary
Registration cannot be completed by 28 March 2019 due to a change in
the Primary Registration requirements as requested by the relevant
registration authorities in the PRC. Due to this change of circumstance,
the Board was of the view that the Purchaser should not continue to
wait for the completion of the Acquisition whilst the date of completion
of the Primary Registration remains uncertain. The Purchaser had
therefore notified the Seller on 8 March 2019 of its intention to
terminate the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the “Termination
Request”) by way of a written notice (the “Termination Notice”).

Pursuant to the Termination Notice, the Purchaser requested the Seller
to refund the Deposit, being 10% of the Consideration amounting to
RMB56 million, to the Purchaser within 6 months from the date of the
Termination (the “Refund Arrangement”). On the same day, the Seller
acknowledged and confirmed the Termination Request and the Refund
Arrangement by signing the Termination Notice. As a result, the Sale
and Purchase Agreement was terminated with immediate effect on 8
March 2019 and the acquisition under the Sale and Purchase Agreement
will not proceed.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 3| December 2018, no
other connected transactions were entered into by the Company.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has entered into
and engaged in the following transactions and arrangements with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company:

Leases of Office Premises

On 31 August 2016, a lease agreement between b RIE X Ftit &
EIEBMR AT (Beijing Orange Sky Cinema Investment Management
Company Limited, “Beijing Orange Sky”) and 1t R RFE AR RUE
BBR7A 7] (Orange Sky Golden Harvest (Beijing) TV & Film Production
Co. Ltd), in respect of sub-leasing of office premises on the Second
floor of House No. 3 situated at No. | Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC, with a total floor area of
approximately 6.75 square metres, from | September 2016 to 31
August 2019.

On the same day, a lease agreement between 3t RIE KT & B 12
BPBRA7A] (Beijing Orange Sky Cinema Investment Management
Company Limited), and It RBRFZME R A HBR A A (Golden
Harvest (Beijing) Cinema Management Consultancy Company Limited,
“BJGH"), in respect of sub-leasing of office premises at the Second Floor
of House No. 3 situated at No. | Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC, with a total floor area of
approximately 993.57 square metres, from | September 2016 to 31
August 2019.

The annual caps announced on 23 September 2016, for each of the
four financial years ending 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019
set at RMB2,100,000 (equivalent to HK$2,436,000), RMB2,600,000
(equivalent to HK$3,016,000), RMB2,600,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,016,000) and RMB 1,800,000 (equivalent to HK$2,088,000)
respectively.

As at the date of the lease agreements, Mr. Wu and Ms. Wu are
connected persons of the Company. As the entire equity interest of
Beijing Orange Sky was owned by Mr. Wu and Ms. Wu, Beijing Orange
Sky was an associate of Mr. Wu and Ms. Wu and accordingly, connected
persons of the Company. On 28 July 2017, the Group completed the
disposal of City Entertainment Corporation Limited, which indirectly
holds 92.59% interests in BJGH. Subsequent to the disposal and in 2018,
the Group no longer held any interests in BJGH and such transaction
ceased to be a continuing connected transaction of the Company.
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Confirmation from Directors

The Directors, including the non-executive Directors, have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent third
parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have advised that nothing has come to
their attention that caused them to believe the continuing connected
transactions:

(@)  have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services;

(c)  have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and

(d) the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the relevant
announcements of the Company, where applicable, have been
exceeded during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, details of the other connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions for the year ended 3|
December 2018 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
These other connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions constituted de minimis transactions as defined in the Listing
Rules and were exempt from the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval, and in the case of continuing
connected transactions, the annual review requirements. The
independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed and confirmed
that these other connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
the business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent third
parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Corporate Governance

For the year ended 3| December 2018, the Corporate Governance
Report is set out on pages 25 to 39 of the annual report.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Report of the Directors
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Environmental Protection

Details of the Company’s environmental policy and community
involvement are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report Section in this annual report.

Emolument Policy

Remuneration of the employees of the Group is made/determined by
reference to the market, individual performance and their respective
contribution to the Group. As a long-term incentive, the 2009 Share
Option Scheme is in place and the details of which are set out above
and in note 24 to the financial statements on pages 122 to 127 of this
annual report.

Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations of the
remuneration committee of the Company and the Board's approval.
Other emoluments including discretionary bonus and share option, are
determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, abilities,
reputation and performance.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of the Company's issued share capital as of the
date of this report.

Donations

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group has made
charitable and other donations in Hong Kong totalling HK$nil.

Auditors

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 have
been audited by Messrs. KPMG (“KPMG") who will retire and being
eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG as
auditors of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wu Kebo
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2019
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KPMG

to the shareholders of
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 73 to |36, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 3|
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘‘the Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Assessing potential impairment of goodwill

BB BT RENT

Refer to note |5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on note 2(k).

B2 RIRF BRI BRRMGE | SUA KB 2(0) R BB 2 5 HIBUR

The Key Audit Matter
HARETEE

The carrying value of the Group'’s goodwill which amounted
to HK$656,609,000 as at 31 December 2018 was allocated
to the Group's exhibition business and distribution and
production business.
EEER-_ZE-NE+_A=+—-—BHEKREER
656,609,000/8 TR BEDILE BREMFHMFLA
RBEIT R BUYERTS ©

Management performs an annual impairment assessment of
goodwill by assessing its value in use by preparing a
discounted cash flow forecast and comparing the net present
value of the cash flow forecast with carrying value of the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the goodwill has been
allocated to determine if any impairment is required.

B ESF Y EETRENE ﬁif%%ﬁi@%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ
EEEE%//\LE%E\ H'J&)L'Hfﬁﬁ/ = T8 H‘JE’]/%L%{E‘EE & g2l
BENReELEN ( [(REEALEM] ) E’J@EEE
ETHERFERENERAEE KMEEREFE
TR ERE

Management is required to exercise significant judgement in
estimating the future revenue and future gross margins to be
generated from movies to be distributed or produced by the
Group. The movie market is dynamic and the reception of
the market to the Group’s movies is inherently uncertain.
BEERGR BRERTETRREOETELED
AR Moz M AR REREREGRITEEAHE - EX D5
RIVEE - MMHY BREEFNERIEEFEER
BHTHEE M

We identified assessing potential impairment of goodwill as a
key audit matter because determining the level of
impairment, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement in forecasting future cash flows and
estimating the recoverable amount of the CGU both of
which are inherently uncertain and may be subject to
management bias.

BB ERENEEREN RERETFE - REA
RETRERE (E) PREEERARRKRE
mEMGEFREELEMARIKESEEIELSEH
i M B mESTEERA N NEE LR AT EE
EBHRRETA -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEME A REZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
goodwill included the following:

B HE B BEERENTEFEREA TSR
. evaluating management's identification of the CGU,

the amount of goodwill and other assets allocated to
the CGU and the methodology adopted in the
impairment assessment with reference to the
requirement of the prevailing accounting standards;

ZERITE d‘ﬁgﬂ‘lﬂ’]fﬁm AEEEEYREE
HBMNHERIA Hixfﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ%

REMEESBEULMERERRARIDE

0 comparing the most significant inputs used in the
discounted cash flow forecast, including future revenue
and future gross margins, with the historical
performance of the CGU and assessing these inputs
with reference to industry forecasts and statistics;

R ERIR IR & i 8 TR P A R E AN A BUER

(BRAREREFARKENRK) BB SELEN
EBERIEITHR - WREBITETRA KR EE
AT ARIE

. evaluating the discount rate used in the cash flow
forecast by benchmarking against other similar
companies in the same industry;

2REAXEBFRAARNERSRERRHER
EBRER K
. performing sensitivity analysis of the discount rate and

future revenue and considering the resulting impact

on management’s conclusion in respect of the

impairment assessment and whether there were any

indicators of management bias; and

AR PRRMRETHREDN - TE B
BEBAMRENMENERELNTENRELTE

E EEERALNTR &

. considering the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the impairment assessment of
goodwill, including the key assumptions and
sensitivities, with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.
SERTEEANNRTE - TEEEUBEHRERE
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such interal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic afternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's interal control.

0 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

C Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

C Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lee Ka Nang.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
|0 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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Consolidated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Revenue 3&4 1,050,972 1,006,599
Cost of sales (397,581) (404,490)
Gross profit 653,391 602,109
Other revenue 5(a) 44,134 35915
Other net (loss)/income 5(b) (13,555) 2,778,752
Selling and distribution costs (457,089) (485,058)
General and administrative expenses (123,171) (279,700)
Other operating expenses 3,981) (109,116)
Valuation gain on investment properties I - 8,200
Profit from operations 99,729 2,551,102
Finance costs 6(a) (51,902) (77,835)
Share of profits of joint ventures 35,834 73,990
Share of profits of associates - 887
Profit before taxation 6 83,661 2,548,144
Income tax expense 7(a) (31,371) (309,831)
Profit for the year 52,290 2,238,313
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 52,529 2,242,136
Non-controlling interests (239) (3,823)
Profit for the year 52,290 2,238,313
Earnings per share (HK cent) 10
Basic and diluted 1.88 80.45
The notes on pages 81 to 136 form part of these financial statements.
BRERRE (L) BR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Profit for the year 52,290 2238313
Other comprehensive income for the year:
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of:
— subsidiaries outside Hong Kong (5,599) 24,643
— joint ventures outside Hong Kong 53 15,049
— associates outside Hong Kong - 254
(5,541) 39,946
Total comprehensive income for the year 46,749 2,278,259
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 46,963 2,280,503
Non-controlling interests (214) (2,244)
Total comprehensive income for the year 46,749 2,278,259

Note: There is no tax effect relating to the above components of comprehensive income.

The notes on pages 81 to 136 form part of these financial statements.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Investment properties I 50,000 50,000
Other property, plant and equipment I 368,119 351,319
Leasehold land I 613,525 624,903
1,031,644 1,026,222
Interest in a joint venture I3 145,933 142,937
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 40,058 40,509
Intangible assets 14 523,079 525,625
Goodwill 15 656,609 658,001
Pledged bank deposits 19 137,000 137,000
2,534,323 2,530,294
Current assets
Inventories 16 2,592 2,759
Film rights 17 34,868 30453
Trade receivables 18(a) 41,473 50,920
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 18(b) 122,835 53516
Pledged bank deposits 19 - 47,701
Deposits and cash 19 1,290,095 1,961,126
1,491,863 2,146,475
Current liabilities
Bank loans 20 274,850 359,790
Trade payables 22(a) 121,813 114,199
Other payables and accrued charges 22(b) 163,144 200,276
Deferred revenue 22(c) 56,591 71,180
Obligations under finance leases 21 - 269
Taxation payable 23(a) 30,792 38,455
647,190 784,169
Net current assets 844,673 1,362,306
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Total assets less current liabilities 3,378,996 3,892,600
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 20 1,024,498 875,140
Deferred tax liabilities 23(b) 173,383 174,778
1,197,881 1,049,918
NET ASSETS 2,181,115 2,842,682
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24
Share capital 279,967 279967
Reserves 1,901,693 2,563,046
Total equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company 2,181,660 2,843,013
Non-controlling interests (545) (331)
TOTAL EQUITY 2,181,115 2,842,682

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2019.

Wu Kebo
Director

The notes on pages 81 to 136 form part of these financial statements.
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Director



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Capital Non-
Share Share  redemption ~ Contributed Reserve  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve surplus funds reserve profits Total interests equity
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Balance at | January 2018 279,967 171,749 15,886 80,000 3,134 40 1,691,537 2,843,013 (331) 2,842,682
Changes in equity for 2018:
Proft/(loss) for the year - - - - - - 52,529 52,529 (239) 52,290
Other comprehensive income - - - - - (5,566) - (5,566) 25 (5,541)
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (5,566) 52,529 46,963 (214) 46,149
Dividends declared in respect
of the current year A(a)i) - - - - - - (708,316)  (708,316) - (708,316)
Balance at 31 December 2018 279,967 71,149 15,886 80,000 3,134 (4826)  1,035750 2,181,660 (545) 2,181,115

The notes on pages 81 to 136 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 3| December 2018

Convertible
Share Capital bonds Non-
Share Share option  redemption  Contributed Reserve  Exchange Other equity Retained controling Total
aapital premium reserve reserve surplus funds reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

Note HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Balance at | January 2017 274251 694639 29250 8833 80,000 17539 (23077) (3305) 40393 413078 1531602 58433 1590035

Changes in equity for 2017:

Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - - - - - - 240136 24136 (3823) 2238313
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - 38367 - - - 38367 1579 39946
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - 38367 - - 1242136 2280503 (2244) 2278259
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - (15,198) 2843 - - - (12355) (9.740) (2209)
Purchase of non-controlling interests = = = = = = = = = = = (337) (337)
Transfer to retained profits

on lapse of share options H(a)) = = (28619) = = = = = = 2619 = = =

Change in fair value of equity component
of convertible bonds upon modification

of terms - - - - - - - - (5:469) 5469 - - -
Partial conversion of convertible bonds | 493 10,69 - - - - - - (1,746) - 10443 - 10443
Re-measurement upon early redemption

of convertible bonds - - - - - - - - (12.262) 1228 = = =
Transfer of reserves upon early redemption

of convertible bonds - - - - - - - - (208%) - (20896) - (2089)
Transfer (from)/to reserves - - - - - 793 - - - (793) - - -
Recognition of put liability = = = = = = = (39.091) = = (39.091) = (39.091)
Transaction costs attributable to

deemed disposal of a subsidiary = = = = = = = @2115) = = @115) = @2115)
Derecognition of non-controlling interest

upon disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - 4511 - - 44511 (46443) (193)
Shares issued under share option scheme 24(a)() 11275 108712 (26,060) — - - - — — - 93927 - 93927
Shares repurchased (7.053) (42298) - 7053 - - - - - (7.053) (49351) - (49351)
Equity-settled share-based transaction = = 2549 = = = = = = = 2549 = 2549
Dividends declared in respect of

the current year 24(a)(i) - - - - - - - - - (1002201)  (1,002.201) - (1002.201)
Release of exchange reserve upon step

acquisition - - - - - - (17393) - - - (17393) - (17393)
Balance at 3| December 2017 279967 71,749 - 15,886 80,000 3134 740 - - 1691837 284303 (331) 2842682

The notes on pages 81 to 136 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 3| December 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 83,661 2,548, 144
Adjustments for:
Interest income 5(a) (28,321) (19,820)
Finance costs 6(a) 51,902 77,835
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6(c) 75,192 28,969
Amortisation of intangible assets 6(c) 1,482 740
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5(b) (180) 6,167
Impairment of goodwill 6(c) - 34,000
Impairment of film rights 6(c) 2,069 19,649
Impairment of available-for-sale equity securities 6(c) - 6,210
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 5(b) - 70,236
Write-off of trade receivables 6(c) - 6,548
Impairment of other receivables 6(c) - 10,897
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 8 - 25429
Loss on re-measurement of liability component of
convertible bonds upon early redemption 5(b) - 13,570
Loss on modification of terms of convertible bonds 5(b) - 10,515
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5(b) - (2,201,414)
Gain on partial deemed disposal of a subsidiary 5(b) - (270,762)
Valuation gain on investment properties I - (8,200)
Share of profits of joint ventures (35,834) (73,990)
Share of profits of associates - (887)
Gain on step acquisition 5(b) - (369,900)
Exchange loss/(gain), net 23,552 (27,642)
Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital 173,523 (1'13,706)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 123 (4,174)
Increase in film rights (7,095) (3,475)
Decrease in trade receivables 8,094 23,358
Increase in other receivables, deposits and prepayments (72,475) (48,595)
Increase in trade payables 9,439 25219
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accrued charges (14,309) 232475
(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue (13,380) 24,888
Cash generated from operations 83,920 135,990
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Interest received 28,210 19,831
Finance costs paid (66,068) (I5,177)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid 9 (1,810)
Tax paid 23(a) (38,548) (12,005)
Tax refunded - 890
Net cash generated from operating activities 7,505 127,719
Investing activities
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (95,635) (43,410)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and Equipment 525 =
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired - (937,323)
Receipt from/(placement of) pledged deposits 47,701 (121,953)
Placement of term deposits with initial terms of over three months - (60,000)
Receipt from maturity of term deposits with initial terms of
over three months 60,000 4,480
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 29 - 2,915,005
Advance top an associate - (441)
Repayment from joint ventures 991 1,010
Dividends received 32,890 65,879
Purchase of non-controlling interests - (337)
Net cash generated from investing activities 46,472 1,822,910
Financing activities
Proceeds from new bank loans 19(b) 458,400 [,200,000
Repayment of bank loans 19(b) (398,617) (545,407)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid 19(b) (269) (8,630)
Payment for shares repurchased - (49,351)
Proceeds from exercise of share options - 93,927
Payment for redemption of convertible bonds - (235971)
Finance cost paid on convertible bonds - (10,000)
Dividends paid 24(a)(ii) (708,316) (1,002,201)
Other borrowing costs paid 19(b) - (21,350)
Net cash used in financing activities (648,802) (578,983)
Net (decrease)l/increase in cash and cash equivalents (594,825) 1,371,646
Cash and cash equivalents at | January 1,901,126 503,622
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (16,206) 25,858
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19(a) 1,290,095 1,901,126

The notes on pages 81 to 136 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (“‘the Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”), its associates and its joint venture consist of worldwide film and video distribution, film exhibition
in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Singapore and Taiwan, film and television programme production in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and provision of advertising and consultancy services in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Singapore and
Taiwan. The other particulars and principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note |2 to the financial statements.

()

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™), which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 comprise the Group and the Group’s
interest in associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

—  investment properties (see note 2(g));

—  other leasehold land and buildings, where the leasehold land is classified as being held under a finance lease (see
notes 2(h) and (j));

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 30.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group's financial
statements:

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(i) HKFRS I5, Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

None of these developments has had a material effect on how the Group's results and financial position for the
current or prior years have been prepared or presented in this annual financial report.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in accordance with notes 2(p) or (q) depending on the nature of
the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)).

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(e) Associates and joint ventures

U]

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share
of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
The cost of the investment includes purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
investment, and any direct investment into the associate or joint venture that forms part of the Group's equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2(k)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for
the year are recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the joint venture, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest
is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with any other long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence or
joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree, over

(i) the net fair value of the accquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwiill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2()))
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined future
use and property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are still in the course of construction or development at
the end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of investment property is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described in note 2(u)(vii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease (see note 2(j)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in note

2().

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(k)):

buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land, classified as held under operating leases (see note

20));
machinery and equipment classified as being held under finance leases (see note 2(j)); and
other items of plant and equipment, other than construction in progress.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after
items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance costs is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment and where the cost of the item can be
measured realisably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Construction in progress represents an asset under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(h)

0)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land classified Over the remaining lease term
as held under operating leases

Buildings 2.5%—10.0%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease term or its useful life
Machinery and equipment 6.7%—-33.3%
Furniture and fixtures 8.3%-20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Club memberships

Club memberships are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)). Cost includes fees and expenses directly related to the acquisition of the club
memberships.

Any gain or loss arising from disposal of club memberships is recognised in profit or loss.

Trademarks

Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Trademarks are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(k)). Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are not amortised until their useful lives are determined to
be finite. Any conclusion that the useful life of trademarks is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Customer relationships with finite useful lives are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)). Amortisation is calculated to write
off the cost of customer relationships less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method,
over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are viewed annually.

BAZANRE (RE) BR AT
F$72018
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(j) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

—  property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see note 2(g)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term except where the property is classified as an investment property (see note 2(g)).

(iii)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as property, plant and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the
assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 2(k). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

A)

Policy applicable from | January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the following item:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents, and trade and
other receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, and trade and other receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

—  variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

—  |2-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default events within
the |2 months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs
on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to |2-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

A)

Policy applicable from | January 2018 (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2(u)(viii) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost (ie. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

—  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
Whrite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to

repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)

(B

Policy applicable prior to | January 2018

Prior to | January 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used to measure impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade and other receivables). Under the “incurred loss” model, an
impairment loss was recognised only when there was objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment included:

—  significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
—  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

—  a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was determined and recognised as follows:

—  For trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, impairment
loss was measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting was material. This assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and had
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which were
assessed for impairment collectively were based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreased and the decrease could be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
was reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss was only recognised to the
extent that it did not result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other financial assets carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not remote, associated impairment losses were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against the gross carrying amount of those assets directly. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account were reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were recognised in profit or loss.
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(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being held under operating leases;
— film rights;

—  goodwill;

— intangible assets (other than goodwill); and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company's statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), or value in
use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see note 2(k)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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(I) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using a first-in, first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

(m) Film rights
(i)  Film rights
The cost of film rights is amortised at a systematic basis with reference to the underlying license periods
which are subject to annual review.

Film rights represent films and television drama series and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

(ii)  Film production in progress
Film production in progress represents films under production and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses (see note 2(k)). Costs include all direct costs associated with the production of films. Impairment
losses are made for costs which are in excess of the expected future revenue to be generated by these films.
Costs are transferred to self-produced programmes upon completion.

(iii) ~ Self-produced programmes

Self-produced programmes are stated at cost, comprising direct expenditure and an attributable portion of
direct production overheads, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2(k)). The cost
of self-produced programmes is amortised at a systematic basis with reference to the underlying license
periods, which are subject to annual review.

(iv) Investments in film/drama production

Investments in film/drama production are stated initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net income
derived from the investments less any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(k)).

(n) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method less allowance for credit losses (see
note 2(k)).

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(k).
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(p) Trade and other payables

(a)

(r)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, which are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(w)).

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the amount recognised in share capital for the share issued) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
Scheme. Contributions to the Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The
Group's employer contributions are fully and immediately vested with the employees when contributed to
the Scheme. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland China are members of the state-
sponsored retirement scheme (the “State Scheme’) operated by the government. Contributions to the State
Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they became payable in accordance with the rules of the State Scheme.
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(s) Income tax

(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

(i)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination) and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 2(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying values at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.
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(s)

®)

(w)

Income tax (continued)

(iv)  Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale of goods and the provision of services.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than |2 months, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction with the customer, and interest income is
accrued separately under the effective interest method. Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage of the
practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS |5 and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.
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(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition policies are as follows:

0}
(i)
(i)

(iv)

()

(vii)

(vl

(i)

)
(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

Income from box office takings is recognised when the services have been rendered to the buyers;
Income from film distribution and screen advertising is recognised at the time when the services are provided;

Income from promotion, advertising, advertising production and agency and consultancy services is
recognised upon the provision of the services;

Income from investments in film/drama production is recognised when the films or television programmes
are released for distribution;

Income from film royalties arising from the assignment of screening rights to television stations and the
granting of rights to manufacture, distribute and sell video cassettes, laser discs, video compact discs and
digital video discs is recognised as accrued royalties when the Group's right to receive payment is established;

Income from confectionery sales and audio visual sales is recognised at the point of sales when the
confectionery and audio visual products are given to the customers;

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are earmed;

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note k(i));

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established;

Income from ticket booking is recognised upon the provision of the services;

Income from gift voucher purchases is recognised when customers exchange them for goods/services or
upon expiry;

Income from membership fees is recognised in profit or loss in the accounting period covered by the
membership terms; and

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attached
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries and joint venture are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for those arising from the translation of the
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates which are taken directly to the exchange
reserve.
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)

W)

)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially

all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group's parent.
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third party.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of
operating processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

REVENUE

Revenue represents income from the sale of film, video and television rights, film and TV drama distribution, theatre
operation, promotion and advertising services, agency and consultancy services income, film royalty income and the
proceeds from the sale of audio visual products.

The Group's customer base is diversified and there is no customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenue. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are set out in note 25(a) to the financial
statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the reportable segments, which are as follows:

—  Hong Kong

—  Mainland China
—  Singapore

—  Taiwan

The results of the Group's revenue from external customers for entities located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Singapore
and Taiwan are set out in the table below.

Each of the above reportable segments primarily derive their revenue from film exhibition, film and video distribution, film
and television programme production and the provision of advertising and consultancy services. The reportable segments,
Singapore and Taiwan, represent the Group's share of results of the joint ventures operating in Singapore and Taiwan,
respectively. The joint venture in Singapore was reclassified to a subsidiary on 25 October 2017 following the acquisition
of the remaining 50% equity interest in the joint venture by the Group. For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group's senior executive management monitors the
revenue and results attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and results

Revenue is allocated to the reportable segments based on the local entities’ location of external customers. Expenses are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those geographical locations or which otherwise arise from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted operating profit after taxation where net finance costs,
exchange differences and extraordinary items are excluded. To arrive at adjusted operating profit after taxation the
Group's profit is further adjusted for items not specifically attributable to individual segments, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning operating profit after taxation, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on the operating profit including the share of results of joint ventures
of each segment. Intra-segment pricing is generally determined on an arm'’s length basis.

Segment information regarding the Group's revenue and results by geographical market is presented below:
Hong Kong Mainland China Singapore Taiwan Consolidated

2018 017 2018 217 2018 017 2018 217 2018 017
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

Segment revenue:
Revenue
— Exhibition 218910 219916 - 547,383 822,139 492,164 479,393 471366 1,520,442 1760829
— Distribution and production 13,820 25746 165 44 31,226 1293 2,368 8463 53,579 47582
— Corporate 1,513 1911 - - - - - - 1,513 1911
Reportable segment revenue 234,243 5 165 547805 859,365 505,095 481,761 47989 1,575,534 181032
Reportable segment profit/(loss) 8,872 23548 (31,159) (2679 149,890 106,297 36,487 30914 164,090 134005

Reconciliation — Revenue

Reportable segment revenue 1,575,534 1810322
Share of revenue from joint ventures

in Singapore and Taiwan (481,761) (796,742)
Elimination of intra-segmental revenue (25,559) (9%9)
Others (17,242) (604

Consolidated revenue 1,050,972 1,006,599

Reconciliation — Profit before taxation

Reportable profit 164,090 134005
Unallocated operating (expenses)/income, net (I11,561) 2108131
Non-controling interests (239) (3823)
Income tax expense 31,371 309831
Consolidated profit before taxation 83,661 1548144

99



100

Notes to the Financial Statements

5 OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME
(a) Other revenue

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Interest income from bank deposits 28,321 19,820
Rebates from the National Film Development Fund (note (i) - 2,637
Miscellaneous income 15,813 13,458
44,134 35915

Note (i):  In accordance with regulations in People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), operators of cinemas established after | January
2004 with more than three screens are entitled to a rebate of 5% of gross box office takings for the first three years of
operation. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was entitled to rebates from the national film
development fund of RMB2,334,000, equivalent to approximately HK$2,637,000.

(b) Other net (loss)/lincome

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 180 (6,167)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - 2201414
Gain on partial deemed disposal of a subsidiary - 270,762
Gain on step acquisition - 369,900
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments - (70,236)
Loss on modification of terms of convertible bonds - (10,515)
Loss on re-measurement of liability component of convertible bonds
upon early redemption - (13,570)
Exchange (loss)/gain, net (13,735) 50,042
Others - (12,878)
(13,555) 2,778,752

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

CY

(b)

(9

Finance costs

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Interest on bank loans 46,258 26,807
Interest on convertible bonds - 27,819
Interest on put options to non-controlling interests - 13,175
Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 9 1,810
Other ancillary borrowing costs 5,635 8,224
Total finance costs on financial liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss 51,902 77,835
Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments (note 8))
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Salaries, wages and other benefits (note (i)) 125,281 159,928
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 12,283 3,353
137,564 163,281
Other items
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Cost of inventories 38,355 33,789
Cost of services provided 353,413 364,361
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note | /) 75,192 28,969
Amortisation of intangible assets (note /4) 1,482 740
Amortisation of film rights (note (ii)) (note 17) 5,813 6,340
Impairment of goodwill (note |5) - 34,000
Impairment of film rights (note |7) 2,069 19,649
Write-off of trade receivables - 6,548
Impairment of other receivables - 10,897
Impairment of available-for-sale equity securities - 6210
Auditors’ remuneration 2,950 5,997
Operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings
— minimum lease payments 108,770 157,447
— contingent rentals 15,615 ['1,034
Rental income less direct outgoings (9,673) (14,395)

Notes:

() The amount includes provision for long service payments.

(ii) The amortisation of film rights for the year is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement.

BAREARRE (KE)BRAF
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7 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current income tax
Provision for Hong Kong tax 420 1,868
Provision for overseas tax 34,128 326,053
Over-provision in respect of prior years (2,559) (1,423)
31,989 326,498
Deferred tax (note 23(b))
Reversal of temporary differences 618) (16,667)
31,371 309,831

Notes:

0] The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits

for the year.

(i)~ The provision for the Mainland China Corporate Income Tax of the subsidiaries established in the Mainland China is

calculated at 25% (2017: 25%) of the estimated taxable profits for the year.

(i) The provision for Singapore Corporate Income Tax of the subsidiaries established in Singapore is calculated at 17% (2017:

17%) of the estimated taxable profits for the year.

(iv)  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group paid HK$3,936,000 (2017: HK$4,315,000) for income taxes on

distributed earnings from its joint venture in Taiwan.

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group provided HK$4,570,000 (2017: HK$3,790,000) for income taxes
on accumulated earnings generated by its joint venture in Taiwan which will be distributed to the Group in the foreseeable

future.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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7 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before taxation at applicable tax rates:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Profit before taxation 83,661 2,548,144

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates

applicable to profit in the jurisdictions concerned 12,924 307,023
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 22,503 92,697
Tax effect of non-taxable income (4,348) (117,822)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 9,449 47,141
Tax effect of tax losses utilised (1,124) -
Tax effect of profits attributable to associates - (222)
Tax effect of profits attributable to joint ventures (6,092) (12,578)
Tax effect of temporary differences unrecognised, net (16) (4,461)
Provision for Taiwan withholding tax for the year 634 (524)
Over-provision in prior years (2,559) (1,423)
Actual tax expense 31,371 309,831

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2018
fees in kind bonus contributions Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Executive directors

WU, Kebo - 10,318 - 18 10,336
LI, Pei Sen - 360 - - 360
WU, Keyan - 656 69 18 743
MAQO, Yimin - 2,203 170 102 2,475
CHOW, Sau Fong Fiona - 1,918 154 18 2,090

Independent non-executive directors
LEUNG, Man Kit 340 - - - 340
WONG, Sze Wing 240 - - - 240
FUNG, Chi Man Henry 240 - - - 240
820 15,455 393 156 16,824

BREFIE (EE) BRAT
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8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Equity-settled
Directors'  and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme share-based 2017
fees in kind bonus  contnbutions Sub-total payments Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
(note)
Executive directors
WU, Kebo = 9813 110,281 13 120,107 25429 145536
LI, Pei Sen - 381 55 - 436 - 436
WU, Keyan = 744 70 8 832 = 832
MAO, Yimin = 2533 15577 13 18223 = 18223
CHOW, Sau Fong Fiona - 2,586 6,502 8 9,106 - 9,106
Independent non-executive directors
LEUNG, Man Kit 340 = = = 340 = 340
WONG, Sze Wing 240 = = = 240 = 240
FUNG, Chi Man Henry 220 - - - 220 = 220
800 16,057 132,485 162 149,504 25429 174933

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under the Company's share option scheme. The
value of these share options is measured according to the Group's accounting policies for equity-settled share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 2(r)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
paragraph “Share option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 24(a)(i).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three (2017: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 8 to the financial statements. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2017: two) are as
follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Salaries and other emoluments 2,482 2,861
Discretionary bonuses 381 1,484
Retirement scheme contributions 30 36
2,893 4,381

The emoluments of the two (2017: two) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2018 2017

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$1,000,00 [ -HK$ 1,500,000 | 0
HK$ 1,500,00 | -HK$2,000,000 | |
HK$2,500,00 | —-HK$3,000,000 0 I

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamings per share is based on the earnings attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$52,529,000 (2017: earnings of HK$2,242,136,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,799,669,050 (2017: 2,786,995,888), in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

2018 2017

Number of Number of

shares shares

Issued ordinary shares at | January 2,799,669,050 2,742,519,248
Effect of shares repurchased - (7,704,657)
Effect of share options exercised - 47,724,131
Effect of conversion of convertible bonds - 4.457,166
Weighted average number of ordinary shares as at 31 December 2,799,669,050 2,786,995,888

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume exercise of conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company does not have any dilutive
potential ordinary shares as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 is the same as the basic earnings per share.

BAREARRE (KE)BRAF
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Il  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

LEASEHOLD LAND

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Machinery Furniture
Leasehold and and Motor  Construction Investment Leasehold

Buildings  improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles in progress Sub-total properties land Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost or valuation:
At | January 2018 108,263 217,881 95,075 34434 5,935 6,804 468,392 50,000 631,348 1,149,740
Additions - 45,597 21,399 4531 1,611 2497 95,635 - - 95,635
Disposals - - (1,823) - (133) (75) (2,631) - - (2,631)
Transfers - 1471 1,245 466 - (3,182) - - - -
Exchange adjustments (33m) (19,370) (1,289) (517) (189) (3,176) (21914 - (4193) (32,100
At3| December 2018 104,890 215579 114,607 38914 6,624 22,868 533,482 50,000 621,155 1,210,637
Representing:
Cost 104,890 215,519 114,607 38914 6,624 22,868 533,482 - 621,155 1,160,637
Valuation 2018 - - - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000

104,890 215,519 114,607 38914 6,624 22,868 533,482 50,000 621,155 1,210,637
Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment
losses:

At | anuary 2018 3,551 61,442 40,533 8,744 2,803 - 117,073 - 6,445 123,518
Charge for the year 6,376 28,623 22,385 8,481 1,060 - 67,131 - 8,061 75,192
Witten back on disposals - - (1,722) - (564) - (2,286) - - (2,286)
Bxchange adjustments (1,157) (14,765) “n (126) (90) - (16,555) - (876) (17,431)
At 31 December 2018 8,770 75,500 60,779 17,105 3,09 - 165,363 - 13,630 178,993
Net book value:
At 31 December 2018 96,120 170,079 53,828 21,809 3415 12,868 368,119 50,000 613,525 1,031,644

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

LEASEHOLD LAND (CONTINUED)

()

Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

Machinery Fumiture
Leasehold and and Motor  Construction Investment Leasehold
Buldings  improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles  in progress Sub-total ~ properties land Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Cost or valuation:
At | January 2017 7020 93109 48382 12418 2632 2888 166,449 41,800 127998 336,47
Additions - - - - 3218 2802 6020 - - 6020
Disposdls - 8131) (1379) Q) - (A1) (24199) - - (2419)
Transfers = = 06 1402 = (1628) = = = =
Step acquistion from joint ventures
to subsidiaries 97943 116419 48800 008 - 2403 287646 - 500090 781736
Fair value adjustments = = = = = = = 8200 = 8200
Exchange adjustments 3300 16484 11463 760 8 380 4N - 3260 35732
At 31 December 2017 108263 217881 95075 34434 5935 6804 468392 50000 631,348 1,149,740
Representing:
Cost 108263 20788 95075 34434 5935 6804 468392 - 631,348 099,740
Valuation 2017 - - - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000
108263 20788 95075 34434 5935 6,804 468392 50000 631,348 1,149,740
Accumulated depreciation,
amortisation and impairment
losses:
At | January 2017 585 45019 35 584 [ 488 - 86,209 - 4249 90458
Charge for the year 1043 14712 8186 3216 416 - 2573 - 39 28969
Wiitten back on disposals - (6580) (8891) (2039) - - (17510) - - (17510)
Exchange adustments 1923 8291 7963 1725 899 = 20801 = 800 21601
At 3 December 2017 355 61442 40533 8744 2803 - 117073 - 6445 123518
Net book value:
At 3 December 2017 104712 156439 5459 25690 3132 6804 31319 50000 624903 1026222
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties

(i)

(if)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair values of the Group's properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

—  Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level | inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level I, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
3| December 3| December 2018 categorised into
2018 Level | Level 2 Level 3
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties:
— Commercial — Hong Kong 50,000 - 50,000 -
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 3| December 2017 categorised into
2017 Level | Level 2 Level 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties:
— Commercial — Hong Kong 50,000 - 50,000 =

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 or
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2018. The valuations were carried out
by an independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their staff with recent
experience in the location and category of properties being valued. The Group’s management has discussions
with the surveyors about the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuations are performed
at the end of the reporting period.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of the investment properties located in Hong Kong is determined using the market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales prices of comparable properties on a price per square foot basis using
market data which is publicly available.

Fair value adjustments of investment properties are included in “valuation gain on investment properties” in
the consolidated income statement.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
LEASEHOLD LAND (CONTINUED)

(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

2018 2017
Leasehold Leasehold
land Buildings land Buildings
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
In Hong Kong
— long leases 121,483 56,083 122,616 56,259
Outside Hong Kong
— long leases 492,042 90,037 532974 67,766
613,525 146,120 655,590 124,025
Representing:
Land and buildings carried at fair value - 50,000 - 50,000
Buildings carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation - 96,120 - 74,025
- 146,120 = 124,025
Interest in leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases 613,525 - 655,590 =
613,525 146,120 655,590 124,025

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries which affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 2(d) and have been consolidated into the Group's financial

statements.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of company

EREREATRREERAR

Gala Film Distribution Limited

Golden Harvest Cinemas Holding Limited

Golden Harvest Entertainment
International Limited

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
operation

PRC

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

Particulars of issued and
paid up capital

Registered capital RMB3,000,000

49,990,000 shares and 10,000
non-voting deferred shares

| share of US$|

1,000 shares of US$| each

Group’s
effective
interest

100%

100%

100%

100%

&

Principal activities

Investment, production and
distribution of motion pictures
and acts as an advertising agent

Distribution of motion pictures

Investment holding

Investment holding

REARE(KE) ERAF
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name of company

Golden Harvest Films Distribution
Holding Limited

Golden Harvest (Marks) Limited

Golden Harvest Treasury Limited

Golden Screen Limited
Golden Sky Pacific Limited
M Cinemas Company Limited

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment
Company Limited

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Motion
Pictures Company Limited

Panasia Films Limited

Panasia Cinema Advertising Limited

Shanghai Golden Harvest Media
Management Company Limited™

Dartina Development Limited
Golden Village Multiplex Pte Limited

Golden Village Pictures Pte Limited

Except for Golden Harvest Entertainment International Limited, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

Company.

& For Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, the deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and carry the
right to receive half of the surplus on a retum of capital exceeding HK$1,000,000,000,000,000. Apart from the above, all other
deferred shares carry rights to dividends for any given financial year of the respective companies when the net profit available for
distribution exceeds HK$1,000,000,000. They also carry rights to receive one half of the surplus on a return of capital of the

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and
operation

Bntish Virgin Islands

Bntish Virgin lslands

British Virgin Islands

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC

Hong Kong
Singapore

Singapore

Particulars of issued and
paid up capital

| share of US|

| share of US$|

| share of US$!

8,750,000 shares
2 shares
7,000,000 shares

100 shares and 114,000,000
nonvoting deferred shares*

94,000,000 shares

23,000 shares

10,000 shares

Registered capital US$500,000

31,200,082 shares
8,000,000 shares of S$1 each

8,000,000 shares of S$1 each

Notes to the Financial Statements

Group’s
effective
interest

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

Principal activities

Investment holding

Holding of trademarks

Provision of finance to
group companies

Investment holding

Investment holding

Theatre operation

Investment holding

Film production and investment
holding

Distribution of motion pictures
and its related audio visual
products and acts as
an advertising agent

Advertising agent

Distribution of motion pictures

Investment holding
Theatre operation

Distribution of motion pictures

respective companies exceeding HK$500,000,000,000. None of the deferred shares carry any rights to vote at general meetings.

The equity interest of the entity is held by PRC nationals on behalf of the Group.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Share of net assets

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
145,933 142,937

The following list contains the particulars of the Group's joint venture:

Form of
Name of jointly ~ business
controlled entity  structure
Vie Show Cinemas ~ Incorporated

Co. Ltd.

Place of
incorporation  Particulars of issued
and operation and paid up capital

Taiwan 80,000,000 shares of
NTDI0 each

Proportion of ownership interest

Group’s
effective  Held by the Held by
interest Company  subsidiaries Principal activity

3571% =

3571% Theatre operation and

investment holding

The joint venture in which the Group participates, which is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, is unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not available.

On 25 October 2017, the Group acquired the remaining 50% equity interests in its joint venture in Singapore, Dartina
Development Limited, and the then joint venture and its subsidiaries have become wholly-owned subsidiaries of the

Group.

Summarised financial information of Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd. and Dartina Development Limited, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed below:

Dartina
Vie Show Cinemas Development
Co. Ltd.* Limited
2018 2017 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross amounts of the joint venture:
Current assets 366,371 424,926 -
Non-current assets 505,027 467,625 =
Current liabilities (414,837) (458,034) =
Non-current liabilities (47,900) (34,245) -
Equity 408,661 400,272 -
Included in the above assets and liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents 290,986 260,697 -
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables and provisions) - - -
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and
other payables and provisions) 46,259 32,089 —
Revenue 1,329,390 1,334,845 617,939
Profit from continuing operations 100,347 84,626 87,540
Other comprehensive income - — —
Total comprehensive income 100,347 84,626 87,540
Dividends from the joint ventures 92,104 101,831 59,030
BRERRE (L) BR AR
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13 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

Dartina
Development
Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd.” Limited
2018 2017 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Included in the above profits:
Depreciation and amortisation 67,121 82,498 54,084
Interest income 195 188 10
Interest expense 112 109 2,880
Income tax expense 24,775 18,031 22,292

Reconciled to the Group’s interests in the joint ventures

Gross amounts of the joint ventures' net assets 408,661 400,272 =
Group's effective interest 35.71% 35.71% =
Group's share of the joint ventures' net assets 145,933 142,937 -
Goodwill - _ _
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements 145,933 142,937 -

# The joint venture is not audited by KPMG.

There has been a dispute among the shareholders of Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd (*Vie Show") involving allegations of
breaches of the material terms of the shareholders’ agreement and lawsuits were filed between the shareholders with the
Taipei District Court of Taiwan in 2014. The lawsuits are ongoing and there remains uncertainty about the outcome of
the shareholders’ dispute. The shareholders' dispute and the related lawsuits do not affect the operations of Vie Show.

Financial information with respect to statement of financial position items of Dartina Development Limited as at 3|
December 2017 and 2018 is not disclosed as the investment was reclassified from a joint venture to a subsidiary from 25
October 2017 onwards. Financial information with respect to the operating performance of Dartina Development Limited
for the year ended 3| December 2017 disclosed above only comprised its operating performance from | January 2017
to 25 October 2017, in which period it was accounted for as a joint venture of the Group.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Customer Club
Trademarks relationships memberships Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Cost:
At | January 2018 517,068 7,407 1,890 526,365
Exchange adjustments (1,064) - - (1,064)
At 31 December 2018 516,004 7,407 1,890 525,301
Accumulated amortisation:
At | January 2018 - 740 - 740
Charge for the year - 1,482 - 1,482
At 31 December 2018 - 2,222 - 2,222
Net book value:
At 31 December 2018 516,004 5,185 1,890 523,079
Customer Club
Trademarks relationships memberships Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost:
At | January 2017 80,524 - 1,890 82414
Addition through acquisition of subsidiaries 436,544 7,407 - 443,951
At 31 December 2017 517,068 7407 1,890 526,365
Accumulated amortisation:
At | January 2017 = = = =
Charge for the year — 740 — 740
At 31 December 2017 = 740 = 740
Net book value:
At 31 December 2017 517,068 6,667 1,890 525,625

Notes:

(@) Trademarks represent perpetual licenses for the use of the brand names “Golden Harvest” and “The Sky" in Hong Kong, and

"“Golden Village™ in Singapore which take the form of sign, symbol, name, logo, design or any combination thereof.
The directors are of the opinion that the Group's trademarks have indefinite useful lives due to the following reasons:

(@)  the trademarks have been in use and will continue to be used for the long term; and

(b)  the Group has incurred and intends to continue to incur significant advertising and promotion expenses, which are charged
to profit or loss when incurred, to maintain and increase the market value of its trademarks.

At 31 December 2018, the directors carried out an assessment of the recoverable amounts of trademarks with the assistance of
independent professional valuers. Based on their review, the recoverable amounts of trademarks exceeded their carrying amounts

and therefore no impairment was recognised.

(i) Customer relationships represent non-contractual customer relationships owned by Panasia Cinema Advertising Limited (“PCAL")
recognised by the Group upon the acquisition of PCAL on 31 May 2017.

PCAL generated revenue from several customers repeatedly across years. While there is no long term contract between PCAL
and those customers, it is customary for those customers to do business with PCAL whenever they require services that PCAL
provides and such needs are recurring for those customers and observed from the trading history for the past five years.
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I5 GOODWILL
2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000
Cost:
At | January 708,426 73,658
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 634,768
Exchange adjustments (1,392) -
At 3| December 707,034 708,426
Accumulated impairment losses:
At | January 50,425 16,425
Impairment loss recognised - 34,000
At 3| December 50,425 50,425
Carrying amount
At 31 December 656,609 658,001

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating unit (*CGU”) identified according to country of operation and
business segment as follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Distribution and production — Mainland China 23,233 23,233
Exhibition and distribution — Singapore 569,954 571,346
Exhibition — Hong Kong 63,422 63,422
656,609 658,001

| | 4 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Distribution and production — Mainland China

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years and a pre-tax discount
rate of 20% (2017: 20%), which reflects specific risks relating to the Group's Mainland China segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Exhibition and distribution — Singapore

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years and a pre-tax discount
rate of 13% (2017: 13%), which reflects specific risks relating to the Group's Singapore segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Exhibition — Hong Kong
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow

projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years and a pre-tax discount
rate of 119 (2017: 11%), which reflects specific risks relating to the Group's Hong Kong segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Inventories are carried at cost of HK$2,592,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$2,759,000) which comprised largely
goods for resale.

BAZANRE (RE) BR AT
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FILM RIGHTS

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Film rights — completed 21,459 23,968
Film production in progress, at cost 13,409 6,485
34,868 30,453
Cost:
At | January 413,033 432,244
Additions 12,593 10,609
Disposal - (5,862)
Expiry - (42,197)
Exchange adjustments (14,631) 18,239
At 3| December 410,995 413,033
Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At | January 382,580 386,204
Amortisation 5813 6,340
Written back on disposal - (5,200)
Impairment 2,069 19,649
Expiry - (42,197)
Exchange adjustments (14,335) 17,784
At 3| December 376,127 382,580
Net book value:
At 3| December 34,868 30,453

Film rights represent films, television drama series and self-produced programmes.

Film production in progress represents films under production.

In accordance with note 2(k) of the Group’s accounting policies, the Group performed impairment tests at 31 December
2018 and 2017 by comparing the attributable carrying amounts of the film rights/self produced programmes with the

recoverable amounts.

The directors assessed the recoverable amounts of the film rights based on the present value of estimated discounted
future cash flows. Impairment of $2,069,000 (2017: $19,649,000) for film rights was recognised for the year ended 31

December 2018.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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18 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(a) Trade receivables

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Trade receivables 41,590 51,037
Less: Loss allowance (UK (1'17)
41,473 50,920

(ii)

Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within | month 25,328 42,125
Over | month to 2 months 10,067 57228
Over 2 months to 3 months 3,779 196
Over 3 months 2,299 3,371
41,473 50,920

The Group usually grants credit periods ranging from one to three months. Each customer has a credit limit
and overdue balances are regularly reviewed by management.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, the concentration of credit risk is not considered significant. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate their fair values. Further details
of the Group's credit policy are set out in note 25(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2018, trade receivables of the Group included nil amounts due from related companies
(2017: HK$30,000) and nil amount due from a joint venture (2017: HK$814,000), which are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable within one year.

(b) All of the other receivables, deposits and prepayments (including amounts due from related companies and joint
venture) are expected to be recoverable within one year.
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19 DEPOSITS AND CASH

()

(b)

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Deposits and cash comprise:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Deposits at banks 594,073 444786
Cash at bank and in hand 833,022 [,701,041
1,427,095 2,145,827

Less: Pledged deposits for bank loans (137,000) (184,701)
Deposits and cash 1,290,095 [961,126

Less: Time deposits with original maturity of
more than three months when acquired - (60,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in consolidated statement of cash flows 1,290,095 [,901,126

As at 31 December 2018, deposits and cash placed with banks in Mainland China amounted to HK$208,204,000
(2017: HK$314,692,000). Remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to relevant rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the government of Mainland China.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.

Bank loans

and other Finance
borrowings leases Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Note 20) (Note 21)
At | January 2018 1,234,930 269 1,235,199
Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans 458,400 - 458,400
Repayment of bank loans (398,617) - (398,617)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid - (269) (269)
Total changes from financing cash flows 59,783 (269) 59,514
Exchange adjustments (1,000) - (1,000)
Other changes:
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) - 9 9
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid - (¢)) (¢))
Other ancillary borrowing costs 5,635 - 5,635
Total other changes 5,635 - 5,635
At 3|1 December 2018 1,299,348 - 1,299,348
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20 BANKLOANS

()

(b)

(©)

(d)

At 31 December 2018, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Within | year or on demand 274,850 359,790
After | year but within 2 years 770,350 148,587
After 2 years but within 5 years 214,542 682,665
After 5 years 39,606 43,888
1,024,498 875,140
1,299,348 1,234,930

Bank loans
— Secured 1,269,348 1,204,930
— Unsecured 30,000 30,000
1,299,348 1,234,930

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost. All bank loans bear interest at
floating interest rates which approximate market rates of interest.

At 31 December 2018, the bank loans were secured by:
(i)  an office property of a subsidiary located in Hong Kong (2017: one);

(i) two properties of a subsidiary located in Singapore and existing deed of assignment of insurance over the
properties (2017: two);

(i) deposits of subsidiaries of HK$ 137,000,000 (2017: HK$184,701,000); and
(iv)  equity interests in its four subsidiaries of the Company (2017: two subsidiaries).

At 31 December 2018, bank loans of HK$1,299,348,000 (2017: HK$1,234,930,000) were guaranteed by corporate
guarantees from the Company and its subsidiaries.

Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain ratios of the
Group's financial performance on consolidation basis, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on
demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 25(b) to the financial statements. As at 3|1 December 2018, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.
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21 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 31 December 2018, the Group had obligations under finance leases repayable as follows:

2018 2017
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
With | year - - 269 278
Less: Total future interest expenses - )
Present value of lease obligations - 269

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED CHARGES AND DEFERRED REVENUE
(a) Trade payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, as of the end of the reporting period:

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

Current to 3 months 106,358 100,001
Within 4 to 6 months 3,424 1,989
Within 7 to 12 months 350 1,323
Over | year 11,681 10,886
121,813 [14,199

At 31 December 2018, trade payables of the Group included the amounts totalling HK$25,000 (2017: HK$26,000)
due to related companies which were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Al of the other payables and accrued charges (including amounts due to related companies) are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

(c) Deferred revenue represents contract liabilities arising from billings in advance and customers’ advances. All of the
deferred revenue is expected to be recognised as income within one year.

| ZO ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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23

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

(b)

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Provision for taxation for the year 34,548 327921
Tax paid during the year
— Capital gain tax on gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (311,692)
— Other income tax (38,548) (12,005)
Disposal of subsidiaries - (3,941)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 28,807
Tax refunded relating to prior years - 890
Balance of tax provision relating to prior years 34,792 8,475
30,792 38,455
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position - -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position (173,383) (174,778)
(173,383) (174,778)

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

and the movements during the year are as follows:

Fair value Depreciation Intangible
adjustments allowances assets  Withholding
arising from in excess acquired tax on
Tax losses business of related in business  unremitted
recognised combinations  depreciation combinations earnings Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Deferred tax arising from:
At | January 2018 - 70,188 21,431 74,212 8,947 174,778
Exchange adjustments - (155) (442) (180) - (777)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss
(note 7(a)) - (1,193) (59) - 634 (618)
At 31 December 2018 - 68,840 20,930 74,032 9,581 173,383
At | January 2017 (6,160) = = = 9471 3311
Exchange adjustments (2,852) - 371 - - (2,481)
Credited to profit or loss (note 7(a)) (11223) — (4920 — (524) (16,667)
Disposal of subsidiaries 20235 = = = = 20235
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 70,188 25980 74212 - 170,380
At 31 December 2017 = 70,188 21431 74212 8947 174778
BRERRE (L) BR AR
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised
At 31 December 2018, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of accumulated tax losses of
approximately HK$661,345,000 (2017: HK$674,224,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
expire under current tax legislation except for the balances of HK$ 13,571,000 (2017: HK$13,982,000) which can
only be carried forward for five years under the laws of the relevant jurisdiction.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2018, temporary differences relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
HK$ 1,562,000 (2017: HK$1,562,000). Deferred tax liabilities of HK$78,000 (2017: HK$78,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) Share capital

2018 2017
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
HK$’000 HK$'000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 6,000,000,000 600,000 6,000,000,000 600,000
Ordinary shares, issued and
fully paid:
At | January 2,799,669,050 279,967 2,742,519,248 274,252
Shares issued under Share option scheme - - 112,754,429 ['1275
Shares repurchased - - (70,530,000) (7,053)
Converted from convertible bond - - 14,925,373 1,493
At 31 December 2,799,669,050 279,967 2,799,669,050 279,967

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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(a) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Share option scheme
Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of the
Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or
provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's
directors, including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of the Group and
shareholders of the Company. The Scheme became effective on | | November 2009 and will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding
any independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the option).

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted within 30 days inclusive of, and from the day of the
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$| by the grantee. The vesting period, the exercise
period and the number of shares subject to each option are determinable by the directors. The exercise
period may not exceed |10 years commencing on such date on or after the date of grant as the directors of
the Company may determine in granting the share options and ending on such date as the directors of the
Company may determine in granting the share options. Save as determined by the directors of the Company
and provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant share option, there is no general requirement that a
share option must be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, provided always that it shall be at
least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer
of grant of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange's closing price of the Company's shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon exercise of all share options granted and to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) is an amount
equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at || November 2009. This limit can be
refreshed by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the
Listing Rules. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options granted to each eligible
participant under the Scheme within any |2-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings.
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(a) Share capital (continued)
(i)  Share option scheme (continued)
Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

The movements of share options during the year ended 3| December 2017 held by the Directors, chief
executive and other employees of the Group are set out in the following table:

Closing price
Number of pershare  Number of
share options Granted Exercised Lapsed  immediately ~ share options
outstanding during the during the during the beforethe  outstanding
Exercise asat  yearended  yearended yearended date of asat
Name or category of Date of grant of price I January 31 December 31 December 31 December grantof 31 December
participant share options pershare  Exercise period 2017 2017 2017 2017 share options 2017
(Note (b))
HK$ HK$
Director
W Kebo 3 Apil 2017 0828 3 April 2017 to 2 April 2019 - 2743009 (2743009) - 0810 -
13 April 2017 0840 13 Apri 201710 12 April 2019 - 106991400 (106:991400) - 0830 -
Mao Yimin 14 July 2015 0590 14)uly 20150 I3 July 2017 27400000 - - (27400000) 0578 -
Wu Keyan 14)uly 2015 0590 14July 20150 13 July 2017 2000000 - (2,000,000 - 0578 -
Li Pei Sen 14)uly 2015 0590 14July 20150 13 July 2017 27200000 - - (27,200,000 0578 -
Chow Sau Fong Fiona 14 July 2015 0590 14July 20150 13 July 2017 27400000 - - (27:400000) 0578 -
Leung Man Kit 14 July 2015 0590 14)uly 201510 I3 July 2017 70000 - (170000) - 0578 -
\Wong Sze Wing 14 )uly 2015 0590 4July 201510 13 July 2017 170000 - (170,000) - 0578 -
Other participants
In aggregate 14)uly 2015 0590 14July 20150 13 July 2017 55480000 - (680000)  (54800,000) 0578 -
139820000 109734429 (112754429)  (136,800000) -
Notes:

@) Being the weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the dates on which the share options
were granted.

(b)  Mr. Huang Shao-Hua George resigned as a Director with effect from 3 June 2016 and the share options he held
lapsed on that date.

(o) Ms. Chow Sau Fong Fiona was appointed as a Director on 3 June 2016 and the share options she held was
separately disclosed from other participants for the year ended 31 December 2016.

(i) Dividends
During the year ended 3| December 2018, a special dividend of HK$0.253 per ordinary share amounting to
a total of HK$708,316,000 was declared and paid (2017: a special dividend of HK$0.351 per ordinary share
amounting to a total of HK$1,002,201,000), which was based on 2,799,669,050 ordinary shares in issue on
the date of declaration.

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserves
(i)  The Group

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(ii) The Company

Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At | January 2018 771,749 15,886 271,644 731,707 1,790,986
Changes in reserves for 2018:
Loss for the year - - - (2,802) (2,802)
Dividends declared in respect of
current year 24(a)(ii) - - - (708,316) (708,316)
At 31 December 2018 171,749 15,886 271,644 20,589 1,079,868
Capital Convertible
Share  Shareoption  redemption  Contnbuted  bonds equity Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits Total

Note HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000

At | January 2017 694639 219250 8833 271,644 40393 204091 1248850

Changes in reserves for 2017:

Proft for the year = = = = = 1490500 490,500
Transfer to retained profts on lapse
of share options 4(a)() - (28619) - - - 28619 -

Change in fair value of equity
component of convertible bonds

upon modification of terms = = = = (5469) 5469 =
Partial conversion of convertible bonds 10696 - - - (1746) - 8950
Re-measurement upon early

redemption of convertible bonds - - - - (1228)) 12282 =
Transfer of reserves upon early

redemption of convertible bonds - - - - (208%) - (208%)
Shares issued under share

option scheme 108712 (26,060) = = = = 82652
Shares repurchased (42.298) = 7053 = = (7053) (42298)
Equity-settled share-based transaction - 549 - - - - 1549
Dividends declared in respect of

current year 24(a)i) - - - - - (1002201) (1,002,201
At 31 December 2017 71,749 = 15886 271,644 = 731707 1790986
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(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account is governed by Sections 40 and 54 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

(ii)  Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(r)(ii).

(iii) Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
repurchased and cancelled.

(iv) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between the nominal value of the Company's shares in
issue, in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries, and the aggregate net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition; and (i) the net transfer of HK$80,000,000 after setting off the
accumulated losses from the share premium account pursuant to the Company's capital reorganisation in
May 2007. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company
is distributable to shareholders of the Company.

(v) Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, the companies established therein are required to
transfer a certain percentage of their profits after tax to the reserve funds until the balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the reserve funds
may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation by way of paid-up capital.

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 2(v).

(d) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the
Company representing the retained profits, amounted to HK$20,589,000 (2017: HK$731,707,000). In addition, the
Company's share premium account, contributed surplus, and capital redemption reserve in an aggregate amount of
HK$1,059,279,000 (2017: HK$1,059,279,000), as at 31 December 2018 may be distributed to shareholders in
certain circumstance as prescribed by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

(e) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its gearing structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the gearing structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its gearing structure calculated on the basis of external borrowings, which includes bank loans
and obligations under finance lease over total assets.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

25

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 35%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may raise new equity financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The gearing ratios at 3| December 2018 and 2017 are

as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bank loans 1,299,348 1,234,930
Obligations under finance leases - 269
1,299,348 1,235,199
Total assets 4,026,186 4,676,769
Gearing ratio 32.3% 26.4%

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, currency and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business. These
risks are limited by the Group's financial management policies and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss
to the Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, pledged deposits and
deposits and cash.

In respect of pledged bank deposits and deposits and cash, the Group only places deposits with major financial
institutions in Hong Kong, Singapore and the PRC.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has established credit control policies of which credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures for debts recovery are in place to minimise the credit risk. In
addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate loss allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts. With such policies in place, the Group has been able
to maintain its bad debts at minimal level.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases. The allowance for expected credit losses is insignificant.

BAREARRE (KE)BRAF
72018

127



128

Notes to the Financial Statements

25

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay. As deposits received do not have fixed repayment terms,
their carrying amounts have not been included in the table.

For a term loan subject to repayment on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflows based on the contractual repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the

timing of the cash outflows if the lender was to invoke its unconditional right to call the loan with immediate effect.

As at 3| December 2018

Total More than More than

contractual Within | year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted | year or less than less than More than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade payables 121,813 121,813 121,813 - - -
Other payables and accrued charges 163,144 163,144 163,144 - - -
Bank loans 1,299,348 1,372,847 312,736 797,820 218,295 43,996

1,584,305 1,657,804 597,693 797,820 218,295 43,996

As at 3| December 2017

Total More than More than
contractual Within | year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted | yearor less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Trade payables 114,199 114,199 114,199 = = =
Other payables and accrued charges 200,276 200276 200276 = = =
Bank loans ,234930 1,320,883 396,506 175,040 704,462 44,875
Obligations under finance leases 269 278 278 = = =
1,549,674 1,635,636 711,259 175,040 704,462 44875
Adjustments to present cash flows
on term loans based on lender's
right to demand repayment (6,821) 57831 (5,655) (14,122) (44,875)
1628815 769,090 169,385 690,340 =
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25

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate. Exchange differences arising on settling or translating these
foreign currency monetary items at rates different from those at dates of transactions giving rise to these monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group enters into transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. Consequently, the Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of the relevant functional
currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that
portion of the Group’s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the relevant functional currency. As
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the HKD/USD exchange rate. The currencies giving rise to foreign currency risk are primarily Renminbi and
Singapore dollars. Management of the Group continuously monitors the Group's exposure to such foreign currency
risks to ensure they are at manageable levels.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate. For presentation purpose, the amount of exposure are shown in original
currencies.

Exposure to foreign currencies

2018 2017

Singapore Singapore
Renminbi dollars Renminbi dollars
’000 ’000 '000 '000

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments 46 - 3 =
Deposits and cash 65,341 2,941 63,475 16
Other payables and accrued charges (218) (166) (209) —
Deferred revenue (359) - (1,473) =
Intercompany balance 280,211 - 253,517 =
Bank loans - (68,800) - —
Net exposure to currency risk 345,021 (66,025) 315313 16

(i)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit after taxation and retained
earnings that would have arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
Other components of equity would not be affected by changes in the foreign exchange rates:

2018 2017
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after
in foreign  taxation and in foreign taxation and
exchange in retained exchange retained
rates earnings rates earnings
HK$’000 HK$'000
Renminbi 5% 16,421 5% 15,797
(5)% (16,421) (5)% (15,797)
Singapore dollars 5% (15,795) 5% 4
(5)% 15,795 (5)% )
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(c) Currency risk (continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis in the above table present an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the

Group entities’ profit after taxation and equity measured in the respective functional currencies and shown in
original currencies.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as for 2017.

(d) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily to the Group's short
and long-term loans. Borrowings at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group manages its interest rate risk exposures in accordance with defined policies through regular review with
a focus on reducing the Group's overall cost of funding as well as having regard to the floating/fixed rate mix
appropriate to its current business portfolio.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting

period:

2018 2017

Effective rate Effective rate

% HK$’000 % HK$'000
Fixed rate borrowings:
Obligations under finance leases

(note 21) - - 6.6% 269

Variable rate borrowings:
Bank loans (note 20) 2.38%-4.04% 1,299,348 2.25%-3.86% 1,234,930

(iij)  Sensitivity analysis
At 3| December 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all other

variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s profit after taxation and total equity by
approximately HK$ 10,850,000 (2017: HK$10,306,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk in existence at
that date. The |% increase/decrease represents management's assessment of a reasonable possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as for 2017.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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26 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding not provided for in the financial statements

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s share of the joint venture’s own capital commitments in respect

of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000

Contracted for:
L !1,763 N iy
Authorised but not contractedforr =~~~ o -
11,763 [,477

In addition to the Group's share of the joint venture's own capital commitments above, the Group had the
following capital commitments in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at 31 December

2018 and 2017:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
Contracted for:
Hong Kong 230 1,259
Singapore 30,439 21,414
Mainland China 580,665 -
611,334 22,673
Authorised but not contracted for:
Hong Kong 19,765 60,741
19,765 60,741
631,099 83414
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26 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Operating lease commitments

(i)  Aslessor

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases are receivable as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000

Leases on premises expiring
— within one year 338 321
— after one year but within five years - 321
338 642

(ii)  As lessee

At 31 December 2018, the Group's total future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating

leases are payable as follows:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000

Leases on premises expiring
— within one year 127,583 104216
— after one year but within five years 309,451 244,044
— after five years 117,785 89,187
554,819 437,447

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office premises and cinemas held under operating leases.

The leases typically run from one to twenty years.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases are subject to contingent rent payments, which are charged at 0.25%
to 27% (2017: 0.25% to 25%) of the monthly or annual gross box office takings in excess of the base rents as
set out in the respective lease agreements. In addition, 10%—12% (2017: 10%—12%) of the theatre

confectionary sales and advertising income is also charged as payments under certain leases.

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2018, the Company has issued guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries amounting to HK$1,320,239,000 (2017: HK$1,261,547,000). At 31 December 2018, banking facilities of HK$

1,310,239,000 (2017: HK$1,251,547,000) had been utilised by the subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2018, the directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under
any of the guarantees. The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of bank guarantees as their fair

values cannot be reliably measured and no transaction price was incurred.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of their respective businesses.
Having reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account legal advice received, the directors are of the opinion that
even if the claims are found to be valid, there will be no material adverse effect on the financial position of the Group.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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28

29

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

2018 2017

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

Office rental paid (i) 2,493 3216
Hong Kong cinema screen advertising fee income (ii) - 760
Cinema circuit management service fee expense (iii) - 5,305

Notes:

(i) This represents office rental expenses paid to two related companies. The rental expenses were charged on normal commercial
terms.

(i) This represents cinema screen advertising income received from one related company for granting exclusive rights to screen
advertising air-time in the Group’s Hong Kong cinemas. The fees were charged on normal commercial terms.

(i) This represents management service fees paid to a related company, which is indirectly held by Mr. Wu Kebo, for introducing a
top-class cinema circuit to PRC cinemas. The fees were charged at 1.2% of net box office receipts.

The transactions shown in notes (i) and (iii) above with related companies constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in chapter [4A of the Listing Rules are provided in the Reports of the directors. The continuing connected
transactions were either properly reviewed by the independent non-executive directors or constituted de minimis
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 January 2017, Giant Harvest Limited (“Giant Harvest”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with True Vision Limited (“True
Vision™), pursuant to which Giant Harvest conditionally agreed to sell and True Vision conditionally agreed to purchase,
the entire equity interest of City Entertainment Corporation Limited (“CECL") at a consideration of RMB3.286 billion (the
“Disposal”). Orange Sky Golden Harvest Cinema (China) Company Limited, the entity operating the Group's film
exhibition business in Mainland China, was 92.59% owned by CECL and 7.41% owned by Jiaxing Credit Prosperity
Investment Enterprise (Limited Partnership). The Disposal was completed on 28 July 2017.

The initial consideration of RMB3.286 billion was subsequently adjusted to RMB3.290 billion. Pursuant to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, the consideration is subject to further adjustments based on an audit as at 28 July 2017 (the
“Closing Audit”), and the parties may be entitled to further payment or compensation in respect of the renewal or
entering into of new leases of certain cinema premises.

During the year ended 3| December 2017, the Group received an amount of RMB2,990,257,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,455,908,000) in connection with the Disposal. The remaining consideration of RMB300,000,000 is held in escrow
and the recoverability of which is dependent on the Closing Audit. The parties may also be entitled to further payment or
compensation in respect of the renewal or entering into of new leases of certain cinema premises. As such, the directors
assessed the fair value of the consideration for the Disposal to be RMB2.990 billion. Any difference between the final
consideration received and the fair value of the consideration as assessed by the directors will result in adjustment to the
gain on disposal of subsidiaries and will be recognised in profit or loss upon finalisation of the consideration.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to the Closing Audit, Giant Harvest calculated the remaining
consideration for the Disposal to be RMB252,207,249 (equivalent to US$37,383,975). However, as True Vision did not
agree with the Closing Audit and refused to give any instructions to the escrow agent for settlement of the remaining
consideration to Giant Harvest, the Group commenced legal action in the Hong Kong High Court (the “Action”) against
True Vision and Nan Hai in September 2018 claiming a sum of US$37,383,975, being the remaining consideration for the
Disposal, and seeking other remedies, including interest and costs.

52
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Subsequently, Nan Hai made various allegations against the Company and Giant Harvest and counter-claimed for the loss
arising from the breach of Sale and Purchase Agreement by Giant Harvest. In October and November 2018, Nan Hai
issued writs of summons against the Company and Giant Harvest claiming amounts of RMB380,000,000 and
RMB82,146,000 respectively and other remedies, including interest and costs (the “Said Claims”). The Said Claims have
since been consolidated with the Action and will be litigated as one consolidated action in the Hong Kong High Court.

The directors of Company disagree with the Said Claims made by Nan Hai. Based on the available evidence and the
advice received from the Company's legal advisor, the directors of the Company have assessed the likelihood of the
Group incurring a liability as a result of the Said Claims as remote. No provision has therefore been made in respect of
the Said Claims. In view of the ongoing legal proceedings, the Group has not recognised the remaining consideration
claimed against True Vision and Nan Hai of RMB252,207,249 referred to above.

Further details of the legal proceedings are set out in the Company's announcements dated 4 September 2018, |0
September 2018, 2 November 2018 and 9 November 2018.

Note 25 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to financial risk management. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i)  Assessment of the economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on the periods over which
the assets are expected to be available for use. The Group reviews annually their estimated useful lives, based on
factors that include asset utilisation, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and
anticipated use of the assets tempered by related industry benchmark information. It is possible that future results
of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes in the factors
mentioned. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment would increase depreciation
charges and decrease non-current assets.

(ii)  Assessment of impairment of other property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews internal and external sources of information at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased. The Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount when any such indication exists. The recoverable
amount of an asset, or of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. The preparation of projected future cash flows involves the estimation of future revenue and operating costs
which are based on reasonable assumptions supported by information available to the Group. Changes in these
estimates would result in additional impairment provisions or reversal of impairment in future years.

(iii) Assessment of impairment of film rights

The Group reviews the film rights ageing analysis at the end of each reporting period. The recoverable amount of
film rights is assessed with reference to a value-in-use calculation at the end of the reporting period. The key
assumptions include the discount rate, budgeted gross margin and estimated turnover based on past practices,
experience and expectations in the film distribution and production industry. Changes in these estimates and
assumptions would result in additional impairment provision or reversal of impairment in future years.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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32

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv) Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group has performed an impairment test for goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
2(k)(ii). For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual cash-generating
units which are reviewed for impairment based on forecast operating performance and cash flows. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Cash flow projections
are prepared on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market conditions, and are
discounted appropriately.

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2018 2017

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Il beldees .. 1,360,293 . e
Current assets
Amount due from a subsidiary - 1,560
Prepayments 448 440
Deposits and cash 164 128
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 612 2B
Current liabilities
Payables and accrued charges 1,070 907
. . A S 207
Net current (liabilities)lassets “8 22|
NET ASSETS 1,359,835 2,070,953
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24
Share capital 279,967 279967
Reserves 1,079,868 1,790,986
TOTAL EQUITY 1,359,835 2,070,953

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 8 March 2019, the Group terminated the transaction in relation to the acquisition of the assets situated in the
Mainland China. Pursuant to the termination notice, the Group requested the seller to refund the deposits, being 10% of
the consideration amounting to RMB56 million, to the Group within 6 months from the date of termination.
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Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 16, Leases | January 2019
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments | January 2019
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle | January 2019
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures | January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of
HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below. While the assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual impact
upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may be identified before the standard is initially applied in the
Group's interim financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standard is initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(j), currently the Group classifies leases into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the
lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease accounting,
i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present value of the
minimum future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset
and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which case
the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group's accounting as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019. The group plans to elect to use the
modified retrospective approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at | January 2019 and will not restate the comparative
information. As disclosed in note 26(b), at 31 December 2018 the Group's future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amount to HK$554,819,000 for properties and other assets respectively, the majority of
which is payable either between | and 5 years after the reporting date or in more than 5 years. Upon the initial adoption
of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities and the corresponding right-of-use assets will be adjusted to
HK$1,309,84 1,000 respectively under modified retrospective approach where right-of-use assets equal to lease liability,
after taking account the effects of discounting, as at | January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, the group expects that the transition adjustments to
be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material. However, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above could have a material impact on the Group's financial statement from 2019 onwards.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



FelRR

RE=T—\F+-A=t—ALFE

—2-N\fF —B—tF
Htat FExT FAT
¢ 3%k4 1,050,972 1,006,599
SHE R A (397,581) (404,490)
EF 653,391 602,109
Hb Wz 5(a) 44,134 35915
Hih (B8), A FE 5(b) (13,555) 2,778,752
HEREITER (457,089) (485,058)
—RRITRER (123,171) (279,700)
Hih 2@ &R (3,981) (109,116)
BB YA E R I - 8200
REERRR 99,729 2,551,102
HMsER 6(a) (51,902) (77,835)
EliEE g2 A 35,834 73990
JEAR B & RN B 25w - 887
RRBE A F 6 83,661 2,548,144
FrS BRI X 7(a) (31,371) (309,831)
AEEEF 52,290 2,238313
BUR A £ FE4G
RARIRIEREE A 52,529 2,242,136
IR (239) (3.823)
AEERF 52,290 2238313
BREF (GBAL) 10
BERREE 1.88 80.45

F 1452200 B2 WA EY FERER ZEKBD -

BREARLE (KE)ERAF

F$R2018 |37



138

Fezmia®

BE-F—\F+-AZ+—AILFE

—E-N\E —T—+F
FHxT FHT
rEERNMN 52290 2238313
AEEHMEEURE :
HEneER S ER B 2 HE -
BRELTHBRERS 2 EREE
— BAFEIN B AR (5,594) 24,643
— BEBBINGEDE 53 15,049
— ERIRINGEE QT - 254
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, G54 39946
AEEEERREE 46,749 2,278,259
UTATEEZEKEEE
AAEIREREA 46,963 2,280,503
IR (214) (2244)
AEEZEMBRAEE 46,749 2,278,259

Brat - b EmEdEIR B WEREAREEE o

£ 1452200 B 2 M B S BIRER 2B IS ©

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



e MBIkAR

R_ZT—N\F+=-_A=+—AH
—E-)N\F —T—+F
KtaE FE T FBT
ERBEE
"EYE I 50,000 50,000
Hib¥% - HEREE I 368,119 351,319
S /1 613,525 624903
1,031,644 1,026,222
REEDE IR 13 145,933 142,937
HAbEUWGRIE « e RTETHIE 40,058 40,509
B EE 14 523,079 525,625
GES 15 656,609 658,001
BEIRAIBITF R 19 137,000 137,000
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 2,534,323 2,530,294
REBEE
7E 16 2,592 2,759
ES-AT 17 34,868 30,453
2 ZEWRIE 18(a) 41,473 50,920
HibEYRIE - e RFEN KA 18(b) 122,835 53516
BRI TR 19 - 47701
GRERS 19 1,290,095 1961,126
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,491,863 2,146,475
REBAE
RITER 20 274,850 359,790
2 S ENHRIE 22(a) 121,813 114,199
HEMEMRERETER 22(b) 163,144 200,276
IRAE W 22(c) 56,591 71,180
REHREES 21 - 269
JERI IR 23(a) 30,792 38,455
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 647,190 784,169
REBEEZRE 844,673 1,362,306

BREFIE (EE) BRAT
- Zizaos |39



140

FeEMEBERAR

RZF—-\F+_A=t—H

—E-N\FE —T—+F

KtaE FExT FAT
AE@ERr®BE®E 3,378,996 - 3,892,600
EREBEE
RITER 20 1,024,498 875,140
RERIEBE 23(b) 173,383 174,778
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,197,881 1049918
EEFE 2,181,115 2,842,682
RAER #E 24
L& 279,967 279,967
] 1,901,693 2,563,046
RATREFEABGERESE 2,181,660 2,843,013
FEIER (545) (331)
ERBE 2,181,115 2,842,682
EEeN _E-NE=A-++ASHREES-

A5 EER
EF EF

£ 1452200 B 2 M B S BIRER ZBKED ©

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



FeaBIR

HE-_Z—)\F+-A=+—RHLFE

RA%E
Bx RGRE R HABR RREEE  ERRE  REEA ait  FEREE  BReH
Mt Thn T TEn TiEn Thn T TAn Tin TR TR

RZB-N§-F-Bzk8 279,967 711,749 15,886 80,000 3,134 40 1,691,537 2,843,013 (331) 2,842,682

R-S-NE2RERS:

RERER/ (88) - - - - - - 52,529 52,529 @9 52,290
Hh2ENE - - - - - (5,566) - (5,566) 25 (5,541)
L S R . S S A L . S (@) 41
HAFRERZRE 1)) - - - - - - (T08316)  (108316) - (108316)
RZB-NFtZR=t-R2&H M%7 171,149 15,886 80,000 3,134 (4826) 1,035,750 2,181,660 (545) 2,181,115

F 1452200 B2 WA EY FERER ZEKBD -

BREARLE (KE)ERAF
72018

| 4|



142

FeaBIR

BE-F—\F+-AZ+—AILFE

AEE TaRES
Bx RARE ERERE BE HARR BRES ERRR AbRR  EERR  RERH ait ARER  ERS
W TEn TRz TEr  TEr  TEr TR A TEr  TEr A AR TER TER
R=%-tE-A-A2kH VABY 6489 90 8833 80000 759 @O (35 4033 4308 1S3 B4 159003
REB-tECRERE:
RERET/(EE) = = = - - - - - - 246 2403 G83) 2238313
L2 AN = = = - = - B = - - B 1579 29946
2EbEESR - - - - = - R - - 2% 2080503 Q) 2278259
HENBAR - - - - - (5% 288 - - -3y M) Q0%
BEHARER - - - - - = = - - = = () ()
BREXIFEAZRRE 240)0) - - (8819 - - = = - -9 - - -
RETHRAMER TR ES
EnBAZAAEED - = = - - = = - (5469) 5469 - = -
BrBEmARES 1493 108% - - - - - - (1746) - 1043 - 10443
RHBRTARESRENHE - - - - - - - - (28) nmw - - -
RABETARESRERGR - - - - - - - - (08%) - (08%) - (08%)
82(8)/6Rk - - - - - 7 - - - %) - - -
BAREEE - - - - - - - ) - - ) - )
Bt E-RHBARELZANA - - - - - - ) - - AT
REERBAAGE LR AR ER - = - - = = A - - M) (19
REBRETEE T2 R 5)0) 1275 108712 (26060) = = = = = = = 93977 = 93977
BEEZRH 7053  (#99) = 7053 - = = - - 7053 (@3l - W)
IWREE S RARTRRS = Y] - - = = - = - A - B4y
FAERERZRS ) - = = - = = = - - (1002200)  (1002.01) - (00200
PEBRELEREL R - - - - - - (119 - - - (19 - (119
RES-tETZA=t-AZEH M T = 15886 80000 3134 740 = - 19157 18808 (3l) 28468

£ 1452200 B 2 M B S BIRER 2B IS ©

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



9

FeEReRER

BE-T—\FT-A=f—ALEE

—2-N\F —T—+F
HiaF FET FHTT
R

FR A58 A g A 83,661 2,548,144

HETHEIE -
A EWA 5@) (28,321) (19,820)
MEER 6(a) 51,902 77,835
ME - BERRETE 6(c) 75,192 28,969
B EER 6(c) 1,482 740
HEWE - BE k&2 (W), EE 5(b) (180) 6,167
EEYEEE 6(c) - 34,000
EXRERE 6(c) 2,069 19,649
AJ SRR AR AR E 6(c) - 6210
MTEEMIAEZ AR EEE 5(b) - 70236
HHE 5 MR IE 6(c) - 6,548
H oAb EMGRIERE 6(c) - 10,897
AR IEAEE 2 IR X 8 - 25,429
RATER R ESR BT EEEH D 2 BB 5(b) - 13,570
1ERT AR E S R 2 518 5(b) - 10515
HEME AR 2 Was 5b) - (2201,414)
RIELEWB A RHBH Em 2 Was 5(b) - (270,762)
REYEGHE R R I - (8,200)
EihEERE RN (35,834) (73.990)
e AR Zm A - (887)
53 B BB 2 WA 5b) - (369,900)
BE i 598, (Was ) 558 23,552 (27,642)
EEESHEA 2 LERT(FHR) 173,523 (113,706)
FERDGEM) 123 (4,174)
B R RS AN (7,095) (3475)
B 5 RWFIER D 8,094 23,358
HAb EYGRIE - =& RIE FRIBIL N (72,475) (48,595)
B 5 T RIRE I 9,439 25219
H A RIB R ERTE A CRd), /0 (14,309) 232,475
B S CRi D), /180 (13,380) 24,888
REEHMEBRE 83,920 135,990

F 1452200 B2 WA EY FERER ZEKBD -

BAREARRE (KE)BRAF

F$R2018 |43



|44

lﬁéiﬁﬁl)l 2

0

HE-_Z—)\F+-A=+—RHIFE

—B-N\F T F

HiaF FHET FHTT

B IKAE 28,210 19,831
BB ER (66,068) (15,177)
ENREEERS ZF S 9) (1,810)
[=ERERE 23(a) (38,548) (12,005)
EIREDIA - 890
ERBHReREFR 1505 ] 127719

REFS
SAEEYE - BEREEZHE (95,635) (43410)
HEME - BE K& 1%2Fﬁ?%¥ﬂ 525 =
WHEM B AR - HMBRPTUER © - (937,323)
WE, (17 N\) B 317 5K 47,701 (121,953)
FAREREB#BR=(E8 2 EHFER - (60,000)
WHR R FE B HA B B R =18 B 2 & BifF 3K 60,000 4,480
ﬁ%r‘ﬁ% A B P15 IR F5E 29 - 2,915,005
;T —[EmE R A - (441)
A**ﬁ%ﬁ 991 1,010
AR 32,890 65,879
BEIEERER - (337)
pmEmfeReR® 46,472 RSN 1822510
BMEED

FTERITE RS RIE 19(b) 458,400 1,200,000
BERITER 19(b) (398,617) (545,407)
EfNRERERE 2 EXREH 19(b) (269) (8,630)
B HEREIAR 5 2 K - (49.351)
T RE AR AE P15 SR IE - 93927
B m AT AR E S 2 K - (235971)
AMRES BB ER - (10,000)
ERE 24(a)(ii) (708,316) (1,002,201)
B EMEERAR 19(b) - (21,350)
REITDMARSEE (648,802) (578,983)
ReRRLEEEFER (BD) IENEE (594,825) 1,371,646
R—A—BZReRRLEEEAR 1,901,126 503,622
NEERSB 2HE (16,206) 25,858
Rt-—A=+—-RAZAERREEHEER 19(a) 1,290,095 1.901,126

F 1452200 B2 WA SRR ZEKBD -

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

I 2ARER
BRAERRE(EB) GRAR(ARR ) ARBREFMALZ 2 BR AT AR 7] 2 M #EE R AR Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM | |, Bermuda ©

AARZ EBEBRIREER - AR7F] - ENB AR (RHEIAEE]) EBERRRESELE T EEXRBEREE -
HEIRM - IR EETEREY MUK KEXE - NESETEAMETEX RERGEREURNEE - PE
A~ FTONE AR R S R AR - B AR B F B R EREBHN U ERARMT 12

2 EFEEHEBX
() BHIERH
ZEPBEREDVERELGAHMAS (BB SRS NEGAEEB(EEMBRELL) ((BEUBRSE
A1 BEMAEERZERN(EERBRELER) (FEGFER) (KEESHELD]) ki)  FEEERNZ
S RAAR(EBRAGIDZ EBEREMARR - ZEMBRETHEEEHERIMABRAFESZ MR L
MR ZERFERTE - AEBRMZ ERG TR T OE -

AR AT EHE TRAEEASH I E R AR TR 313 BAET (BB 5 8201 « B
2(0) JRAA B B SRR3R 2R R B PR o S5 A SR B D 2 R 7 3 BB A R SA A @ R0 2 R B R
EMBD 2 AR -

(b) MEHRZEREE
BE- T \F+ A=+ RALFEZEAVBRREFAEEARAEANBE AR —ReEbE#

Bk

REMEMRTATEEERBE S NAEE - ETIREARBIRZEENBBERI BEBRN T XAE SR
BURE A

—  EREWEGENE2A) :

— HMESELmRET  EPHEEI s EARERERERSE (R0 &)
RRAETEC(EEMBREEL) 2HBHE  EREAFLHERRERAREE AERKRIZINBSBBEXY
B2 - A RRR - ARG REARRDREBEEEEBRENEREATRAAEZZHAMREREL - L4
REREECEMEEARGI 2 EHREERAEREE 2 HEBKE - ERERARARNNZEMET -

AR RAABRRRSEREEEMN - WA ZEFTEFBERA 28N - AIRSETRZBAREARER - SfbE
I E BT R ARRBEBARE - AIRMERIERT 2 SRR R HER o

EEEBRER(EBYBRELENRFELHVERREBRERTEZHE - ARGEFTTHPRZRZ EERER
BIEE30 R ATER ©

&%%Kﬁ”%‘é(%@)g EYNE] |45



14

A 35 80 R GE

2

()

C))

SETBX (&)

Q%&ﬁgﬂ

BEEFMASEEMZENAEEZN ST HEERERZF (BN B RS ER) (BB BIHMEELDE
RIS o B THIRE ALK E A S ImR AR

() <(EBEUBRELEW @M TA
(i) (EBUBRELERDE 155 - REEFLEHWK
iy BE(BBRUBRERBZER)ENT  IIEXZRBHNE

ZERELBUARFEPHERENARERNANFEBEFE 2 EEARMBRRZ FBEE 2577 NEREREARY
g-

ANERE I B AN A AT AR W R AR (E IR AT Al s i -

PHE AR RIFERER

MEBEARRAEEZES 2 EE - WARBAEXZA2ELAMEREGMENEZMMR s ABREN - TaEREE
ZERZENFZEZSDERE  AEBYEZBERAFEGE - EHEARERTAEZENR - EZEHAKER
Hib NEHBZEERER -

RHBARZERE  BRREN < BREXREZZEFEE B IERERNGAMBHRRA - fRERAARFEZER X5
EBEREBAREEARRRIZMEE ZEMARZREN  SEREGAMBEHRRELHEE - RKERNARHER
S BCRBRER 2 HH T ERARB R EAR - HHEBERRNEZRERESHRBEZD

3FT*H§T&*¥¢Ejf3EEE$“ﬂ§%§‘i?ﬁ%%§ﬁ2ﬁﬂ%”ﬂﬁéﬁ AR B R A Rt S S R s A AEAR R A5
CHESASEER PUZEREELNASRMABETERCANEME - HBBEEBAHME - Ert EIHERERRF
$§%@T EERANEFEREEREE D EHNB AR ZABAEEFETIAGE -

FEREREAESAMBRARZERIAR G @ BARARREEERSFAE2H - ARBEXEERNZFERERDS
RERERRESZERERTINERARABHEREEEARRBARRZEA 2 AFEBRREER2E R %@ﬁﬁﬁ@
REFEREEHAEAZERREMEEZERAAZANEE  REME2p) X (@ (BTFEBEEEME) PER

MBEIMRKRENN HERAILE

REEEIFREZDE 2 MBRREGEBHERERS - MEaBENZEREIHERER 2 SBAFHAE
ARBER S 2 B8 - TSN EELRE T SEREMNEE -

HAEEREMBARZIZHE  EHEXSBEEFHEGHMBEARZ2HMREAR - MASAERNERE
REEZHIEE BDAEZANBARRE 2 ESHRARERR - MteBERRRAS ﬁé?ﬁ%kﬁﬁ
ZARER(HER) RBERRRA LRI RELEHRERR ZUA (RMFE2e)

EARRRBZFBIRARA - RIB R R 2 RE TR A NERRERBESIRR (R 2W) -

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

2

(e)

®

SR (&)
Eﬁﬁ".&ﬁl&%’s‘ﬁi
BEARDAEEAXAQRAIUHZAREREEETATE  BESEPBREEAK - (BIFEHISHREHE
EBECER -

BER—IATH Bt AEEIARREEMEFETOBEDME R ZESE  UEREGUMLHZEE
-

REENRIRA LRI REBRB LT ARAMBEE - BIFEDBRREFE (FEADBAREFEZLE
AR - RipEaE  REVBERRAAR  YRAKEREREHRNEBE BTSN EEFEZ AR ERAR
BRAZE D (ME)EHRE - RERABEEER - WHBREERBEEMKAREFERAEERARE —E
DRZBERRBEELEARRE - IR ZREFABASENUBRELHZBREHREEFECEPIREKES
B2 EADRER R (R 2) EH AR - WEE BBHRARZERHSD  AEERFAREZRESREEELRZ
BEEBEAREREBENGS Wt R ER - MAREREZRESREMEE RS 2 WBRRFREIAR TR
B EmEamR AR

BEAEEEEHERRRSLELEFERBRENZBE RN R #a  AREZESEHIBETS  ATH
REMEIR - \ﬁﬁzli‘il/ﬁiﬁ*/imﬂzﬁ BfE: iﬁ ZIREH RS - st E - AREZ AR
REAHEZREREE  EREE LBRARERZME RTINS EEEREFE D 2 EREMREES -

AEEEAEBZNAMAECRETRIMESERER BN RERGTREE  UAKERREHR 2 ERAR -
HAEECEREEREIRERERANELR - FUBERT - ZREBEERF IR RHER -

MR ERNR 2 RERANAECEZREXBRBRIER  AITSENABRERESR - R - ZREMLBEREE
AR ©

EFAREMERT  MAKETBEBERRFEAZE NI TBHELXFHREHE  AARRHERZER

BN eiiEs  MAELRERRBERER - EAEREEATENIKRERRAZFEE AIDREBEZINREY
RZEBRANERR  MUSBERR/NIEREREEZANE

() EBEBEREZARE RERBHREMFZERERS SRIAEELMMFEBARREAAEBZEN 5
i

() RNEBABEGRBARTIRNEERBEZ A FEZBERD -
Wi BZ AR ()R - AEEZBNKNERERAHEBA 2K -

BB AR RREBRIE EBAHAEcREeRIEEREAREELENXSARCELEN (FAHE
ELAmRME) - WASFERENR (M)

FAHERSELENR  EARGEAREZSHENFTELERBRTARS

BAZANRE (RE) BR AT
F$72018

147



14

A 35 80 R GE

2

FTESTHBE (&)

(2)

(h)

RARME

REMEERRDES WAL SRERNEEMHEE S AEEER (RIE2) HAEZ TR SEF - BIEME
BRI AEERRBE 2 TR EEZRBERP AR BARAEREMEZYE -

BREMEZAAEINER - EMNRERRZEDEDACRRERERER - AERBETEAEEQABERRI -
REMERAERRBREXLEREYEMEERBIERER o KEWEBS WAL 2 (0) (Vi PRt T AN ©

WARERELEHEREYERSURDES WAL, REFEE  EHRSSREEVEZEEDBRARRR
BWE - TN BERRENEZMEERTUAANR Mz EHERA (RHE2()) - M&ERTERRLRHE
HERREMREYERRZ S5 BOR - MEMNFIRMEE2() Pty AR -

Htth® - BERRME
TR - BiE R R AT B TO R AR R E RO ERRAR (RME20) :

FEERMEREE L L2 BFHORSREERERE (RME2())

B kBB BAERERERA (RME2)) - &

B s &R EEB (ERTRRRIN) -

Y% BEMRKEREZKABRREBEEMEAELESRERNE S EXAERIEOHFREREMES CERE
TEEAR - W% - BERREE B RABEREL 2 (MEERRERAE) - —RREELHHEBBEHR o
BREBTABRXSERERYE  BEMRERBARES 2 ARREENDBAMIEN - RiMZEAB ZKAER 5
8 MAMRAXE TUERNE (ERZBEZEIRARELRENRIAR -

ERETIRERER 2 EE BRENREMBEESERIIE BT THE - KARERE THHEZ BEEEERAE - 5%
TRREREARERSSNDER/BEEERNZME - BER&E -

BEXHEYE BEMREBREELZAE HZABCHEMSRRFRAERNEME R 2 ZHEE - TN
REK L B IR TR

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

2

FESHBXRE)
(h) Hfth¥hsk - WERRM (2

(@

FETRATFLLRUEREMEYE - BEMRBRBRANRE G RSEE(WE)FE

SEREREBERAZEE L BN S R
B 2.5% — 10.0%
AEmELE TG PR #A Sk AT (66 A EE A (AR & R 2E)
28 MRk 6.7% — 33.3%
REARKE 8.3% — 20.0%
E 20.0%

EVE  BELRREERBEASS ZAIEREHAR - AIZBRERAESEDEESS D  MEMBOBOREINE -
BEZEAFHEERSRER WA BEFETRE -

| RE (RS

@

(ii)

(iii)

EE
SREERTHNBRBREBERGATBHIRARIR(RHE2K) - KABERBASEERARZERARAX -

HESEASEEBNBEER -

BR

FBAPTUE 2 RN IS B SR A (B -

BRI A B EBER G MBI RIIR (RHE2) - A EBAERFHZBEEERE B2
HAEMERREERERAL - FHEREZAERFHABRR NGRS EFIR - WEETEHERER
EREEFERAEAFHZ M -

EFBHE
XA B EPRERNE B iR A EER

ABRAERFH 2 TP BEREKATR Rt H R EBERR G M BHRRINER (RIE2K)) - BTy
REMGFAERFHAFRRNEREMBEET P BER TR G RAEBE(WE)FE -

BIEBE N A BFRA

BAZANRE (RE) BR AT
F$72018

149



15

A 35 80 R GE

2

FTESTHBE (&)
HARE

HAEERE —HLZH (B —ERZH—RIIRZEK) LN —BXZEREEELERTE RN FRAERER—Fk
—EEMNF AZZHEERHEE—AEE - ZBEREDERZLZHZERARTFEMEL - MARBHELHEES
NHE 2 AR ES -

()

0}

(ii)

i)

HETFAREEEZ T E

AEBRBEEERE  AMARZBREIRREKEREEREAEEZEEDDRRABRERELERS -
FIARZBARSREREOBRYEEEEAEE 2 HENSRAKLEHE  MHATERRI

— RREHEREEATNAREMEERZIVE REEMFIEENBARENE  MOBRKRENE
AR BB BT SR A AR (RMRE2) « &

— BELLHESHFERERNHERERAREELZEENE L2BFRARESRFEZ L - ARR
REREHERSS  BRIFETEENRBELERESFHSERNR - MEFEMNMmE - BERKIER
SESVRI UK ARABEAREHE 2R -

REHEER

HWAREREREBEEMEFE2EERMARE - ARBEEFED 2NFRERREZ S5 SRS BHEH
RN - WA EMEELER EE MR REEEEMES 2 MR RIRI - REZHEBEEREIE
HZ FHESBEZ —HONBHER - IREEREEZ ST HREREME -

BECEHRERE 2 T2 WBRATRBERBAIRELEESN  HOZMES B AILEYMEIBRINE
MisE2(g) °

REBEHERSZEE

MAREREHENERSEECERARE IREREEEEARNEZLHE  A(HMRE)ZFEEREES
MR BUE - HERRYE  BELRE  MENGRMBRX ZBEBENRSEARMEMEAE - RMEE
ERARBEILENERROFHARENTE - A EBREIERGEECEGE  MAREEZ
AR B F B FHR ST E (INRTEE2(0) FTEL) o BB R IR TV IRIEH NI 200 < @R AR - &N ATk
S BERDRBENPEG AR  NESSFHRENSECEEAROBEE 2 EHER - IRBEHEH
ELZ Gt BRNEREIR -

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

2

@

SR (&)
(k) ﬁﬁﬁh&%ﬁﬁﬁ
ERTAEEES
A BZZFE—NF—A—HEERZHE

AEEGATEEBREREEER((BHREEEEDOEERE

— BREHRAHENSREE(RERERASTERBEARE S MAMEKTIR) -

EHEREBENGE

EHEEBEEEEBENEEINEGS - EEBERAMEERRSRRENRETE (BIREA OE
MNAEENReRERASERREINRERELMHER) -

AR TEERX - RIFEHRSRBRRBIA TR KRR -

— TREENLE S NEMEKGIR  RYPERREENERNEREIEUE

— FEoREE: AHERNE-

RibFHEMEEBERMEENSERARATEEEEREERRNSRE VA -

Rt BRPEEFRER  AEESZREERTVTHBERARS N TEIRESHEIRRSEEH - k1A
BRABMBESEN  REHRRRGEARIERNER

EHMEEERRBATELSE

— REAEHEEERE: BEREEHR EANAREEENENEHMERNTARBE &

— EEFEHANEHEESE ERECEEBERXNERRE cBRHRERANMAENE
HE e TaHEE o

BIHRRSFENBERRBANENBEFEIANTRREEBENSENE - X5 eREENTREE
%Eﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ%E"ZK%Iﬂfﬂ*%%%ﬁ“‘%ﬁ’lﬁéﬁ%ﬁ@ THE  YREEEARENREZREREA
HAE & AT M TR B — AR AR L R HE 7T 79

SAAEMEMTAMS  AEE®RE EARREEERESZEREE - WENPERRS
TREZEERBRAELF  BEBERESNBEFEHANEREEERSENE -

15|



15

A 35 80 R GE

2 FESTEHE(E)
k) EHEBRREERES)
() =ZBIAEEESE(E)

Q)

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

B-F—N\F—H—HEBFHIHE (&)
EERBR AR LT

SR TANEERRB NS ERARE D KE LR - AEBESLENHE BB RN LR A
SR TAZERNNER - (EHEHNFMGER - ARERR - M) ERATKAREREET
REERER (A FENTHNERL T AARERE N EGFERER  K()EMEEESBRH0R -
ABRENEN FAEESZEABURENEERENEN  BRBAKCRIKEETNHBE KRR
BATENR SRR IEES -

ARmME  HMEEERRBMFERARE D AE LARFEERBIATER

i

— RERAHONRIHRINARESHAE
—  SRIANNSBHAIEETRNERSFAREERC(WER)
— ERARERENERIBHBEZERC R

— BT KERERRFENBMREHREHHEGARTEHASEREINENEERT
MEE -

HARERTANED - FEERRARE LT G IZ BRI EE S KR EEETT - Ml ARE
EHET  SRTARRARNEER RS (AR REERRTR) ETHA -

BEHEEEEREREAHETENMAEUARRER T AB VIS HANRNEERRED - BFHEE

EBERTBRNTAZESHONERTRERSRERDNEE - NEBEAE R T AERRERREE -
WiEBEERERYZELR T A RAEFLARREE -

HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED



A 3580 R GE

2

FESFTBER (&)
k) EEBRREERED)
() =ZBIAEFEEE(E)
A BT NF—F—HEEHAZHE (&)

MEBUWAZ T EEE

AR HT 5 2(0) (vil) RN BMA R EREENLREENE - BIFZEMEELREERE " RIF LS
WA RE ER B HAA ANEREERBEEE) FE -

RNEBREEH  AEBETHEREERGFEERE - E - AN ZRUSHEEZAARKRERES
THMEEZEMHEE  SREELRREERE -

CREEFERENERBEATIERESM:

—  EBALRBEVBRE

— ERA&H  WRESEHBRZNFEHAE

—  [ERAREAUESERESETEBHEER

— B m5 REXEERFELREAED  HEBABTANZE %
—  HARBOTALRMBERE  FHFEETIHHEKX -

SRR

FHRAER LT EYGOR - AREREHE (o228 eREENEREE - ZERBTHR
EAEBEEEFANLEEEXANELERHRSRENRARIRAGEEIMFEHRER -

BE1& W@ S BTHEH 2 B AR M U EA R A R 2 P R AR (E R [T -

ERFEARLE (EE) AR AR
BREARIRE( )Ei&fm |53



15

A 35 80 R GE

2 FESTEHE(E)
k) EHEBRREERES)
() =ZBIAEEESE(E)

®)

R=F—NF—HA—HFEBRE

R=ZF—N\F—A—Ra [EELER| BEARRGERBRERRANEF ANBRNEREE (HI10
B 5 REMBEFIR)WRERRE - REIEELBRIER - ERFERERER B ERRERSE -
BEEREZREBEE

—  EBALRBEVBRE

— ERA&H WRESIHBRZNFEHAE

—  [ERAREAUESERESETEBIHBEER

— B m5 REREERELREAEY  HEBABTAZE &

— REETARENAALEANESIERHTHREENERA -

fHFEERZERR - RIREEBZIA T EE kR

—  BIREERAIENESREMERFRRAMCEREEN S O REBRREEREERG
AXRERERENZRET - MBRPEEAN - BIRSHEENFRIA R RAERR - 4
SREEARCNRRER  PIIELUNBSRER AN REBRTEARE  eXRETE
BRRE - ARFHERENSREENAKRERE - SREAREANABLUEERRFR
ZEERBEEBRLRMITE -

i E R MRREBRENSFER)  BRZREAIFEM A E@RAREBRREENEHER  Alg

ERRBERESE - RESEENEREETEBEEENRAERBRBEFEREHEINEREE

TREETNRAENBER T T AR -

fied F2 2 S PR AN 1) B 0 B MO R B L A R 0 T MR 0 1A R A Rl DA TR 1 S FE DR F ELA - RUB RERY

WMEBBABERAR - WMAREERTREMEMTEN - AIRATITKENEEERIAZTEEN

REAEME - TR EBRBRP RN SB|MERBFKD - AR ERDED - BEROEMEEH R
HEBOEMEN SR E RN BRER o

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

2

FESTTBER (E)
k) EEBRREERES)

(i)

(iii)

At FnBEEZHiE

AEEGESREPRBHABRINEESR - UEE TIEER L HBREDR @ 3k (BERIN) A ERERZ
BEBERETNEFEXELRD

—  WE BEIRRE:

— DEAREBRKEHERECHMEMBENERS

— B

— |

I

— EWEEMERN R
—  AREHBURRRPRMBEBARZRE -

WEEENERIR  AIAGFEEZATKE SR - 1o HAEGERAERFHZHE  HATTBHNE
WEEREBVEAENS  BRSSFEEMRETR DS FHAFTKRESHE -

—  FEARESHE

BEZANESEDEAABRBEEXNANECREEZRSE - sHMEERBEER - HUKRBRIRERE
G ARRESRERRERE  MZBRXRREETSHEERHEEZTERZAEEZRE
R - MFEREEMEEZRSRMALRERFDBILNEMEE  AIRCSBEDRAIBIELRS
MAZB&NEERR(BNRSELSEN)ETE -

—  HRREER

REEREEXEMBEREELENSREATKOSER  GRERERRERE RS ELEN
BRAZAEEREEERIESEEZREEBEM (HZAE ML) 2 EAHEREE - HRARLD
WMABA (BB AEMEEZ REE - EEZRAENMIREENEERN AR BERH SRR
BASEERIEEBER(WEET) °

—  BEREER

HEBLNZEEMS  WAREETRESE G ERLRENED  REBESTIARD - &
BRERBENTEM o

MEBBRRO N SBEAAETFETEERNEEENREEE 2EERTDE  RERIERD IR ER
‘Oz FE B -

R B & B R

BB ETRE - AREBRRIKEEGHERDEMRT RUBREFEREAVBFREENEA 2P PP HIRE -
RPHEAR - AEEFRASATRFERZREN - BRRELIRE(RHE2W) -

SARTE AR T B 2 BERIE - B TR BRI D - B RANGZR B B 5% b B HAR A B 2 B IR
FRIGEGRZBEBE ISR L - KPR ZSBE) - EWER TR AED -

155



15

A 35 80 R GE

2

FTESTHBE (&)

0

(m)

(n)

(o)

w®
FRERARTEIFEMER 2 BEREAR -

RARFEAFLEFE - WBEMABERA - BRRAREFEERAREME RMNRAELE 2 HMRA o

AIE R FEE B R EBBIET 2 M EERMA S TR AR R EE Z AETAE o

BHEFER  ZFFEZREERERKDERER 2 HEER AN - TAMRGEEE 2R FERTFE ZMEE

BB E R 2 SRR ABRY - AT EZEMEESE - RERMSELRDTE AR SREIERER °
EXMNE
() EBEMmE

BEENEZ AT 2E RS R (BESFERT) 8 XAty o

BYNEIEEF RERE - TR AR R5HE S FORERRIR (RHE20) -

(i) RETEHRE
SUEPEXREREUWER 2 BY - TR ANBRERIRERBRETIR (R E21) - RABEME REEEY
BRZEERE - EERAEREF B ERSEXEE 2 Wl - AELREEE - SRETHKE - %
RAEBEZBREAE -

(i) EREEH
BREENEAN(BEEERX REEREREXARZ BGEE D) R R T8 HE KR EBREIR (R
2k) » BEEFE 2R T2 E BT HR (A FER) B R B -

(iv) B BHRERERE
B BEBEERENTIRERAYIER  BEEIREMEREFEFAE  WNKREMARTRERE (R
2(k)) °

W5 B H BRI
B 5 R HoAth MR FRIA T AN 65 [ AL G (A M W ER B HERR - (B ZR 1 A R i BN B B S (S (R(E - BIMRER( B FE R
AYRAGAE

YRR A B RN AR E AR E BB R EBEDIR (RME21) °

HeRAe¥ERAE

RekA2FERAERIRTHRERES  RROTLKEMTBEERE 2 BHESR - UREHRRBMIRE - AA AR
RERSEANEERE  TYHREXBEZFRRENEBE=MEARNIHZRE - #REGESRENERTE -
ReRALFERE RRRERERERENAKRERSER Z A D EMAKBY ZRITEX - REMREFERE
RIBHEE 2() FTERCR BT R (E BB 1R AT Ak -

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

()]

(q)

(r)

I:I-I_J-‘E& (/.E)
Eiﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
B 5 MEMENFIEN SR A ERR - RRIZEBHEKNANR  EMERPEY TEKR - BRZEAAR
MRER

FHEBEVSEARERBIER HRAMHER - IFEAR  fHEEENBRAFRIZBIERATIR - MBS RE
AEBEEKRA 2 @5 BORHER (RMEE2w)) °

BEREF

() BHESEFREEHERSERGEIIELZHE%
e FEMLL BFHFHR - TREAFERTEZHARSEIFEERBR 2KAE - 9EREBIRHMEBERSE 2
FENRE - BRI NSGEESBREATE - A Ll HBEBRBAENIE -

(i) BREMK
BTEEZEREZ AABEERREERAN  WAHEBRERAIEMERGFEE ANERRTHHLEREH
BRER T 2GR RESNE  RABNE — FRTHAEEEREE ﬁEEZ*é% 1614 7 B A1
EVSRERRAE - %k%Zﬁﬁ@ﬁ@@ﬁ%%%E%ﬁ% W E R B ERER T RE 2 et o
REBHE  HHRHEECBRESE SEEN - ERNBAFERRZ 2 AR AED 2 EHRE %m%/%
ABZER 218  RIFRRZEERXEERLSEE  WRERFEBERIELABEFARRSERR
BRE EHRARI B HARERMEB  ERECERHE N ERRETRELARERE)
VEER|EARR AN TEAERE 2§ Ew#ﬁﬁ%%@%°%$$%%mﬁ$%ﬁ%%vaﬂ%&%%ﬁﬁﬁ%
ABRBEITRODNBRAER 2 £5) AEREER (ERBERBER) -

Giii) BRI FEE

AEERERGEDEE A BIEIIAEBER2ETERHFRINENF B ([ZEHE ) 2 BB EMHZTE - uA§+
SIHRTRES RS iZE DECETE  WIRBZATEIR BN EE ST - ASBAME2EEH
RRAZAERFEF T2 RN FERNES - X2 EEEAKEEEDHABYEEESRA °

AEBRNTEAM 2 HERRREBHABRNEEZBRERAAD ([BRFERAKRAE D ZKE - BEZEK
SPEMER 2 M DREEREAFH S Z A S LEE - WIMRRBZRAG EIRE BN FERSIR -

BAZANRE (RE) BR AT
F$72018

157



15

A 35 80 R GE

2

FESITBE(E)
(s) PR
() AEEFMEHOENSEHEREEHEEERSE ST - NENERETREEERARGB EEHHNER

(i)

(iii)

R EmEERNE M2 ERSERIERNERERCRE G/ AENASRAD IR L2k s
R E RN AR

BNERREIE YR PR B AR IR B A S SR B B A B B TR 2 B - 3
N BRI AR -

BEBREERBEN A ENMERNERZRESL -ERERREEENAGHMB2RANME 2
FREEEAREZZR - REHBEENTARARBBHEABE R ARPATIRERES

BETARZPSMERIN - FAEREHBREMRTEHBEE (RUKRKA LA BRTUGERN T IARH 2 BE
RBR)GEHER - XHBAHTENEREZEMELBRERBEE L ARERT AT - SEERRREER
MERZEMELCHE  BABMZEVALR—HEHARR—ERT ARG WEMERRNERE
EIAFHED 2 R — MM sURERIAE EEL 2 RIREE R B R HEE 2 IFARE - ERERE 2
ERVERZRATERUAIFERARGAREBE B EMES CRERIEEER - TERAR 2]
18 R R — Wi R K [ — R A R] - T AR e MR BB e 2 A— SR AED - BT A
BHHER -

BEHABERABRRAZBERIIIMENBEAAIMBEAEMELCERER - THEGRERTUEN (0
BEBEH 2 —HDRIRINZEERBBEZNTHER - UERHBARZKRE EREZR(MBERGER -
ARRRAEE AL 2R - MEER EERTIAGEED 2 2R KWEA FTHRZER  BIRR
RAIERRBER 2 ZR) -

R E W ERIBH T 20 A ST BRZEAAEIIER MR EEHELR S RANRE B R ERE
EHEZXSEEBAZHEAE  BRIFMEAI TIHEL AR R AL BB ELAMBERZMEBARE DK
BENE 2 RBRAFAE - EMAEMIERT  CHRAZEEHARESRREENAGROE  ARERR
BESR  ABEMRCERRERERZBERGE - REHBREERBEHBANR -

BEEDIREE Z REENSREHRT AR - AATAEEERARRT SN I HB B EMETERNRT
VABIR » (£ B AE Al 82 B SOFE sR B A ] i e S ) -

PR B2 B8 T 22 A 2 BRI IS T A e AR S (S AR R AR B B (E RS RERR ©

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

2

(s)

(®)

(v

2EBCR ()

PRI (&)

(v) ENEBIEABRECHESBREEHEEHMIT  WATTEY « WAL ARAEBE AR AR
BBEAERENEREAE L AEHA U THAREZ AT - NN EAERETHEAERE S5
EENEIBIA B (B ROE A BE B (B

— MREMBBEEERAE ARAAHAKEGFIFRLLELE  RARERZEERSEZAE
2

— WAREHBREERAE MUFEERBGEBR—HBHELRIATER —REWZASHER
— B ERHAA %K

—  TRERBAR  WERAFHEERRESERFAREEEHIARERESEINEELEDIR
BERIAKEZ BIEA - R REERHNMNARE B ENSNERE - AAKERZE
ERFEZAE -

BERRRAR
AR EARD B A BOREAREHETERT - MBEBURENSINR RER A EH R SEZ G5 - RIER R -
ez RMEEEXN  ARBITEBRAME L 2 RERREG

i EFIZINR 2 FT R ERIE - SEAR RAAEEEE  MgKZEFEEANREE - BEBEMZINGZ AL
MRERIRIN o AT FERBARTERI S RAAREUREHET ERTEREFE - MIgRERIAGE K
FELE TR INAR 2 AT BE AR ©

Wrgd B Bt A
REBKHEE M RRERBAEERAD BRI -

WaREmSRBEGREEEPE  RAKERNASEAEREINRRER  TEERE=ZTREZRE - |
SN BIERER R EMEEDS - WNREFITERR

MENEamERD MAEFREBES 2EANEARENE  MRSEREIGERENE  US{TRTFET
BRER S RERMEEEIREE - FSBANERNEE ST R - WA 2B AREEEH Eﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ"\*’\ZFﬂ
A BREZAOERNRGEEERMNZEZBTAOAERBNSMAX - AEERMA(EEMBRELEL)E
ISSRE R EMEEINE - MRERR REASIIAT  THEAREK D 2 HBABNRE -

159



|16

A 35 80 R GE

2 H-I_IEQ (/nﬁ)
(u) BEREMEAE)
NG B e R B A AR BR AT

() FEFRBAREZERERARERBEERER
(i) BRETREEESRARREE BIRGR#ER

1

gt

B BREEBME - RIBE AR RAR AR IR 6L BRI R

(o}

(i)
(v) B/ ERBREZRERAREYREREE HITHER

v REMEREREREARRESE SHERBEETT  BHPK  FEARLEGE
TR RARARNE BN N RER SR RER

vy NEIERGEERFEERARNREEEERG TEFPHER

(i) REMEZEWASWAERRMRESRER - USRAREER G EMELELESE

MR 2 K AEEHERREA

(viiy  MEBWAREEFIRERNE AT EMER - MY BLREEREZIREENAEEREENS B
BRARNZEEZRELE fREREEREZEREENS  ERMNTEARNZEE Z B KA (BIREZ

BEHRERERE) (R
(%) FEETIRE Z BB WA B SR U ER SR IR 2 #E M R S P RERR,
()  FEIIBRRARRHREEER
i)  BEZBAREF @S LINE R RE IR ERES =R

i)y BEWANSHETHMIREZSTHREREER R

(xiii) i AT A IR 7 E RE SN BURT /R B - M AR EIS AT & BT R BA PP A5 160 - RIBURRRE VI PN ER &
TR - HEARBMELRAX ZHBURELRAX ZA— SR XS N ERRRAREA - HEREEEE
A2 AR B EREETHI - RRRZBABEZ I ERFHNRD T ERX T AN BRBERER -

(v) HiEsmsE

FRETZINERGURH A ZEREERBRE - NRERARUINEEEZ BB EERAE LA&/i’JI\W
EEERBERNRZWBRRIEZACEXRGE - XA R[ERBEMNMERER - EEREGINHE L

ERHE N R 2 IR M EL < B R BRIEER AR &

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

i”ﬂﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ
SEREMEL 2 BaEABIRI - HEETHEESEREHAREREEFNRERZAXES



A 3580 R GE

)

(W)

()

SETBEXR (&)

SheEmE (2)

BRERAINERSEN ZIFEREERAE  BRHAZINEETSRE - XZA/ANRANTERZIFEEEE
FBEZAH - DOMNETHEL IR AR BRI FEREERAERETEAREER RER ZIMNEERRE -
RIEEBINERE - EBINETRA MU N ERER 2 RFTE X ZENTE L E ZRNHEREEA -

EREF

BEESRBA BRERLEFTE BRERHEBNTEREREIHECEEZERERAS @EMAERBHEE
ZED A - BAEERAREL 2 BRI SRR -

BERATREEZAXEL - B8 %$Ei&ﬁ%gﬁ§§¢ BERGREEMT 2 BBETR - NEXMLE
RERBEZMOKAR - EFEEHERAREEFERTERRINLEMT FB AR LB smKE - AT RS
HIFLERCEERA o

HEAL
@ WHRTIIER  BZBATHEORARAEEFHE

()  HIAREEAG G RS2
iy HAKEEBEERTESN =X
(i) ArEESIEESARIEECEERE
b) MRBETIMERAEMARREREEGRHE
() ZARRASEBR-—SEESRF - WEARRBRKEBLRAEEME)

(i) ~—FARARARZ—MARZBEBARGLZLE (X% RATMBREZKERRZBEASSGED
EIR

iy MERAERRA—F=ZAZAERE-

vy —FERAAE=ZFRAZAELGEMB—HMARAZE=ZFRAIZHEA -

V) EARARARENEAEEERE L AR ZEEMRZRINENE

(M)  FERRAEIR (a) T A TIESI SRS o

(i) REOFIEATEHZARAEBEAXE NN AZA T (RZARZERR ZEEEEREKE °
(viil)  ZAFHHMEEEE TMEAKEARAARNEESAEE Y FAFHREE EERA SRS

A EBETRMBEAALTEZ R RETZIRGEAEXENRZEZ B ZRIEKE -

16



A 35 80 R GE

2 FEEGBEKGE)
(y) #HBHRE

REDBEVBREMEBEVRBSHE - DRERSEERTAKESRES LR D MR EERENE
HRETAEESZSTRERA B 2B ER MEEE o

MPBHREMS  FAREBEEDBILEREER ' BRIFEEITEBEBRUSEREUREERKREMEES - £2
RFEHEE  BEBASER - HHEERSIRERBGHIRA AR NEEREEE HEBLEIBERG o MBI mE I
IBEB KL DILARBEE Ll KIOEE - B GRE 2%
3 W=
WHIEHEEY wHMNEENE  ESYLREREET  THELEAERA EERESRS RIELERREKA - E
FERERAUNREEY SERZFIBRIE -

AEBEEFPERDE  BIETPAPERZEAEEREER 0%  BRFMELZEERBREDHIFHNTBRERMEE

AEEZREREY - BRAKERSTREEASAEERDERRRFHIERNMBZAMBERT K-8 K&
BE 25 THREDE o $E5E4ﬁﬂ—r$g DERE BELARE R T 53R & 2 8P

—  REA

—

AR ERS - REAM - R RAEZ AR E - ARERBEINES 2 BB TIRN
PRERES Bz UREZRALERIN  ERXRTEET EXRBEL B REARREES LERRE  #inE R
BEZMEDHIRNREAEEREENME RS EREZEEREEE - EAKBEWRENINE S 2R 28T 50% 8%
% ZRECEER T tFTA-+HEREFRDERMBAR - RAFEIBERBARDEDHER - AEEHKDTT
BER AR NI EEERSRED b RE W KA

DH okt

| 6 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

4 DEHE(E)
S a2 B AR

WHRBRA AR Z MR REMAREREDH - HX2EREN WL HERRZSMBUEELE X HZEN B
EIEEETENBHEMEL ZRAXDEERENE

WED RN YRS ERBRELHENFE - ETEREYBER EXEZRRFETIEIAR - RFEFLEABRRB
BEERN  ANEEZE W IFEEBIMER S A2 BB (NE R RAZBEIIN S A R AR R R ETHAAR) fEH#E
—FHRHE-

BUEIBRBRRREERNZDBERIN  BREREGEZ D BEMEERERERH -
EEEFZ2ERKLENFERE  BREGLSIBZAELEEE - DHZMEE—RRATFRAEE
AEERIBETISE D 2 Ra Rk EESHBERZIMT

Bk hE il )| &a

ZZ-N\f Z-tF ZE3-N\F ZB-tF ZIZ-\F Z-tFf ZE3-\F ZB-tF ZI-\F —F-tf
TR TER TR TER Tin ThRL TER TAL Tin TERL

AElE
Wi
—BEgH 218910 19916 - 547383 822,139 9064 479393 47136 1520442 1760829
—RIREE 13,820 1574 165 “ 3106 12931 2,368 8463 53,579 4756)
— &% 1513 1911 - = - - - - 1513 1911
BEADRE 24243 573 165 ST85 859,365 505095 481,761 M89 157554 181030
BEXPER/ (H8) 8,872 1B548 (31,159) Q6754 149,890 106297 36,487 30914 164,090 134005
i
EAHlE 1,575,534 1810322
EEAMERaEa 2 02 G (81761) (9674
bt (25,559) (%39)
At (17,242) (604)
Fala 1,050,972 1006599
BB A RRI e R
HEGH 164,090 134005
RARBE(FE)/ATE (111,561 2108131
#}?H% (239) (3603)
SRR 31,371 309831
BEAGERR 03,661 2548144
BREARNIRE (KE)BRA |63
¢$&20I8



| 64

A 35 80 R GE

5 HitWEKkHEAMm(BR) WARE

() Htilxs
—E-N\fF —B—tF
T T FAT
|ITERZFBHA 28,321 19,820
BEREFZERES S (M) - 2,637
FEIBUA 15,813 13,458
44,134 35915

Brat() - RBPEARAMB(HEDER  R-ZENF-A-—ARRITEF=—FEALREZFREENERNEET =58
BREFRRASKZEN - BE—T—tF+-A=+—RILFE  F5EEREEREYHRESENEMARE2334000

7 (AEE A# 2,637,000 7T) °

(b) Hftli(ER) WA RHE

—E-N\E —T—+tF

THEx FHT

HEME - BERRBH2KE(EE) 180 (6,167)
HEMT B A Rz e - 2,201,414
BIEHE— BB AR Rz WS - 270,762
AR B 2 W - 369,900
MEeMIAZARBEEE - (70,236)
BRI AR R EF RN 2 18 - (10515)
RABRIN BN EARRESBED Y 28 - (13,570)
[EH (518), W= FE (13,735) 50,042
HAth - (12,878)
(13,555) 2778752

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

6 KRBANRF
BBADEFIENG,GEA) THIEA

(2

(b)

(©

%8R
—E-N\fF —E—tF
FTHET T
IRITERF S 46,258 26,807
AT AR E ST B - 27819
IR AR 25 R h HRRE R B, - 13,175
REREEK 2MBER 9 1,810
E A B A B R A 5,635 8224
WIERARBEFABR BB VK EBRABRE 51,902 77,835
BIBX(FEEE=SE& (MIsEs))
—E-NF —T—+F
FET T
TITE& - FekHEMER (HZEa0) 125,281 159,928
TE BE L FURRET B3R 12,283 3,353
137,564 163,281
Hthg g
—g2-N\%F I
FET FHT
TFERA 38,355 33,789
ARG HR LA AN 353,413 364,361
ME - BB MERAEITE (HaE) 75,192 28,969
| EERE (M 14) 1,482 740
B RIS (AL () (MTaE 17) 5,813 6,340
SERENC ALY - 34,000
B RERE (At 17) 2,069 19,649
HsH 2 5 IR - 6,548
HoAh e WOGRIERE - 10,897
AT E R A E A RE - 6210
ZE A & 2,950 5,997
Rt REFIKEHEER
— HEHAERK 108,770 157,447
— g RHEE 15,615 11,034
HeWAREEH (9,673) (14,395)
HiaF -

[0) ZeTAOERRG S #E -

(i)  FREZREEHTALE K@K [HEKE]A -

BAREARRE (KE)BRAF

F#2018 |65



|66

A 35 80 R GE

7 HRERERZMEH
(@) BEBABRZHEE:

—E-N\F —T—+F
FTHET FAT
BN 127
BATIER A 420 1,868
BN TR 34,128 326,053
BAFEBEEE (2,559) (1,423)
31,989 326,498
EFEFETE (M3 23(b))
BRERZBE (618) (16,667)
31,371 309,831
izt -

[0) REZZE-—NF2EBNERBERANFEMFERTENZ 165% (ZF—+HF : 165%)5TH °

(i)  RPBEAMASZHEAR 2T ERMEEMESHRBEBRAFR MG ERTEN 2 25% (=T —+HF 1 25%) 515 -

@iy POETOINEASLZ HIB R R Z MR RSB B RBRAFEMARRTUETZ 17% (ZF—+1F : 17%) 55 -

vy BEZ-N\F+-A=+t—HLFE AEEHRREGEELLEZEDRAMNINAEH 39360008 (ZF—+LF :

431500078 7C) °

BE_Z-/\F+-A=+-HILFE FARERRAAEQRLLEZ ZHBI (BRI R ZRRA K TARR) AEH

VEH 45 4,570,000 7T (ZF—+4F : 37900008 7T) °

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

1T HREWBERZAEHR (E)

(b) MEMXRFBAAREHFEZRRANETIHIE :

—E-N\EF —T—+F
FixT FHBT
B 758 AT ) 83,661 2,548,144
REBREREBRNEN 2B R ERBATNER 2 BRMIE 12,924 307,023
AAHBFAE 2 g 22,503 92,697
BARBBAZ RB T E (4,348) (117,822)
AR ARBARIBEE 2 HETE 9,449 47,141
EEAREBEBEBGETE (1,124) -
NGy it 32 - (222)
BECERERN R E (6,092) (12.578)
RERZEREZREBRBHEFE (16) (4.461)
REERETEMBEAE 634 (524)
BIEFEBEEE (2,559) (1,423)
BEEREHEAY 31,371 309,831
8 EEMS
BIEEBCRTHER)FE383() ER(AR (BEESAZER) BN F 22 EEZEZMES T ¢
e 2HR BRI —E-N\E
EEWS BYRH BETRA e st
FHxT FHxT FExT FaxT FBT
PITES
AR - 10,318 - 18 10,336
TR - 360 - - 360
R ik - 656 69 18 743
ExR - 2,203 170 102 2,475
AT - 1,918 154 18 2,090
BYFHITES
2R 340 - - - 340
=R 240 - -~ - 240
L 240 - - - 240
820 15,455 393 156 16,824

BREARLE (KE)ERAF
72018

167



|16

A 35 80 R GE

8 EEM<(HE)

e ARG 4
L & BIR wEHy —T—+F
EEWE EBEPFmz BB FrEIMR N IR 5T
T T T T T T FHET
(Kte%)
HITES
Sy = 9813 110,281 13 120,107 25429 145,536
TR = 381 55 = 436 = 436
R = 744 70 18 832 = 832
EER = 2,533 15577 I3 18,223 = 18,223
A — 2,586 6,502 18 9,106 = 9,106
BUkHTES
2R 340 = = = 340 = 340
=R 240 = = = 240 - 240
ST 220 = = = 220 = 220
800 16,057 132,485 162 149,504 25429 174,933

MeE - ARFUREREBEARRABRE B RESRE BB GREE - WESEREEEDREBME20) () MR AKEEREAREEH
ZRAMTHRRH 2 BT E ©

ZEBEDN G (REMROBREZ T EGRANEE) 2 EENERS RS [BARER B —BRMFE240)0) °

NAFE » TEGEEZREXRBEREWRBREAME 2 25k -

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE

BeHMA L
hAEERTMALH =B (T —1F : ZR)ARES  BHEZHENMBERERN TR - HBME(ZT—tF : WA)
ZBeREmT
—E-N\F —E—+F
TET T
& K EL At 3 2,482 2,861
BIBEIEL 381 | 484
BIRETEIHER 30 36
2,893 4381
ME(ZZE—tF : MB)ZRT WAL ZHMEN TUTHEER :
= A% —F—tF
AE N ¢
1,000,001 /& 7T — 1,500,000 & 7T 1 0
1,500,001 /& 7T — 2,000,000 7 7T 1 |
2,500,001 7 7T — 3,000,000 7 7T 0 |

BRER
) BREXERF

FRERBNTREAR D T IRER B AL & 52,529,000 T (ZF—+4F : B7H2242,1360008TT) R ERND 3

TEBIR 2 INFET9802,799,669,050 Ik (ZZ—+4F : 2786995888 IR st & AT :

—B-N\F —F—tF

RHEE & B
R—A—HZBEBTL@Ek 2,799,669,050 2,742,519,248
BERMD 2 - (7,704,657)
TERERECRE - 47,724,131
IR MRES P8 - 4457,166
R+ZA=+—AZ LR INEFHE 2,799,669,050 2,786,995,888

(b) BEEERF

BREERNDERENE ABEREZEEERRBITEILRR  BERERC BT EARZ IETFHEGEH -
ARRAR—E-N\F+ A=+ RUEEHEIEELTBR(CE—tF 8 BT \F+-_A=+—H

LR SREERN EgREARMAR

169



A 35 80 R GE

11 REYE HWE - BERREUREE L

(a) REEZHE
i
BT NEEE KERRE BARRE fE  HRIB Mt ORENE  HEiH L

TEn TR TEn TR T 77 TAT Tan .7 S¥.7
RATME
R=Z-\5-A-B 108263 217,881 95,075 34434 5,935 6804 468392 50000 631,348 1,149,740
RE - 45,597 21,399 4531 1,611 2497 95,635 - - 95,635
e - - (1,823) - (1) (1) (,631) - - (.831)
a3 - 1,471 1,245 466 - (3,182) - - - -
ERHRE G31)  (19370) (1,289) (517) (189) G176 (1914) - @193)  (33,107)
REBTARISASITH | lds0 N NG 3OM G nme SR SN0 emiss 106
fi%:
s 104890 245579 114,607 38,914 6,624 0868 53348 - IS 1,160,637
Z3-)\EiE - - - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000

104890 245579 114,607 38,914 6,624 0868 53348 50000 627,155 1,210,637
ZithE BEREESE:
RZ2-/\F-f-H 3,551 81,442 40,533 8,744 2,003 - Nm - 6445 IBSI
RERHE 6,376 28,83 12,385 8,487 1,060 - 67,131 - 8,061 75,192
HERED - - (1,72 - (564) - (2,286) - - (2,286)
ER A% (LIS (14765) (@) (126) (%0) - (16555) - ©16)  (17,431)
REBNFIZAZTR b TS0 sm e e L SR UL L
REFE:
RZF-\E+ZR=1-R 96,120 170,079 53,828 21,809 3415 0868 368,119 50000 613525 1,031,644
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1l REYE  Hth¥  BRERKEUARBEE L i (&)
(a) HREEZHE®)

g
BF  WERE BERRE GAREE a8 REIR NG REWE O BELH R
ThT Fhr Thn T ThT T Thr T ThT i
HASEE:
R=E-+%-A-A 700 93,109 4838) 12418 263 2888 166449 41800 12799 33647
HE - - - = 3218 2802 6020 - - 6020
i - (8131) (13796) ) = (40 (24199) - - (241%)
B - = 0% 1402 - (1626) - - - -
AELEINERAZARE
i 97943 16419 48800 7081 = 2403 874646 = 500090 78773
MERAR = = = - - - - 8200 - 8200
ERA% 3300 16484 11463 760 8 380 4N - 3260 3573
RZB—tE+2A=1-R 108263 27881 95075 34434 593 6,804 46839 50000 $1348 1149740
fi&:
BA 108263 27881 95075 34434 593 6,804 46839 - 81348 1099740
ZE-tERE - - - = = - - 50000 = 50000
108263 27881 95075 34434 593 6804 46839 50000 81348 1149740
ZitE  BERAEFE:
R=E—t%-A-A 565 45019 33275 584 | 488 = 86,09 = 449 90458
TEERE 1043 14712 8186 3216 416 = 7573 = 13% 28969
HERER = (6580) (8891) 20%9) = - (17510) - = (17510)
B A% 193 8291 7963 1725 899 = 20801 = 800 21,601
i s S Wl e A W L - o B8
FEFE:
R=Z-tF+-A=1-A 104712 156439 5454) 25690 3131 6804 351319 50000 64903 10620

BXRERIRE (@) R AR] | 7 |
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1l REYE HthY¥  BRERKEUAREE L i (&)
(b) PELIREME
(i) R2AREER
TREJINBMERRZEEEEEAEZAEEMELAE ZELAAENEBMBRELELDE 13RL
AEFEBREZAAB=ZREBPETHOE - AREHEMBRE L ERELEHERMTARABIE 2 TE
RUEREEHETAT

—  FBREE EUE—SEBRAZBAEZARE  NENEERBENTEASBEERMSF 2K
FARRETE -

—  FRMEE: UFE_RBAREOAANEFE-AZAUBRBARB)FE A TMERAERM A ER
ZEABBZ ARE - TABERRARBABZIESHANSEER 2 BARE -

— FE=RME: EREAMTUBRZBABRBAEZARE -

R-ZZE—N\F THERR=F—NF
+=A=+—H +ZBA=+—HB2ZAREE
ZRARE E— E-R E=
FET FET FET FET
BEMRAREE
REYE
—HEE A 50,000 - 50,000 -
R=ZT—LF THERR =T —tF
+=A=+—A8 +-—A=t—HBzAR{EFE
ZARME F—H B B=H
FAT FHTT FHBT FHAT
EEMRAREE
BEME
— A —&F 50,000 = 50,000 =

BE_Z-/\F+_A=t—"HLFE FREF_LZAVEEER TEEAXBHE=HK (=Tt
FE)ZER - AEEBRARNELEEZREMRERIABER M2 B8 -

AEBREMFER _E—\F+_A=+—RBEMH - AEDHBLIEMTHHEEETERRER QA
#1T EBETH M %%ﬁ%%%&m%&E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@@%°%ﬁ%%$ﬁﬁﬁ@%~$%§§@Eﬁ
B2 A0 5 R (A B RER R b (B4

(i) B=RALEBFAGERETREAEEZ
ERREWEZRAABIRATSLES:  UKLEAENBYEARRG T A RERELEAFE 2 EBRR
RBARMSTISBIBRET -
BEMELNERENANGERERZ [REDEGHERE
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I REYE HWE - BERREUREE L1 (&)
(c) MEEESBESRMT :

—E-N\fF —B—tF

HE i gF RS EF
FiBT FExT FHET T

BB
— REHE 121,483 56,083 122616 56,259

BEBEIN

— REEE 492,042 90,037 532,974 67,766
613,525 146,120 655,590 124,025

B
BAREYERZz L RIEF - 50,000 = 50,000
BRARZF T ESRZIETF - 96,120 = 74,025
- 146,120 = 124,025
BECEHEFEE R HE g 613,525 - 655,590 =
613,525 146,120 655,590 124,025

12 RBAT ZE=R
THERNYEAEELE  SERABZ T EHBDFEE - RRAFEIN - FERAER A SRR

o

RSN E AR AHE L) FREZ REHNBAR - LERAEELBHHRGAAE -

FEMBRABZFBNAT :
ML ERITRAZ REE
ARIER RYRSE B RAFES BEREE FTEEK
ERBERERZREEGRAT " FE EMERARE 100% /& - BUERBEITER
3,000,000 75 ARBEEERE
RERYRBETARAR B 49,990,000 BB . 100% R EAT
10,000 A% 4% =4
RIERRD *
Golden Harvest Cinemas Holding ~ HREBEXZHS | IREE | £z R 100% HREER
Limited
Golden Harvest Entertainment WBEES 1,000 iR & AR E1E | =T 100% &EER
International Limited i 3

BAREARRE (KE)BRAF
72018
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12 REEARzER (&)

SRR CRTREAR EE
NCIES IR RS BERER FEER
Golden Harvest Films Distribution ~ HBEZHE | BREE | ET 2 D 100% $&EERK
Holding Limited
=2A(ER)BRAR EBELES | BREME | ET 2% 100% +5ERIEZ
Golden Harvest Treasury Limited RERTHE | IREE | Exz R 100% RAEEETAA
RHES

Golden Screen Limited B5 8,750,000 A% A% 17 100% IREEM
KIBRKFFBRAR &5 2 B gD 100% &R
BB R A A BB 7,000,000 A& A% 17 100% A&k
BRERIRLEFR AR % 100 A% A% 15 K& 100% B

| 14,000,000 %

IR IR RS *
BREAREZREGRAR BB 94,000,000 P& A% 17 100% BRRERZEER
IR EBRAR] a5 23,000 &A1 100% BERBBIYEEM

BITAREEESRE

whEhESEBR AR B 10,000 B R% 1% 100% RBEERIE

FERRTRREEIREN I T & 4K 500,000 % 7T 100% BREAT
BRARE

REEXEBRAR B 31,200,082 B& B& 1% 100% HREERK

Golden Village Multiplex Pte Limited  FTA03 8,000,000 % &F A% 100% AL T

E{E | Tz B

Golden Village Pictures Pte Limited T A0 8,000,000 A% &A% 100% ERET
E1AE | ST 2 iR

% Golden Harvest Entertainment Intemational Limited 7 - _F 7Lt B A R 2 RA QA RIEEIFA

& BREANRLER AR ZECRH EEZARE - 1R EERH 1,000,000,000,000,0007 7T 2 B AN A REWER—F Bk o bR Lt &S -
2 EEAMEERD M AT - RERA R Z 7] 2 R4 Fi#B % 1,000,000,00058 T A KBTI AEABHREEZRE  TRED
A B2 R #B31 500,000,000,000 45 7T 2 B A& AW —F B8k o IBIERMD BT BERR RS KR ZAEF -
ZAFZBAEEHPEERRRAEERE -

PEERZRREEIRAANERIAR/TEEPN T ZHINEGERE -
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13 REELERIER

—E-N\E —T—+F

FExT FHBT

ELEEFE 145,933 142,937

TR AEBMEEDEZFMER
BEREERLH
HMRIE EBETR AEEZ mAAF  HAEAR

HEZRHEREE £BLRrS  £EnE BRRAFHE BRER 2] BE IEEK
BEZWBRMERAR  FMKL =) 80,000,000 A% 3571% = 3571% EEFHR
SREE RERK

AEEZ2EAEEEEORYETSRE LI LTAREE

LAl

" TRAREER R B M REALR o

RE-F—LFTA-THR ARBRBEFIESECXBRFEXEBRAR IR T S0%E  HERKZEEMERA

MEARKAAREZ 2B EAT

TREBERFZHRNERRALEFEXEARARZHBENHRE

ZEEMB ST ERREREL AR RERA Y

EmE 7 REEHRE
EFEgE
BESHBRHERA R HIRAF
—E-N\F —E—+F —E—+F
FHxT FHTT T

aetEeteE:

MENEE 366,371 424926 -
ERBNEE 505,027 467,625 -
mEAE (414,837) (458,034) =
FnRBARE (47,900) (34,245) =
T 408,661 400,272 =

FFALMEERARS :
ReERBFSFMAEEE 290,986 260,697 -
RSB E(TREE S REAM BRI RERE) - - -
FETBERAE(TRIEE S REMERNRIEARER) 46,259 32,089 =
Wz 1,329,390 1,334,845 617,939
FEICEER 28 100,347 84,626 87,540
Hitp2mElkes - _ _
2HEN BT 100,347 84,626 87,540
AEPERI KL 92,104 101,831 59,030
BRERIRE(SE)BRAA
F¥{2018
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A 35 80 R GE

REE bR B (E)

BEFEEYE
BEEHBRHERAR? HRAF
—EBE-N\E —E—tF —E—+F
FET FHT FHET
T EHUER

ITE R 67,121 82,498 54,084
FEUA 195 188 10
B 112 109 2,880
Fr8 iR 24,775 18,031 22292

HEAEBRGEOECERHR
EENEEETFEGT 408,661 400,272 -
REBER S 35.71% 35.71% -
AEBELAEENEEETAE 145,933 142,937 -
GES - _ _
RERE I HRER 2 REE 145,933 142,937 -

£

A EREIIFREFE S EBHAIER

BAEZBBROERAR([BEDBEREBEEMSD  FPRIEBERBRBBZERGR - FERRZMER T —0F
A& E &I AR HARER - BRRAMDAEETS - RRUN 2BRDFETARRRE - BRRAD LERFLAL RS
ZEELEEMTE -

FRRFENEARARAN - Z—tFR-_Z-N\F+ A=+ -"RAZWBHRAREB M B ERLE T AKE - 2
ZREA-EtFTATARRHAGECEENDRENB AR - EXABRBEFERFECEARAFARBE"F
—tF T AT HUEFEZEERBR B ERERREAN B+ - A—RE_E—tF+A-THHILHHE
ZEERE  RRHREARIEAREZE 2R -
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14

BILEE
g3 EFEB% a8 At
FET F#xT FET FET
B
RZZE—N\F—HA—H 517,068 7,407 1,890 526,365
0B i (1,064) - - (1,064)
RZE—-N\FE+=-A=+—H 516,004 7,407 1,890 525,301
R -
R-Z—\F—H—H - 740 - 740
rEEER - 1,482 - 1,482
R=ZF—-N\F+=-A=+—H - 2,222 - 2,222
BREFE ¢
R-ZZ—N\FE+=A=+—8 516,004 5,185 1,890 523,079
5k BFEHIER ef% =5
F&T FHET FET F&T
B
RZZT—tF—HA—H 80,524 = 1,890 82414
FRWENBARIRNE 436,544 7,407 = 44395
RZZT—tF+=A=+—H 517,068 7,407 1,890 526,365
25 -
R_F—+tF—H—H - , _ _
AFEEEA = 740 = 740
R-Z—+%+=-A=+—8H = 740 = 740
BRTEH{E -
RZZE—+tF+=-A=+—H 517,068 6,667 1,890 525,625
Fi -

0

(i)

PR REEFREBKAMER [5AR] R [The Sky| AR FT IR A AR [Golden Village | G2 k& - W A] AKERS ~ £95% - & 78 - 12aC
RETHA LEMBE ZAER ©

EEENTIIER  BRAKEZHEAGERACHBF
@ AEE-—EERAZEEE USERRDER: R

(b) AEFEELARBELEBRMARESEREGER IMBERRSHRTE MZESESKEEEAONELRSESTN

RZFB-N\FT-A=+—R EEEBUEXGHEMZ B THHEZ IKRSEETHE - ENREZEN  BRzTKkEE
HBBELRE(E - R EERERDRE

EPRARARER T —tFAA=T - AUBZEERESERAR(NZEE R DRERNBZEEREGRFENTPRE -

REERZFRTHEZREFHERS - BERTYREARZSEFAETARNAGH  EXFEFPBERFTEZI R 2R
R EZ DR TERAE  EARTRARSELPNERUEST K ItBEAF 2R HTHRESTFH -

BREARLE (KE)ERAF
72018
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I5 HE&
—E-N\fF —B—tF
T T T
AR
n—A—H 708,426 73,658
U BE BT BB A &) - 634,768
bE W AE (1,392) =
RY=A=T—8 707,034 10 708426
EiPRERE :
®n—A—H 50,425 16,425
BERBEEE - 34,000
RY=A=+—8 50425 B 50425
BREE
R+=—A=+—H 656,609 658,001
BERBZHEES BEMRERNK
BMERINTEEERREBSFIEEASESEHIRCEEEM ([REEEEM])
—EB-)N\F —E—+F
FET FHET
BT REUME — R EAH 23,233 23233
(R R BT — FE 569,954 571,346
LEEW — BB 63,422 63422
656,609 658,001

| 78 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



A 3580 R GE
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BITREE —PREAH

BReELBU S BIZFERABENE BT EXARBEREMLAREREAFE M BEEMERRER
B R I B A £2 B AR B ) b 2 BR TR R 2 R BT AR ER 3R 20% (Z T — 4 : 20%) 51 ©

ERERE  TRESEMREZ ETEBRREREMSEAEESE I SEBREER L KROS5

BERCHRRT — Wik

HEeEABNZAKRESHEZFEABENE - AHIEXAREEREEANERERBAFEZVBBEEMER S REE
B R AR BT AN D B R E R 2 BRI R 13% (=T —t 4 : 13%)51 8 °

ERERE  TRESEMKEZ TERREREASEAEESE I SEBREER L L RESHE

BELWN —F#

ReELBU 2 DS RREMEENE AR ERAREEREMLAREREAFE 2V REEAERERER
AR RRAEEERE S B ERBR 2 RBIIRE 1% (=T —HF : 11%)515 -

ERERE  TRESEMKECTEBRREREASETEES SIS EIREER LD LT KO S -
FE
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17 EEME

—E-N\fF —B—tF

T T T
EXRE — B TEK 21,459 23968
ERER - BERA 13,409 6,485

34,868 30,453
AR
n—A—H 413,033 432244
NE 12,593 10,609
& - (5.862)
e v - (42,197)
b 5 A% (14,631) 18,239
WY=A=+—80 410995 . Hlaise
Rt @SR REE -
n—HA—H 382,580 386,204
g 5813 6,340
i 4 ] - (5200)
A 2,069 19,649
[ v - (42,197)
b 5 A E (14,335) 17,784
wt=A=t-8 376,027 [0 382,580
FREFE
R+=—A=+—8~ 34,868 30,453

BYIREHEY  BANKARELHE -
EREYERERNEY -

REAEESABERM T2 AEER-Z-N\FR-ZF—tF T - A=+ HETREIR  LRELGEXRE B
BIE R 2 AREE R E A £ -

EERGAKUBRRERERE  THEFREZAIROEE HE-_T—\F+_A=+—HILFE ' st EFME
FERIRE 2,069,000 7T (ZZT—+4F 1 19,649,000/ 7T) ©
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18 EWFIE - e RFANLRIE
(a) BIREKRIE

—E-N\E —T—+F

FExT FHBT

B 5 R IE 41,590 51,037
B EERE (117) (117)
41,473 50920

(i) BRI

RBEHR  UBEEAHARERDHIBRERE 2B ZRKFIAGIAE S REMERRIE) 2Rk DT

TN 8
—EB-)N\F —F—
FET FHBT
—@AA 25,328 42,125
— @A EEMEA 10,067 5228
MEAN EE=EA 3,779 196
=@ANKE 2,299 3371
41,473 50920

AEE—EEENF-—E2=EAZEEH -BR2EFPREGFERSE  MERE ST BEHAMER -

ER BRRIE - MEAEEEZREFTIBSRABTRES  EERRILESEESD - BEHREFIRR T
FE - ARRAEEAAERE - ARBEEBRE - PHBEHR U BRI E2560) °

(i) RZZE—N\F+ZRA=+—RH FAEBEEFERKWFEREERBERRREDTHIT(ZT—EF : 3000074
To) RN —EEERERBTAT(ZT—HF : 81400087T) - BEFBIERF - S8 RAN—EFRYKE -

(b) FIEEMEBYGE  ZeRRNFAE(BHERKEERRREEEEFR) RPATR —FAkE -

BAREARRE (KE)BRAF
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19 ERREE

()

(b)

FREBE&BE:
—2-N\F —F—tF
T T
H|ITER 594,073 444786
RITREFERS 833,022 1,701,041
1,427,095 2,145,827
B BERITEFER 2 FR (137,000) (184,701)
FHRES 1,290,095 1961,126
B REER R B BBE=EA ZEHER - (60,000)
RireRENERC A RBESEEER 1,290,095 1,901,126

RZZB-—N\F+ZA=+—08 ' GFHRATBRAIEITZFHREES 208204000 T (ZF —F : 314,692,0007%8
TL) ° 5 E S A B A M Z8 S AR B Pt R AT AR AR 2 A B SN B IR BI SR I FT AR BR ©

METHEEZARYIR

TRAMASERELTHELZ BEEY  BEASIFRSEY - WELPELCABERERSRELCRHERR
RenBARAERGEaRERERVBARETDAEHREREZEE -

BITERR
HibE & BMERE 5T
FHExT FHET FET

(K&t 20) (Ktat21)
R=—ZT—-N\F—H—H 1,234,930 269 1,235,199
MERSHREZEE :
FRITERAERIE 458,400 -~ 458,400
BERITER (398,617) - (398,617)
ENEEHERS 2 EXRE - (269) (269)
mARenE 2GR 59,783 (269) 59514
ENAE (1,000) - (1,000)
HEh &)
FERZ (Mt éa) - 9 9
EfBERERS 2 MBS - ) ¢))
E AT B fa B R AN 5,635 - 5,635
Hib B 54858 5,635 -~ 5,635
R=B-N\F+=B=+—H 1,299,348 - 1,299,348
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20 BRITER

()

(b)

(9

(d)

R-ZB—N\F+ZA=+—H SITERARLTHRMAE :

—E-N\E —T—+F
FET FHBT
—FRHIREK 274,850 359,790
—FREMFER 770,350 148,587
MEERBERAFER 214,542 682,665
hERE 39,606 43,888
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1024498 875140
1,299,348 1,234,930

RITER
— B 1,269,348 1,204,930
— R 30,000 30,000
1,299,348 1,234,930

PR FEBNERGT SR ERE A ARTIER - A RTEFCVFBAERG R - MZEFEETISHEREE -

R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—H ' RITERBLUTHIEMN :
() —ANBRARMRESz —BRAEWE(ZT—tF: —H):

() —FMRBARCRFTINKZ WEANERB@EZEYEZRERBERZE(ZT—+F : ME)
(i) B RZFFEK 137,000,000 T (ZF—+4F : 1847010008 T) i K&
vy RARAEBHRBRRZERE(ZT—+F : MEMNERR) -

REZZF—N\F+=ZA=+—H " BITEFI12993480008 7L (ZF — L4 : 1,234930000/87C) ARA R REH B A
AR 2 A RERIEER

FEEREREHAAERE THAVBRRL R 2R HAIERE TRTHE WA ERAReRBEZEER
o MARERRZEFRY - FIERZBEBARERER -

AEBTHERETAEROZER - AEERDESARER 2 — THBRNIBMKRME250) c R=F
—NFEF+ZA=+—8 BEERERERZBERBIZFRY -
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21 MEHEEEHR
KRB N\E+=A=+-R AEEEATATHEZ RERERS

—E-N\F —T—+tF
REHEE RIEHEE =ERE =EEE
B E EE L NRE [RE k-
FET FET FET FET
—FRA - - 269 278
o BN SR e - ©)
HEREKRE - 269
22 BESRHMENRKIE - BEtEAREZEWES
(@) HIEEFAREK
RREPRZBSRNRBREZHHZRRDN ¢
—B-N\F —T—tfF
T T FHET
BNE==18 A 106,358 100,001
mEREA 3,424 1,989
+E=+=1@A 350 1323
—F A F 11,681 10,886
121,813 114,199

RZZE-—N\FF+ZA=1+—0 ' AEB B S EMNFIERERMNBEERFKIES 12500087 (=T —+H4F 1 26000

BT o BEFATEER R ERARERER -

(b) FIEEMENRERENER(RFEENEEARNEEIAER —FREENARERERE -

(¢) EBEUWREREERARETFEFMELNANER - MARTCHEEHHN —FAERBBEA -
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23 SZEMBRRRZFEH

()

(b)

REMBRARAIENPRESE -
—E-N\E —T—+F
FRT FAT
NEREHIERE 34,548 327921
AEECHNHE
— HEMB ARG 2 BARBETD - (311,692)
— Hp S (38,548) (12,005)
HEHMB AR - (3941)
W BT A ) - 28,807
BEFERD - 890
BAEFEHIEBES A 34,792 8475
30,792 38455
CHAEENRFREERAR -
—B-N\F e
FET FHT
REREMBRRRER ZIEEHIBEEEFE - =
RERE BRI R IR 2 RET A8 EF 8 (173,383) (174778)
(173,383) (174,778)
REFREEUBHRRARERZELCRIERE (EE)BH REZESHNT ¢
EBEH ZRE EBEH
B EEZ nEz gz  REHEF
BEFE ARERE WERXIE B EE ZEMB ko)
FAT FAT FHT FAT FTHET THAT
EEBERS :
RZZ—\F—A—H - 70,188 21,431 74,212 8,947 174,778
BE K R - (155) (442) (180) - (777)
(Gt A) /B8 (st 7)) - (1,193) (59) - 634 (618)
RZZ—\F+=ZA=+—H - 68,840 20,930 74,032 9,581 173,383
RZZ—+F—-HA—H (6,160) = = = 9471 3311
BEE 34 F % 2852 - 371 - = 2481)
B (i 7)) (11223) = (4920) = (524) (16,667)
ot N 20235 = = = = 20,235
U B B 8 2 ) = 70,188 25980 74212 = 170,380
R-E—+F+=-F=+—H - 70,188 2143 74212 8947 174,778
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23 SZEMBRRRZFEHR (E)

() XEREERARE

RIZE—NF+-A=+—H  KEEHRKL 66134500078 7T (T —+4 : 67422400078 7T) 2 R T B E B IE
REERIEEE « L YA BRI Al AR R EE T A4 AR E R 2 RRERTEF o RIEEERIRTT
BRAGI T AREER - WEARIR AR A AR A RE R (A A F 2 #8213,571,0008 7T (ZF—+H4F : 13,982,000/ 7T)

BRSO o

(d) KWEREERARAR

REZZB-—NFEF+ZA=1T—08 BEWNBRARARI RSN EREERAI562,0008T(ZF—E4F : 1562,000/7T) °
MARMDIKZERBEHNE TN 2B IBERECHIBAE780008 T (ZT—+14 : 78000/87T) * LLTVERAR
AIEHZENB AR ZREER YRAZSHEFATETERIEBRDIK

24 BRARGHE

(a) BEF
—E-N\F —F—+tF

RHEEHE o R in e B ]
FTExT FAT

EE
FREE.I0B Tz E@mk 6,000,000,000 600,000 6,000,000,000 600,000

ERTRARZEER

w—A—H8 2,799,669,050 279,967 2,742,519,248 274,252
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Orange Sky Golden Harvest
Entertainment (Holdings) Limited

BXERIRAR(RE)BRLF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RBEREAMKLZERAT)
(Stock Code B fn 155k : 1132)
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